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Innovation transformation

Since September 2020, Bonjour Holdings Limited has
transformed the development goal of the Group from
the original beauty retail operations to the innovative
transformation path of "technology + consumption”.

Since 2020, hundreds of frontline colleagues of the
Group have been trained to learn KOL influencer live
streaming. In March of the same year, our group’s
colleagues cooperated with Mainland KOL to launch its
first global live broadcast in Hong Kong. The following
month, the Group began to build “HongKong Mall” (&
H5H) e-commerce platform to carry out B2C (direct
business transactions with consumers) services.

In May 2020, cross-border e-commerce payment
services between the Mainland and Hong Kong was
launched on “HongKong Mall”. Mainland consumers
can use RMB to purchase Hong Kong goods through
“HongKong Mall”, and Hong Kong goods can be
delivered directly from Hong Kong to the designated
places of Mainland customers. In September of
the same year, the Group officially adjusted its new
development direction, comprehensively upgrading and
transforming to take the innovative path of "technology
+ consumption". The B2C business via “HongKong
Mall” was further upgraded to the global cross-border
e-commerce service of BBC (business to business
cooperation and trade with consumers).

Satisfactory pace of development under the
concept of “technology + consumption”

Through our practice in 2020, we are well aware
that Hong Kong's retail industry is facing great
changes amid the epidemic. We realize deeply that
traditional companies must carry out innovation
and transformation reform, so that they can have
a sustainable future and development mechanism.
The transformation from a traditional enterprise to a
digital enterprise is essential for companies to achieve
digitalization. The Group builds “HongKong Mall”
through digitalization and technology, and, at the same
time, is fully committed to develop digital enterprise
intelligent system, with focus on "lean management"
and "precision marketing" as the core.

Amid the epidemic, the Group has a new development
strategy for precise positioning, digital application,
innovative research and development, and innovation
through “HongKong Mall”. Today, “HongKong Mall”
and “Bonjour Technology” have entered a new stage
of development, forming a dual-platform capability
to export enterprise digital transformation technology
to traditional enterprises. After undergoing a
transformational change for three years, the Group
not only possesses its own technological innovation
capabilities, but also has the ability to export its
innovation capabilities to others.

| am delighted to share with everyone that through
nearly three years of practice and dedication, we have
fully implemented the Group's new development goal
of "technology + consumption” and achieved initial
success. We will continue to promote the development
of digital application technologies, and focus our
efforts to develop consumer-side upgrading and
transformation.

Bonjour Technology going global via innovation

Bonjour Technology was established and grew with
the Group's new development goal of "technology
+ consumption”. Up to now, it has provided
experiential services to the Group's global cross-
border e-commerce platform “HongKong Mall”, which
has developed from B2C (direct transactions between
enterprises and consumers) to BBC (cooperation
between enterprises and consumers), and now
S-B-B-C, which connects the business platform of
“HongKong Mall”, with other businesses, and finally
with end customers via supply chain. The service areas
of “HongKong Mall” has reached 34 countries and
regions in the world.

“HongKong Mall” can now provide cross-border
e-commerce sales services with more possibilities for
global merchants, catering to different requirements
such as different countries, regions, customs,
currencies and other services. So far, “HongKong Mall”
has cooperated with more than 80 marketplaces, and
its service scope has reached most countries and
regions with e-commerce services round the world.



| am pleased to tell you that the newly born “HongKong
Mall” has begun to grow. It is able to provide cross-
border e-commerce sales services to Hong Kong
merchants for Mainland China and the Greater Bay
Area, providing delivery and payment services within
Hong Kong.

Furthermore, Bonjour Technology has begun to provide
digital transformation services to traditional enterprises.
For example, we assist catering enterprises to export
digital lean operation systems; provide schools with
STEM technology products with interdisciplinary
teaching content and models on science, technology,
engineering and mathematics; and provide enterprises
with DCS data security system, and so on.

Upgrading of beauty retail business

The global development of e-commerce is constantly
evolving. Therefore, how should the Group, as a beauty
retail company, face this challenge? Will our future
business development focus on offline retail, or on
e-commerce consumption based on consumer habits?
or should the development of beauty products be laid
out according to the K-shaped consumption curve,
which is particularly prominent under the epidemic
situation? The K-shaped curve mentioned here refers
to the difference between high-end consumption and
quantitative consumption in the consumer market, and
the Group's original route happens to be at the mid-
tier position, hence the Group's future development
requires a new strategic positioning.

Since 2021, we have begun to implement the
Company's new brand strategy, product strategy,
marketing strategy, service strategy, etc., and scaled
back our offline retail sales services which were mainly
focused on individual travel from the Mainland, and
added more online sales services by expanding to new
marketplaces in different countries and regions.

In the first half of 2022, the Group invested in the
opening of six new Suisse Reborn brand stores in
Hong Kong to provide experiential consumer services.
In the second half of the year, Suisse Reborn brand
entered the Southeast Asian market, hoping to provide
high-quality sales experience for Southeast Asian
customers.

To date, the Group has expanded from a single
beauty retail offline service to now offering medical
beauty experience services, lifestyle beauty experience
services and brand consumption experience services,
and has embarked on the path of One health services
with beauty industry as the main focus.

Looking forward, we will fully leverage the Group's
brand advantage in the global supply chain, integrate
"beauty industry + One health industry" through
“HongKong Mall”, and cooperate with more industries
and enterprises to help businesses innovate and
develop.

Four-wheel drive offering unlimited potential

After nearly three years of innovative reforms, the
Group has formed a development direction of
"technology + consumption". Through practice, the
Company has developed a four-wheel drive strategy of
“HongKong Mall”, Bonjour Technology, beauty industry
and innovation industry.

As the Chairman, | am most grateful to all the
colleagues of the Company, all our partners, suppliers,
and friends who have supported the reform of
the Group, especially the members and users of
“HongKong Mall”, for providing us with valuable
insights and learning opportunities over the past three
years, allowing us to embark on the path of innovation
from the traditional path. The four-wheel drive strategy
has proved to be feasible through practice, and our
goal of overtaking on the curve is promising.

Looking forward to 2023, the Group will fully develop
the four-wheel drive strategy, enabling the Company to
embark on a new track of development!
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Mr. CHEN Jianwen
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Chairman and Executive Director
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Mr. Chen has extensive experience in corporate governance,
marketing strategy, industrial integration and value reconstruction in
various fields of the business community. In particular, he has more
than 20 years of experience in innovating digitalized management
systems for traditional enterprises.

Since 2020, Mr. Chen has served as the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Bonjour Holdings, and started to upgrade Bonjour
Group into an industrial innovation platform of “technology +
consumption”. In 2021, Mr. Chen founded “Hong Kong Industry
Innovation Centre (HKIIC)”, which is committed to putting digital
transformation and technological innovation elements into traditional
industries, customizing new business models, services and revenue
sources, promoting industry openness and sharing, and building an

industrial ecology.

Mr. Chen has an insight into the problems, pain points and difficulties
of enterprises. As the “enterprise doctor”, he has designed a series
of digital management tools to help enterprises reconstruct their
overall structure of strategic planning, operations management,
business ecology and marketing development, and master the
ability to tackle digital challenges and the corresponding governance
framework.
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Mr. WAN, Yim Keung, Daniel

BEERANITES

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director
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Mr. Wan is a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is a
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company as well, mainly responsible for the business development of the
Company. Mr. Wan obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and his master degree in
business administration from the University of Wales. He is a Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and also a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Wan has extensive experience in the
financial industry with over 26 years in senior management position. Since
June 2019, Mr. Wan has been appointed as a non-executive director of China
Suntien Green Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 0956) and the chief
executive officer of Haifu International Finance Holding Group Ltd. Prior to
joining Haifu, he was the managing director and chief financial officer of Shui
On Land Ltd. (stock code: 00272) and the general manager and group chief
financial officer of The Bank of East Asia, Ltd. (stock code: 0023).
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Ms. CHIU, Lai Kuen, Susanna
HWITESREEVEE

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
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Ms. Chiu has extensive experience in accounting, business management and
operations. She graduated with a bachelor’s degree with first class honours
in economics from the University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom and
obtained an executive master of business administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms. Chiu is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a certified information
systems auditor and a member of the Chinese Institute of the Certified Public
Accountants. She was the president of the Information Systems Audit and
Control Association (China Hong Kong Chapter) from 2001 to 2006, and
the president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
2013. Ms. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive Director of Kato
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited (stock code: 2189), Huijing Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 9968), Huali University Group Limited (stock code:
1756) and China OQilfield Services Limited (stock code: 2883). Ms. Chiu is
also an independent non-executive director of Nanyang Commercial Bank
Limited and an independent non-executive director of Songz Automobile
Air Conditioning Co. Ltd. (stock code: 002454). From 2006 to 2019, she
served as a senior vice president, Group Chief Representative (Eastern China)
and consultant in various member companies of the Li & Fung Group. Ms.
Chiu was awarded the Medal of Honor by the Government of the HKSAR in
2013 and a Justice of the Peace in 2017. Ms. Chiu received numerous titles
including the “Outstanding Women Professionals” Award, the “Outstanding
Business Woman” in 2017 and the “Outstanding Female Entrepreneur in
the Greater Bay Area” Award in 2021. She is currently also a member of
Shanghai People’s Political Consultative Conference.
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Mr. KWOK, Chi Shing
BIFRNITESR

Independent Non-executive Director

BEERARBDERZZEGEFELURFHE  Mr. Kwok is the chairman of the audit committee, and a member of the
ZEERERZEEME -BELERSDBE  remuneration committee and the nomination committee, of the Company.
BHETE ; N1986F7AMIGHEEE  Mr. Kwok is currently a certified public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok
BTABEERGFEXRE TR >F  obtained a degree of Master of Arts in Economics with Accountancy from The
1991TF1AESEREGHMAFTERTE  University of Aberdeen in UK. in July 1986. He has been a fellow member of
H1989F 11 HEAMBB IS E5tHT  the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 1991
NBEE- and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland since
November 1989.

FHEBEE

Mr. LEE, Kwun Kwan

BIUERTES

Independent Non-executive Director

TEEAXANDFNEEETTHFEREKL M Lee is the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
ZEEHE - FTELEASERMITEEZE  audit committee of the Company. Mr. Lee is veteran in the insurance industry
MEANE N1986EMBEBAEBXE  of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree in the University of
B+ B RR2003FMEBEBEMAZTZH  Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of Business Administration degree in Lingnan
BIE T2 B2005F £2006% & E  University in 2003. Mr. Lee had been appointed, from 2005 to 2006, as the
AEBAERBECEHRTERABERE>  President of the General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong
BE2007EE2011EEZEABEI M Limited, from 2007 to 2011, as the member of Insurance Training Board of
BRBEINMKETELE > B2011FEXE2014  Vocational Training Council, from 2011 to 2014, as the Founder and First
FEZEZE%AInsurance and Financial Convener for the Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliance, from 2012 to
Practitioners AllianceZ Bl A &5 — &8 2016, as the member for the Insurance Advisory Committee in the Financial
E AN B2012FEF2016FEEEEAEHE  Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong Kong Government, and from
BRMEEHEREFRBZEREZLBAHEZE 2014 to 2019, as the Vice President of The Life Underwriters Association
GEHE; H2014F E2019F 8 HEASE  of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is also the Committee Member of Insurance
BASRENEEHETERLABEIER>  Management Committee of The Hong Kong Management Association since
ZHEETFBE007TEREEZIEABTHBEE 2007, the President of the International Asset Planner Association since
FEREIRBEELZESTZLE ; B2011 2011, the Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA Business
FRESTABDRSERIMPEERE>  Opportunities Development Alliance since September 2014, and the Deputy
H2014F 08 BEZECEPARE %S E R  Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory & Development Concern
EREESEZEgGRE R, RBE20195F  Group since August 2019.
SEREEZAXASRITERERLLERE L
HBRIBEA-

mNELE

Mr. YAN, Sherman Chuek-ning

BIAERITES

Independent Non-executive Director
MELEARNTRLEETTEREZZE M Yan is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
EgNE - BAELERADTBNEZMAE  audit committee of the Company. Mr. Yan is currently a practicing solicitor and a
BABARAMMAERZMERMZEE  Notary Public in Hong Kong. He is also the Managing Partner of ONC Lawyers.
EBAN BERGHRKAEZEHBEBE L M Yan graduated from the University of London with a bachelor's degree in
BUREEEEREEZEBE TS24 laws and the University of Southampton with a master’s degree in laws.
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Mr. WONG, lu Ming
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THRERQBRE

Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary
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WEIBFLE
Mr. GUO Guanghong

Mr. Wong is a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Wong is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also currently an executive director and deputy chief
executive officer of Haifu International Finance Holding Group Ltd., a director
of Innogy Global Limited and a member of executive committee of The
Society for the Promotion of Hospice Care. Mr. Wong had been a general
manager of Internal Audit of Urban Renewal Authority, and also has extensive
experience in risk controls, finance and administration, internal audit among
sizable Hong Kong public bodies and multinational conglomerates.

AEERMASRERHNEEEERATITRAR
Ex-chief Innovation Officer and Chief Executive Officer of Bonjour Technology
Development Limited
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Mr. Guo had been the co-chief executive officer of the Guangdong Hongkong
and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator, responsible for the innovation
business and digital transformation of the Company. Mr. Guo graduated from
the Department of Electronic and Communication Engineering of South China
University of Technology with a bachelor’'s degree and subsequently studied
as a postgraduate in finance at Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Guo is a member
of InstMC and holds Chinese Legal Professional Qualification Certification,
China Computer Software Technology Advanced Programmer certification,
Project Management Professionals (PMP) Certification, etc. From 2004 to
2016, he worked with Ericsson as a senior engineer, senior solution architect,
technical manager, etc, responsible for the project structure and technical
management of major domestic and overseas projects. From 2016 to 2021,
he worked with China Mobile Hong Kong Corporation Limited as the head
of the Network Department and the Enterprise Solution Department, and
subsequently acted as the Vice President of the Government and Enterprise
Marketing Department. Mr. Guo has been involved in the information and
communication technology industry for over ten years and is familiar with 5G,
internet of things, cloud computing, artificial intelligence and other emerging
technology applications and their empowerment to the industries and
enterprises. Mr. Guo was invited to give speeches at the Asian Leadership
Roundtable Greater Bay Area Conference (GBA Conference), the Asian
Finance Forum (AFF), the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), the
Digital China Building Summit, the International Institute of Electronics and
Electrical Engineers (IEEE), etc.
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Ms. SU Jie

EARBERIATVITHER
Chief Executive Officer of HK Mall Limited
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Ms. Su is committed to helping in Hong Kong local enterprises to create
digital value and achieve digital transformation. Ms. Su received her
bachelor’s degree in Arts Management from the Department of Arts
Management of the Central Academy of Drama, and her master’s degree in
the Integrated Marketing and Financial Marketing from the SPACE School
of The University of Hong Kong. She is now studying her third master’s
degree in Enterprise Digital Transformation and Corporate Strategy. Ms. Su
specializes in Internet electronic payment and cross-border e-commerce,
covering marketing, platform operation, content creativity, 020 and
enterprise digital transformation solutions. She worked as a public relations
manager at LAFASO, a subsidiary of Vipshop. In 2011, she was in charge
of fast payment brand marketing and establishment of public opinion report
system in Alipay. In 2013, she participated in Taobao’s payment business
in Hong Kong and Macao and the innovative payment operation of “Global
Tour”, responsible for Alipay’s local market and operation in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the establishment of the business
basis of Hong Kong-Macao wallet, which serves as the earliest pioneer
and promoter of cross-border e-commerce and mobile payment in Hong
Kong and Macao. Moreover, she worked with “Bonjour” and witnessed
the breakthrough development of cross-border electronic payment and
e-commerce in Hong Kong from zero to one. In 2019, Ms. Su acted as
the deputy general manager of Alibaba’s local Lifestyle Catering Marketing
Department, responsible for the development and delivery of the commercial
advertising system as the national KA general manager. In 2020, she was re-
appointed as the head of the Digital Media and Entertainment Department,
fully responsible for the Custom Drama Center and the Hong Kong TV
Series, the core customized drama development, IP procurement and TVB
strategic cooperation, and the creation and establishment of a commercial
drama production management system. After that, she was transferred to the
Cloud Intelligence Department, responsible for DingTalk’s internationalization
and the digital innovation of the Group, and promoting smart management
solutions of Cloud and DingTalk.
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initial public offering. It secured the foundation EEBEL-

In November, the Group's headquarters were officially moved from
To Kwa Wan to Tsuen Wan - utilising a larger floor area and enhanced
facilities in order to centralise operations and optimise logistics services.

of Bonjour's leading status in the beauty and
cosmetics industry in Hong Kong.

2019

FIRSEBFETEERRERMN
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HEREAY LEEYIRE 0o

Bonjour participated in the “Quality E-Shop
Recognition Scheme” organised by Hong
Kong Retail Management Association
(HKRMA). Our e-shop has passed the
comprehensive and objective assessment
and was awarded a "Quality E-Shop

2005 Recognition Logo”, which effectively
enhances customers' confidence in online

%I B BEwww.bonjourhk.comZH B & 2 i shopping.

LT E

www.bonjourhk.com was established to provide online
shopping platform for customers.

REMEZ HBIREBEITEEE
A AFTFE

Since our first launch in Jordan, and moving
to Fa Yuen Street in Mong Kok afterwards, the
Bonjour brand has steadily gained recognition.
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Bl S IRKOLE M > AJ IR HoEH L+
BRINERHE BEEF A B  facebooks
YouTube ~ Instagram ~ Bonjour Global~ £ 2
K 2IER R BHRR

11/9

EEEE MR NN
REHBR AN B FEEvolut Holdings
Pte. Ltd. (TEvol) » EFEFC & E &

KOL live streaming studio was established at Bonjour R IBIRE F g a8 M iR hiE
Building, which can support simulcast at 9 different -

platforms, including: facebook, YouTube, Instagram, SRR ARBIIRIE o
Bonjour Global, Bonjour Quan Qiu Gou, Bonjour Hai Tao,

The Group invested in Evolut Holdings Pte.

2020

HEYHTEBES S IRNEEHB
#2000 EBEEOSHE  EB#
175K R BEHRE > A Sparkle Hong Kong
FEEREARATIEANLHAT
Z— o

Since the outbreak of the pandemic, The group
has supplied over 20 million face masks at
affordable prices which gained coverage from
over 17 media and was awarded by Sparkle Hong
Kong as one of the most socially responsible listed
companies in Hong Kong.

18/3

SR INIETURRE) > S AR L= - 5%
BETRERBENL AT Z0EY -
Bonjour WeChat Mall was officially launched to
develop and strengthen its online sales — allowing
customers to shop online at the convenience of
staying at home during a pandemic.

Tmall, Kaola and JD.com.

12/6
SIRHEEAFPOREIRANERIET —
100002 F AR T EM S5
B BB E YIRS o

Bonjour New Retail Innovation Center established a
new retail concept store “MEI MALL" with an area of
more than 10,000 square feet in Bonjour Building to
create a whole new shopping experience.

Ltd. ("EVO"), a social commerce software
start-up company registered in Singapore, to
develop its own business and to grasp the
opportunities brought by the rapid growth of
e-commerce in the Asian market.

24/11

%lﬁi%%ﬂ%%m%“ “®
(CENERBERAEEZ—>
REYBEEEEL1500%
GRS/ EPEE%%T HAsf
BRI EEETEEEEA
o WEHASHRTE SRR
The Group became one of the highest-
level members of the Cyberport
Enterprise Network (CEN). Of over 1,500
technology companies in the CEN, eight
technology start-ups were selected for
business matching with the Bonjour
Group, and we preliminarily signed
cooperation agreements with five of the
above companies.

11
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Milestone

HENEREREEREF LT ES
2E—EWX FRE BETED
) BEREBRERRNBLEEEN
FANEENRR IR/ N A o I BLIRISER R
ETEH-

The live stream team of HongKong Mall was invited
by LINK to participate in the two-day “weekend
live-streaming e-commerce (BARItE EHE®
)" event at Lok Fu Place where the live stream
team introduced the outdoor facilities and small
marketplace at Lok Fu Place in the live streaming

EEET - 2IREHRBE R AT H
EBERBERARRE ZELEE
BE & (FieE - HER TR T #
HERMTENRRBRIFER
W RFTRELBAURSERR
Under the Group - Bonjour Technology Services
Limited entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Huawei International Co.
Limited. With the assistance of Huawei Cloud,
It will promote the development of innovative
applications of new retail technology services
and support the transformation and sustainable
development of the retail industry.

EBMEREFERRBITEA XS
MR 28 AIRE RS BEES
B EHHSRBRREBBE I 1R
ERBRAB RSB S5 B5H2
AREREEEEE  —ER R ERE
% 5| T Roborn » FutureNowszISTEME 125 4
BSBRR B E

The livestreaming team of HongKong Mall was invited
to participate in the live-streaming e-commerce event
titled “Bonjour Technology's (1R} 28K : Bl
BB 4 JE) Offering: Innovative Technologies Create
Intelligent Life" held for the startups in Cyberport. This
event was sponsored by Bonjour Technology and
HongKong Mall and jointly supported by Bonjour
Holdings Limited and Cyberport. There were eight
consecutive live stream events in the park zone
of Cyberport starting from 22 May, attracting 12
technology companies including Roborn, FutureNow

process and interacted with audience on the site.

EEHERERZBAEBEER KHEBYRI BEETE A8
EERERELER BEBYRESROLEREE I BFEINER
KOLETTHSZEE  NMBITcoR BEME M MM ERITN [EH
HIMLELToERESE - ZRE—ELRTEBEFERREFT LR
17 BERRZER > K31 T BIE500 A RAZSH

The live stream team of HongKong Mall was invited by the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council to participate in the live-streaming e-commerce titled “Fashion
Shopping Exhibition (Bf & BE#IE) " to help exhibitors expand online opportunities.
The Fashion Shopping Exhibition (B &1 B84/ /&) provided KOL live streaming studios
and invited the KOLs from the Group in eight live streaming events to introduce the
products of nearly 60 exhibitors, some of which were also sold in real time on the online
platform of HongKong Mall. This exhibition had continued for five consecutive days at
Convention and Exhibitor Centre, Wanchai, Hong Kong, with 430 exhibitors involved and
over 55,000 visits.

12

ARHEBARMOUBEMEL

and ISTEM.

EEET-=2RMRRBAERASEHR
BERBHERAERAD ) HEBCEERMS
ERSIFERBR -EHREUZEEE
SERTMEBERHE-

Under the Group - Bonjour Technology Services
Limited entered into the 5G Retail Integrated
Development Cooperation Framework Agreement
with China Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited
pursuant to which, the
cooperation between
the two parties will be
based on respective
professional expertise
to promote mutual
benefit and achieve
win-win results.

2IRERBRABIEENR
B E - -EERCLEM
B (8) ) R AHE—
FEH BRI (GRS |

Bonjour Holdings Limited was granted
“The ESG Rising Star Gold Award"
and "Outstanding ESG Company
Silver Award” in Environmental,
Social Responsibility and Corporate
Governance
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EEEEESBTTIRES T DAREREY
g ERMELE AT HE3500RRBEE
B KOS IR OB NEEREN 8
B\ERBEXCEBUEEITEME RS-

The Group sponsored cash coupons with a total value of
HKD500,000 to the event of “Yau Tsim Mong Shopping
Festival, Revitalize the Regional Economy”. It cooperated
with 3,500 vendors in Yau Tsim Mong to vigorously
promote the “technology + consumption” operation
model, and helped small vendors transform from old
business models into the new ecosystem of smart retail.

7% a0 .
ﬂ 4

2/8

EREHEBMTLUEFHI ZTKOL
LORBHEES XFEFAESE B
IRoTT BRI - SRR MBI EIE
B EEKOLER S MPIEEERR
TR ; FRMHEENES 7T
[E#54 HongKong Mall 148 _EEEY)F &
ETZBERETSE SRFEALS
BEEREEX-

The Group sponsored the "KOL Dream - Set Sail”
event of Lion Rock Junior Chamber to support
young people in pursuing their dreams and
achieving zero e-commerce startup. Bonjour
provided a headquarter-based live stream
studio and professional KOL tutors to enable
them to command the professional skills for
live streaming. At the same time, it provided
them with a practice platform for conducting
multiple live streaming e-commerce events on
HongKong Mall, and encouraged young people
to devote themselves to the e-commerce live
streaming undertakings.

EERENFEEBTERK
BIFT A RERIBAIFNVARE
REBHBENERR SR8
BHMEAMEENSREETER
EEgRENTERMAR RE
TERAIFT- IR ER AR - BR
TEETEBEL FEmAEE
TER RO sE

The Group was honored the 2021
Hong Kong Retail Innovation Awards.
With the proactive and innovative
attitude and the evident transformation
achievements, Bonjour Technology
together with Alibaba Cloud, won the
“Best Retail Innovation —
Technology Application
Prize” for retailer group
granted by the Hong
Kong Retail Technology
Industry Association,
demonstrating that
the Group has become
the model in the retail
technology sector in
Hong Kong in terms of
digital transformation.

ERET-=Z2REXBRBERR
BB EHEAK B ABCR Capital
InvestmentZx & & 1FIESS sk » AL AR
BERE RIS BB EREEAR
A RERE EAREENRKE
B2NER-

Under the Group - Bonjour Technology
Services Limited entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement with CR Capital
Investment, a subsidiary of China Resources
Capital Management. The two parties became
strategic partners and intended to promote
the upgrading and transformation of Hong
Kong's traditional industries, and promote the
full development of technology, capital and
industries in the Greater Bay Area.

- I
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4/11
Y EEBUESTE  SIRERE
RABRE=EBELEHATH
RFEEME > BISEEBREDN
BN nEEs I L AR FE AR
2021]°

With its well-recognized achievements in digital
transformation, Bonjour Holdings Limited has
differentiated itself from many quality listed companies
and won the “Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2021"

granted by the Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts
and Professional Commentators.

ot

Faniumiing Tec hrology
H [P Tach)

(Gt Perad /o -Commmarcel
PRI B CRE W E

FIRE ORI T AE AR
T B2 TR M B BB
TERARHEMRE > R Hetnet BRI} - BUE
BRI M 2021 B RE AR A 2 S
EERHEAAREIRIE.

Bonjour Technology won the prize for “Outstanding All-
round Smart Retail Application Solutions” of the “Smart
Living Partnership Awards 2021" sponsored by etnet and
co-sponsored by Cyberport, for its continuous industrial
innovation and focus on developing technologies for
application in the digital new retail for “technology +
consumption’”
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Milestone

SRR EEERNREFHE ST FHE
SEHaNEHIEERE+BRINRE Bt
EREXERFTESEY EREFEEE R
HEFUNERTERRFE-

Bonjour Technology entered into a cooperation agreement
with Hong Kong United Youth Association for Science and
Technology. Both parties will jointly promote the integration
of “Industries + Technologies + Capital” to help enterprises
transform from the old business models to new ones so as to
achieve digital transformation and provide all-round smart retail
resolutions.

EEIEREYXZBLE(EERERE202)FAEEBEES

PEEREENARAMTEE - KGUTFMNRRE - KELEIER)
AT BEREEARFIITHEITHREMBA B TEERHRSE
RE MBERRRREAERTTRES  WRER - £/A  thER
ARETABENESRZE2HE I BERSNEBTEIRERNERE-
Mr. CHEN, Jianwen, Chairman of the Group, was invited to participate as speaker at the
"Hong Kong Economy Summit 2022" and share the opinions on how traditional enterprises
integrate into the digital economy. This Summit has the topic “14th Five-Year Plan - Dual
Cycle of Economy and Trade’, and invited Mrs. Carrie Lam Cheng Yuet-ngor, then Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, as key guest speaker, Mr. Paul
Chan Mo-po, Financial Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, as guest of honour, and many important guests from different sectors such as
political circle, finance sector, real estate sector, and business sector, to discuss the overall
development of Hong Kong in China.

Mﬂmf 2022

- E T bb+ Bonjour plus |BEE o U MR IIEE IS E
B815> Tbb+ Bonjour plus 1B B EIREIFAIZE A B 5
GRRE Suisse Reborn &1F > FHEBHIBHEESEE
2 HERZRNGR TS

Opening of the first “bb+ Bonjour plus” Materialized by the concept
of "technology and consumption’, “bb+ Bonjour plus” is the first
offline experience store jointly set up through the cooperation of an

innovation and entrepreneurship company under Bonjour with the

-
(W B
-

g’f% R4 ﬂfﬁ%%?’éi% ﬁﬁﬁj:éé‘ﬁé BE brand Suisse Reborn, which engages HKMALL to provide intelligent
BRNECEBETRBENAEEHEHL D retail store system.
(¥R ZREEAXRENEBRANERY

BRENZMEEZR sEAHMEEEDN
BREMWRIET AHHEBEE  EEEEL
B RmBEEENE—T0

Being nominated by the Group, our Executive Director Ms.
Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna was awarded the GBA Outstanding
Women Entrepreneur Award. This award was to honour
outstanding women entrepreneurs in the Greater Bay Area,
and to acknowledge their contributions to the development
of the area. This award was also an extra recognition on her
leadership abilities, experiences in corporate management,
and contributions to the betterment of the society.




SRR R BB IE R 255
Bo2ETELR -FHRE"
EBRaBRRAEREFEE R
Bl
Bonjour Technology and HongKong
Mall acted as supporting agencies in the
— i | “Photo Exhibition Celebrating the 25th
Anniversary of Hong Kong's Return to the

17/6
BB B SIET Suisse Reborn
Aesthetics | iR » BTN E&E
BH2& ' Suisse Reborn | fRHEERPY
ESETEE

The first brand concept store “Suisse
Reborn Aesthetics” was opened with
a number of “Suisse Reborn” brand
outlets and counters opened in several
regions.

29/6

PR EHEABEBFRAT IR
BESAERABETAFETER HF
FBERAM R ER BYERAR
RO EEBE S FRE AR R > TTHLE
BERERSE HEATBHEERE
HAe

Bonjour Technology, China Resources Capital
Management Limited and Loving Home
Foundation signed a cooperation memorandum,
pursuant to which, they will build a future-
oriented comprehensive strategic partnership
through industrial innovation and technological
development, and will work together in the social
welfare sector to contribute to Hong Kong's social
responsibility.

r‘ 5 Motherland”

EHENEANESRE MREFEAHFMN
U RES T E WAL & BB FTE AR R
ME - ZHEFHEEELERBUTRAERE
B U RERTRETHVEDT MEN RRE
B - EERELEERRREFERENRE
o BERS R %R -

The Group has reached a Very Substantial Disposal, by
selling the premises occupied as the Group's headquarters
to a Fund established jointly with China Resources Capital
Management. The Group has also entered into a tenancy
agreement to lease back the premises for 4 years. Such
disposal has provided a more solid financial conditions
to the Group, and has given sufficient capital for future
development. The Group is adamant that such disposal
can mutually benefit both the Group and China Resources
Capital Management, and embracing new opportunities
together.

ERBPFATFLEFEESE
—JE KOL M iefn) » iR 2EE
ERBYORFEOLER BR
BRFEEALRSEHERESE-
The Group assisted and supported the
second session of KOL “Dream - Set Sailing”
of the Junior Chamber International Lion
Rock by providing multiple live streaming
channels and platforms and professional
KOL tutors, which once again encouraged
young people to participate in e-commerce
live streaming.
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Milestone

22/9
HEE—INE LT EETCRRAERE
S GETAL o

HongKong Mall’s one-stop online platform
was honored the “Award for Corporate Social
Responsibility in Greater Bay Area’.

Sty

HongKong Mall

ERHSEEEEZURERIM I 2022F B REEF
B UTAENRER - BENEE ATE T —ERER
BEEGBREROETHIBSER BBELTFARBT
i)k

HongKong Mall participated in the “Beauty and Health Expo 2022" organized
by The Hong Kong Trade Development Council. Under the theme of “New
Life Experience, Experience New Life’, HKMALL hosted 10 live streams on five
consecutive days at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, serving
different merchants through the online platform.

SIRFEZ B BSMART CITY FORUM » 3 23
SEEEITCIRIGERE o

Bonjour Technology was invited to participate in the
SMART CITY FORUM and provide 5G live streaming for the

activity.

28/9

EEET - 2RBAKBRBERADIRE R
HERADMEERESFEREEHEE00
EREEAK-

Under the Group - Bonjour Technology Services
Limited and HK Mall Limited donated 100 sets of
smart building blocks to the Tsuen Wan and Kwai
Tsing District School Heads Association.

16
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NEBEN222FEES IfRES -8B - KERE
BT RS o B IEERLHEEERTE I
Under the Group - HK Mall FES T L A 23R 4918 o

Limited won the "Outstanding E Under the Group - HK Mall Limited was
commerce Platform of the Year" designated the online sales livestreaming
platform for the 2022 International -
Beauty Education « Best Expo and won the
"Awesome Entrepreneur” award.

L i i
itF :

EHESBREZRERRDMBEE
F2022BERERE G5 Kt

HEAERLE -

The Group was granted the “2022 Quality
24111 Tourism Service Award (Bronze) and
EBFE2HELEF EEHICIBER MR 18 & B BR SutstaKndinTg Qua\iBty E;usiness Award” by
B AARTEEEXAFSLREHT o fong fourism Foar

ENZRE o

The Group fully supported the promotion of "Strategic Cooperation
of CIBE China International Beauty Expo', and held the sharing
forum on the beauty industry innovation and transformation and
ecommerce industry on the same day.

17
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HongKong Mall

BFEBmPRERER

ERAEANBHFCER REHRE
BRmETHERAENERETT
R-FEEPNEBEBRNMmMEE M
REBBRBEETPREAMKRBINT
% B RS B A K S 7 R BY da
W an 0 5l AE B AT 5 KRR OE S
BRNmEER BEHEEEZPEN
s o

Working together with merchants to enter into the
international market

In order to make use of digital applications, “HongKong Mall” serves
the supply chain and brand owners to match merchants’ brands and
goods. The platform facilitates cross-border sales of branded goods
of the merchants in Hong Kong to Mainland China and overseas
markets; at the same time, it introduces branded goods of Mainland
China and overseas merchants to the local market in Hong Kong and
implements cross-sales of branded goods of overseas merchants to
the market in Mainland China.

S-B-B-C EF S S-B-B-C e-Commerce Platform

&

Supply Chain
{HpEsE

mBEAHEE

BEEMIITIARI AWE]RA
BRMINNR F 5T E R UE3 %R F
B UEEREINRABRABERE
REBHEMBANBR AEZREM
MPP(Marketing, Price, Promotion)A
B BB S E RSB FIEMNR
mLEBTEHEDE HYERMEFB2B
FB2CIH & °
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BROMBE ERRETHEEHEK
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Business Platform

BEREMTE

3

Consumer

HEE

Business
[HES

Assisting merchants in sales

HongKong Mall adheres to the principle of “no success, no charge”
and only charges a service fee of 3% per successful transaction
order to help merchants achieve the goal of cost reduction and
efficiency enhancement. The marketing team of HongKong Mall can
provide online and offline marketing solutions for the merchants
to help them do well in B2B and B2C sales if only the merchants
joining HongKong Mall provide contents of MPP (Marketing, Price,
Promotion).

At the same time, HongKong Mall also assists the merchants to do
well in operation, including commodity management, warehouse
management and logistics solutions. It enables the merchants to
explore overseas markets and sell their commodities to 34 countries
and regions around the world to reach overseas customer base.
The platform adopts the model of delivery in Hong Kong and settles
in Hong Kong dollars on delivery, and it also assists the merchants
in analyzing data, so that the merchants can carry out precise
marketing and budgeting.

i &
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Bonjour Technology is a strong backup force

In addition, “HongKong Mall” has also received solid support
from Bonjour Technology which has provided “technology +
digitalization” system services to support the development and
optimization of platform functions by the platform, such as image
search, OpenSearch index, Al content recommendation and refined
hierarchical search of documents and columns, etc., so as to
effectively promote the merchants’ goods to potential consumers
with consumption power more accurately, and customers can
effectively enhance user experience with the above functions and
experience a new shopping and consumption model.

Explore future potential markets

Looking forward, HongKong Mall continues to move forward steadily,
utilize its own technological advantages and resources to explore
more market channels. It provides the merchants with diversified
operation services to reach more target groups, including: continuing
to explore potential markets in the Greater Bay Area and Southeast
Asia, utilizing the unique features of online shopping (regardless of
geographical location and time) to bring the merchants’ goods to the
international stage. HongKong Mall will also strengthen the utilization
of resources from the sharing platform and work with the merchants
together to achieve a win-win result.

Awards and honors
“Most Innovative Enterprise Award 2022"-
Business Innovator

“Awesome Enterpreneur” — 2022 International
Beauty e Education e Health Expo

19
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Bonjour Technology Development Limited

HIREE #;FEDERK Digitalisation: digitalisation for the future

FRBXEREERATEENEFE E  Bonjour Technology Development Limited aims to innovate
Bl MBS CEEBERTHERE  in technology to meet the needs of enterprises and market
SIEBATEBRIRE+HE IS  development, lead traditional enterprises to realize the integration
BRAN  TEBIRE+8FI1#E  of “technology + consumption” transformation and innovation,
BN EENEEY and build a new management and operation ecosystem through

20

(@)

M EE R
(Salary & Incentive
System)

“technology + digitalization”.

WIRZERMEAFEZE  Currently, Bonjour Technology offers and explores four major
MERRR- innovative application technologies, with integration of “technology +

digitalization”.

0204 L4 T &t & K fif
020 online-to-offline integration technology

SRR EEBHE T BERMEOCOHBELE —BRIEEMBER > BEBAIO
BREEHZM BRO20Ma XM HERLELXNTRE ERUA-—BERFEE
VR ERTHEYRER-

Bonjour Technology supports the “HongKong Mall” platform to help merchants meet
the O20 data operation integration and cross-referral. Through the AIO smart store
system, it realizes O20 integration technology, saves online payment costs, and helps
merchants build a new online to offline shopping experience with an integrated system.

B EERE

Smart field equipment

ERRREEEEE SN EB I FR BHEREABAINSGH MRS -
BERERBEEATAEERUEHEEFTHZE AINTEE BRAERES
OpenSearchZR5| BB ABE ZESRFELBI A - BEPOSERAZAAKSE
2o BIBAIBR R DR BHBEA ST ENEER AR

Bonjour Technology is expected to play its “connection” role and actively develop
the application of Al and 5G technology equipment. At present, Bonjour Technology
provides intelligent equipment for different enterprises: Al content recommendation,
image application search, OpenSearch index, self-service unmanned counter, multi-
scenario service robot, smart POS settlement system, etc. Through Al recognition and
analysis technology, we create better experience for consumers and achieve precision
marketing.

EERBRER

Enterprise Application Services

=] i .

ZEBEERR TEERRERR ABBERE ERRH
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Corporate application services
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Looking forward to the future and coping with the increasing application demand for
corporate service products, Bonjour Technology has developed a multi-application
scenario-based enterprise service system, including the enterprise information
security system DCS (Distributed Control System), the business dynamic system
BJO (Business Junction Organization), the cloud warehouse system CWO (Cloud
Warehouse Organization), the cloud pricing system CPO (Cloud Pricing Organization),
the multimedia management system MMS (Multi-media Organization) and remuneration
management system (Salary & Incentive System). We will provide enterprises with
feasible ways to upgrade their intelligence and digital transformation, reduce costs and
increase efficiency, and promote intelligent industrial upgrading.

4. STEMEBER & :

STEM education technology:

j SRBERREMNRAFNBERED  EXHT—AHAKEE- %ﬁ?’E@JSTEME’:\
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& R 5t B4 (Design Thinking) R &l = Euuax##ﬂ:?’

Bonjour Technology believes in the thinking and ability of scientific and technological
innovation, which needs to be cultivated from a new generation. To promote STEM in
the local market, we joined hands with the Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator to provide the STEM project. Through the introduction
of technologies in different areas and the integration of design thinking and creative
product design, to promote the science and technology innovation campus.

ERBRREKEE

AREBRBVEBFEFESTZELE
Bhek 4B MR R FH RS BE B A 51
2 FEARKVREEHUE T IR T
ZESEEEEZE R & —F L
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SIRER K R T Betnet | M}
fJSmart Living Partnership Awards
2021 ERMEHEREERAU
FERARIKE

Bonjour Technology was rewarded
the “Outstanding Intelligent Retail
All-round Application Solution”

in the Smart Living Partnership
Awards 2021 held by ETNET

Future deployment of Bonjour Technology:

In the future, Bonjour Technology will continue to explore the field of
intelligent self-service equipment, expand and upgrade the intelligent
application plan, and empower multi-scenario intelligent operation
through AR and VR intelligent digital display. At the same time,
we will further use Al product identification technology to analyze
consumer behavior and gain insight into new retail applications, so
as to promote enterprises to optimize
marketing and operation efficiency
and shape emerging retail formats.

SRR EEEREETER
REgEENTRETERMAR
Bonjour Technology and AliCloud were
rewarded the “Best Retail Innovation
Prize” granted by Hong Kong Retail
Technology Industry Association
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Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre
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Cohesive enterprise with flexible innovation and transformation

The Group has established the “Hong Kong Industrial Innovation
Centre (HKIIC)” in Bonjour Building, which covers an area of
230,000 square feet. As a demonstration base for the innovation
and transformation of traditional industries, Hong Kong Industrial
Innovation Centre (HKIIC), together with the cooperation of the
Group’s industrial innovation institutions such as Hong Kong
E-Commerce Research Institute, Bonjour New Retail Innovation
Center, Hong Kong Multi-Channel Network Production Company
Limited (MCN) and Hong Kong KOL Incubator, not only supports the
development of the Group’s business, but also gradually forms the
ability to provide external services.

As a demonstration base for the innovation and transformation
of traditional industries, Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre
(HKIIC) promotes the innovation and upgrading of industries in
terms of sharing, incubation, acceleration, financing connection
and technology empowerment. It has set up more than 10,000
square feet of new retail innovation center event venues and KOL
live broadcast studio, providing venues and technical support for
different events, facilitating cooperation of various enterprises and
units, and accelerating empowerment of industrial innovation.

Two bases to create a win-win situation

Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship
Incubator comprise of two stations, namely Guangzhou University
City and Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre (HKIIC), forming
a linkage between the two places. In 2022, with the innovation
and application of digital industry technology, the Group became
an Accredited Accelerator of “Cyberport Accelerator Support
Programme (CASP)”.

dEBREFEAEME
B (EBEEAFF
i)
Guangdong
Hongkong and
Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship
Incubator (Hong Kong
Industrial Innovation
Centre)

dEeBREFREMLER (E
Guangdong Hongkong and Macau
Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator
(Guangzhou University Town)
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BENEERAMERBEREEEEE
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BERANBERAFBIENFEER

REERE

ClEE2022F > HEBEXAIFFLME
BREEHEEAETUCHKREHZE
SERERHSME SFEEFAB
ZEB-BERER EBEXAIHT
DRBMETBEZTER REZWMT
ETCAT LAB+ I ATHIE) - 1Z2HEZ
H= TR REIEREE -

TERRRARCESE LW HE
BIEE -

,

ABNI Leaders— &
BRtH-IIKEIES
BNI Leaders - “Times
of Prosperity after
Epidemic * New
Opportunity” Activity

AecBay -EET

At the same time, the incubator has established cooperation
with 36 international, Hong Kong and Macau industrial platforms,
school institutions, domestic industrial institutions and financial
service institutions to build a complete industry-university-research
investment system, and promoted the construction of “multi-
platform + multi-base” with a number of Hong Kong-based leading
enterprises such as the Group and authoritative media institutions
in Mainland China, endeavoring to support the sustainable
development of innovation and entrepreneurship in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area.

Future development

Looking back at 2022, the Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre
(HKIIC) provided venue sponsorships to the Junior Chamber
International Hong Kong (JCI) and Young Collections Musical Studio
to support young people to pursue their dreams. Looking forward,
the Hong Kong Industrial Innovation Centre (HKIIC) will cater for
the diversified development of the market, offering brand-new “CAT
LAB +” and “CAT Bar” to provide more shared space and creative
experience.

Support and Promote Cooperation between Different
Enterprises and Organize Various Activities:

dICIEESEEE-
KOLZ: {E fiil & 8 5%

Junior Chamber
International (JCI) -
KOL Dreams Take Off
Practical Lesson

Bay 5]
EE (Concept Store [THRBSHE

EREHE -FRME - TR AR-TEmFEtRERERIAAE

eBay, Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association, HongKong Mall - “Breaking
Regional Boundaries * “Selling” to Local and International Sellers” Seminar
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Beauty Industry
FEERBEXES BRUERE

URREERTEZRTELELREN
BRHR L EBE2NEREBEEETE
ARBEANEEBEZRREMKFER
MR- EHEEEUR IS HREFER
S hESuisse RebornZ& iz 22022
FEOoRB N - TRSEELMARSMER
K FARMEEBEEEEmHE FEH
BEENES RESXRRBKFE
FEEEEFEENBRFIAREARM
RARBE - UEBITE-

B $F 54 14 B9 B9 15 5 B

Pertinent store opening strategy

JtBA T & Citistore
Yuen Long Citistore

Beauty Service Business
Dual-track development of beauty and medical
aesthetic services

Leveraging on the Group’s extensive experience in beauty retail,
the Group is developing two new business lines, namely high-
quality beauty services and professional medical aesthetic services.
Focusing on Suisse Reborn, a high-end skincare product brand in
Switzerland, the beauty and health industry has set up five service
points in Hong Kong, Kowloon and New Territories in 2022, while
developing the Southeast Asian market. It is hoped that the Group
will leverage its advantages to improve its service level in the industry
and expand its services to the Mainland and the Greater Bay Area as
well as overseas markets in the long run.

LHBEMERS
+ Mira Place,
Tsim Sha Tsui

FELNBEAES
ZHEANDZHE
Mainly in areas with
high income/large
female population

L -

fREENMEZ

Lee Garden Two,

& T &ECitistore Causeway Bay

Tsuen Wan Citistore

Plaza 2000,
Causeway Bay
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—RIMENEREEF B RBH
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FRERNERERE FUKESIE
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BRExE RETHEHE
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BE GEEARATENREINE RS
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Lifestyle and Beauty - One-stop beauty and body
shaping experience

Starting from the Suisse Reborn concept store, the Group opened
the door for the Swiss scientific research, and had presence in
Causeway Bay in mid-2022. The Group perfectly integrates the
exclusive and efficient Suisse Reborn skincare products into a
series of beauty treatments, combining with the “European royal
reverse ageing massage method” and advanced beauty equipment
originated from Switzerland to maximize the skincare effect. After
the completion of the beauty treatment, customers can better meet
the needs of skin. They can also purchase Suisse Reborn skincare
products at the branded product counters for home care, and
make skin-care around the clock, which reflects the unique beauty
philosophy of Switzerland.

ih ik Address:

i $8 VE ZE R 2 K 45R
2000 E %2518 2 g
25th Floor, 2000 Plaza,
2 & 4 Russell Street,
Causeway Bay

Medical Aesthetic to capture market opportunities

Working with top medical beauty experts and doctors, our medical
beauty team uses high-end professional medical beauty technology,
designed for the five-sensory face of Asian people, to create a
natural perfect and unique 3-dimensional contour for customers who
love beauty. At the same time, the Group introduced the world’s
most advanced and internationally renowned brand-new medical
aesthetic devices and injections to tailor the most suitable medical
aesthetic solutions from the perspective of medical beauty for
customers, creating a natural and perfect body contouring.

ik Address:

5 2 B T B 285 F
ZfA24182402=
Room 2402, 24/F, Lee
Garden Two, 28 Yun
Ping Road, Causeway
Bay
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The Group was proudly awarded Local and International Awards

EEABAEEHMUNEFIBTEOREUTEER Y — RESZEAARMKBEIREIE-
The Group is one of the leading E-Commerce Platform and Beauty Retail Group in Hong Kong and proudly obtained local

and international awards.

4ZIH Awards

NEZEH4E Issuing Organizations

2022 R B E 7 P 3% ($159)

2022 Outstanding QTS Merchant Award (Bronze Award)

SEEREBEABR

15-year QTS-accredited

BRE-HE - CETACENE (R

45 9] A 02— 1 10 B K 9% (3222

Special ESG Awards — The ESG Rising Star Gold Award
Special Awards (Criteria set by Fund Managers) — Outstanding
ESG Company Silver Award

RERIER

Awesome Entrepreneur

SHAIMEEARR02/FEERIHER

Most Innovative Enterprise Award 2022

B s R E

Quality E-Shop Recognition Scheme

SEMIEDETE
Trust E-shop Recognition Scheme

‘ERBW EEMEEERES

“Sparkle Hong Kong” CSR in Hong Kong Award

IFAPC ETE AT K&

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Company Award

EBREEBEEERER

Hong Kong’s Most Valuable Companies Services Awards

BEEQEEERB S EITE

The Hong Kong Q-Mark Service Scheme Certificate

IE hR IE & 7% 35 51 &

No Fakes Pledge Scheme

18 B ik 22 AR 75 51 &

Quality Tourism Services Scheme

BEARARB R+ F R

Hong Kong Top Service Brand Ten Years Achievement Award

DHEREPNETEE

Best Listed SMEs in Asia

ERREREBETR

Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands

EEEREWEER

Hong Kong Merchant of Integrity

BEtHREAEE

Quality Cosmetics & Beauty Group

B EmdERIE

The Excellence of Listed Enterprise Awards

BHRERTHE

Quality Tourism Services

BEHRERDTHE

Quality Tourism Services

REHERCEEREESZY
Institute of ESG & Benchmark

BIRERS-HE - AEREE
2022 International Beauty « Education - Best Expo

BUSINESS INNOVATOR

EBTEEERE

Retail Asia Expo

EBTEEERS
Retail Asia Expo

Fortune Insight

EBEREDWEIGE

The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional
Commentators Limited (IFAPC)

Mediazone Group

EBREARSER

Hong Kong Q - Mark Council

A EEE

Intellectual Property Department

ERRBEERRE

Hong Kong Tourism Board

ERRMBERE

Hong Kong Brand Development Council

&0 AT

Forbes

RE(ENEEEEGE

China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility Association
(Overseas)

BN B R
Guangzhou Daily
BEAXEHE
Capital Weekly
EAXEA

Capital Weekly
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A% I8 Awards

AEEEIERE Issuing Organizations

BEASHRBAE

Capital Weekly Services Award

R AR

Outstanding Corporate Strategy Awards
BEARERE mhE

The Best for Home

105 Plus™ R E R IR

10 Years Plus Caring Company

EBG R EEKE

Hong Kong Outstanding Enterprises Parade

BREHEETZRAE

Outstanding Corporate Image Award

7B N B i A VS bR
Guangzhou Influential Fashion Brands Awards

DSAfE H #E 88 B A8

Distinguished Salesperson Award (DSA)

Yahoo! R 15 & k& K #%
Yahoo! Emotive Award

EERELmE

The Premier Brand in Hong Kong

RN T HE P

Business Excellence Awards

DHMEEZBITEREEERI AL
Asian Outstanding Business Achievement Awards

TAREFHBFRULKRE

Top 10 eCommerce Website Awards

BRI
Honorable Award

FEZESHAR

Industry Super Retailer of the Year
BELEBHAE-RHUEERTERFURAARRE

Smart Living Partnership Awards — Outstanding All-round Smart Retail Application
Solution

REFERAIM-—MREAKRE

Grand Award Use of Technology — Best Retail Innovation (Application — Retailer)

AFEFIAEBRERE

100% HK Branding Award

BEXSHE
Capital Weekly
RETI

East Week

4257 B ¥R Take Me Home

Hong Kong Economic Times -Take Me Home

BEEMERBHS

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
K —iE

Economic Digest

TVB & I

TVB Weekly

5 mm £ &
Style Weekly

EBEERENT

The Hong Kong Management Association

HRER

Yahoo! Hong Kong

A - KEBREE

GD. QQ. COM / FASHION / HK

EABEZRETERD
The Professional Validation Centre of
Hong Kong Business Sector

DHNEEXZTWE

Asian Hair & Beauty Association

ERERGEBHE/ DNSERES
GS1 Hong Kong / Retail Asia Expo

EBtHEREERS
The Cosmetic and Perfumery Association of
Hong Kong

DHEERES
Retail Asia Expo

K ir=]

mnL /A
etnet
BEAZERNREE

Hong Kong Retail Technology Industry Association

RAFELBPERE

Greater-China Association of Branding Industry
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ERRERREF G BES2AEERD BRAKMEEEEEE.

B EIRRIEED

Public Welfare and Environmental Protection Activities

BFHERR-

In addition to developing business, the Group actively participates in charitable,

BEMHENEGRD AR /NE

environmental and socially responsible

corporate activities, endeavours to contribute to the society, to support SMEs and join hands with them to overcome difficult

i

mes.

SE & Activities

1#1% Organizations

28

BEREEBREZER
Amity and Benevolence Charity Night

ERxEREEEZABIT

Bonjour x Shine Tak Charity Hiking

B Bl Bk K % B O B

Charity Sale for Disaster Relief in China
FHBENE

Charter on External Lighting
BEIWVEEERATFTEERXTENHERRS
Donated 100 sets of Smart Building Blocks to

The Association of Heads of Kindergardens of

Tsuen Wan, Kwai Chung & Tsing Yi District
HIEZEZEBR I ARBERI0BEORENAE
Donated 100,000 Rapid Test Kits with Futu Securities
International (HONG KONG) Limited

RETERFEELHEZIRBRERSTEME A
Donation to the school for the purchase of mobile
learning equipment and the development of STEM
education
[TERMEBLIREGE
Industry Cares Recognition Scheme
(BB 27| —REAEESBERAE

Light Up ® Charity” Po Leung Kuk Flag Selling Donation
Box

O 4A

BEBFEAmG I BERESEYPLEREZ]
Pandemic-prevention Supplies Donated to the “Law’s
Foundation Child Care Centre cum Hostel”

WA E

Pink Revolution

PRERBENMHE

Plastic Resources Recycling Partnership

RIE HE BEERLCEFESRRK

15 Bl K B2 4R 52

The ESG Rising Star (Gold) & Special Awards (Silver)
BRITESBHED

Trailwalker Fund Raising Event

ANBEEBT

Walk for Millions

FERBR@KIH

Walk for Nature

10F Plus & 7 & B3 12
10 Years Plus Caring Company

NERBLES
Kowloon Women's
Organisations Federation

EEESE

Shine Tak Foundation
EBATFE

Hong Kong Red Cross

RIBER

Environment Bureau
ZEREXFEYHERRSE

The Association of Heads of
Kindergardens of Tsuen Wan, Kwai Chung
& Tsing Yi District
ERBBEIFEHSARKEPL
Hong Kong Federation of Education
Workers TechEd Centre

CHEERENSNE
Y.C.H. Choi Hin To Primary School

EBIXES

Federation of Hong Kong Industries

®R B
Po Leung Kuk

ZEER

Yan Chai Hospital

EBEEESS

Hong Kong Cancer Fund
CEBERRE

Yan Oi Tong EcoPark
REHERLEEREELS
Institute of ESG & Benchmark
EBYRSE

Oxfam Hong Kong

BB LGSR

The Community Chest of Hong Kong
tRABAESEEFESS

WWF (Hong Kong)
EBTEREHS

The Hong Kong Council for Social Service
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AEMBEREERE Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary
(S EEBS 1 (in HKS thousand's unless “E-N\E CE-hE C"EBE-Zf "B C"B-_E
FETHE) otherwise specified) 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
(Restated)
(1= E5)
= Turnover 1,798,457 1,458,828 538,788 626,991 185,662
EF Gross profit 635,765 490,443 173,095 49,960 33,754
EVilE Gross margin 35.45% 33.62% 32.13% 7.97% 18.18%
A/ (518) Operating profit/(loss) (16,213) (71,449) (217,302) (176,786) 199,113
M iaH| = Operating margin (0.90)% (4.90)% (40.33)% (28.20)% 107.24%
FERAN/ (5B) Profit/(loss) for the year (39,613) (130,621) (258,423) (216,078) 167,221
UTEFELEE Profit/(loss) for the year
wHL (BE) attributed to;
—ARBHEEAN - Owners of the Company (39,613) (129,648) (255,734) (216,738) 167,221
— IR R - Non-controlling interests - (973) (2,689) 660 -
EO®K,/FEAZE  Return on sales/Net margin (2.21)% (8.95)% (47.96)% (34.47)% 90.07%
HEES Working capital 38,640 (253,121) (98,330) (55,339) (169,740)
EEHEE Total assets 1,393,159 1,539,638 1,027,546 699,043 505,407
BEER Total liabilities 793,474 1,104,212 858,998 696,256 350,019
REES Shareholders’ funds 599,685 435,426 168,548 2,787 155,388
—ARBHEEAN - Owners of the Company 599,085 436,298 172,166 2,787 155,388
— IR R - Non-controlling interests - (872) (3,618) - -
BEBERR Return on total assets (2.84)% (8.42)% (24.89)% (31.000% 33.09%
PN Return on equity (6.61)% (29.72)% (148.54)%  (7,776.75)% 107.62%
HEFEES (B) Inventory turnover on sales (days) 48 47 66 15 14
BEBEREELEIEA  Total labilities to total equity 1.32 2.54 5.10 249.8 2.25
ERTENEBY Total number of retail outlets in
Hong Kong 35 33 22 9 8
BESENEBY Total number of retail outlets in
Macau 3 3 2 2 2
hEA\RHME Total number of retail outlets
(THhE)) RS E in the Mainland Area of the
DIEEE People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC” or “China’) 1 1 0 0 0

Annual Report 2022
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Corporate Information

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel (Vice-Chairman)
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Nomination Committee

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning (Chairman)
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Authorised Representatives

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel
Mr. Wong lu Ming

Company Secretary
Mr. Wong lu Ming
Independent Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
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Windward 3

Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands

MMERERETBEFZMES

EHEH

BB FH36-505%
BIREEP LT ZE

B 1 (+852) 2872-2872
B HE :(+852) 2872-2873

FEERRIT
EBLBESRITARRA

BERITAERAT
hERTT (FB) BRAF

FEIEIERET CEF) ROHBRAFE

RHIBITHERAE

Corporate Information (continued)

Legal Adviser
Kok & Ha Solicitors
Registered Office

Windward 3

Regatta Office Park

P.O. Box 1350

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business

12/F., Bonjour Tower

No. 36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
Telephone: (+852) 2872-2872
Facsimile: (+852) 2872-2873

Principal Bankers

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Annual Report 2022
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www.bonjourhk.com
www.hongkongmall.com

Cp RN

N
< J|

t

corporate@bonjourhk.com
B RECERE

Suntera (Cayman) Limited

(FI #8573

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)
Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3
Building D, P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court, Camana Bay
Grand Cayman, KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands
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Information for Investors

Company Website

Company Information
http://corp.bonjourhk.com

Online Shopping Web
www.bonjourhk.com
www.hongkongmall.com

E-mail Address
corporate@bonjourhk.com
Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Suntera (Cayman) Limited (formerly known
as SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited)

Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3

Building D, P.O. Box 1586

Gardenia Court, Camana Bay

Grand Cayman, KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King’s Road

North Point

Hong Kong

Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) : 31 May 2023

Announcement of final results : 31 March 2023

Financial year end : 31 December 2022

Important Dates

Closure of Register of Members . 24 May 2023 to
31 May 2023

(both days inclusive)

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong . 653
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

Board lot : 2,000 shares
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Annual Results

° The Group’s turnover for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$185.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately
70.4% from HK$627.0 million of last corresponding year.

° Profit for the Year was approximately HK$167.2 million (loss for
2021: HK$216.1 million).

° The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately 32.4%
from approximately HK$50.0 million of last corresponding year
to approximately HK$33.8 million.

° Earnings per share was HK4.8 cents (loss per share for 2021:
HK6.3 cents).

° As at 31 December 2022, the Group operated a total of 10
retail stores in Hong Kong and Macau.

Market overview

Retail sales in Hong Kong are still severely affected by COVID-19
in the year of 2022. According to the Census and Statistics
Department (“Statistics”), for the full year of 2022, the value of
total retail sales was estimated at HK$350 billion (2021: HK$353
billion), a slight decrease of 0.9% from 2021. Despite the repeated
outbreaks of the epidemic and the variation of the virus strain since
2020 which have caused unprecedented reduction in global travel
activities, 2022 has shown a rebounce from 2021. According to
the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the total number of visitors to Hong
Kong in 2022 was 605,000 compared to only about 90,000 in 2021,
although the figure still fall short of over 50 million visitors per year in
the pre-COVID-19 period. The significant decline in tourists to Hong
Kong and the economic downturn during the prevalent period of
epidemic have continued to bring major difficulties and challenges to
the retail industry in 2022.

Annual Report 2022
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Market overview (continued)

Crisis brings opportunities. The outbreak of the epidemic, social
distancing measures and advancement in technology have
significantly altered consumer behaviour. The business ecosystem
has transformed from traditional retail to omni-channel — fully
integrating online and offline (020) retail experience. According
to Statistics, for the year of 2022, the value of online retail sales
was estimated at HK$34.6 billion, an increase of 20.8% year-on-
year, accounting for about 9.9% of the value of total retail sales.
The trend of online retail sales is growing. The core focus of retail
transformation is the alignment and coordination among customer
channels, operation processes, payment methods and supply chain
management, Through effective electronic payment, efficient logistics
support, e-Commerce is able to meet changing consumer needs and
improve shopping experience such as enabling shopping at home at
own leisure via mobile phone, computers or other electronic devices.
Mobile e-commerce is enhanced with 5G networks available,
increasing on-the-go internet speeds and facilitating more mobile
e-commerce.

With the improved economic sentiment and further relaxation of
social distancing measures towards end of 2022, the fourth quarter
of 2022 has shown an increase of 0.9% in value of total retail sales
compared to preceding quarter. The value of total retail sales in
January 2023, provisionally estimated at HK$36.2 billion, increased
by 7.0% compared with the same month in 2022. In January 2023,
since the lifting of travel restrictions, the number of visitor arrivals
in Hong Kong reached approximately 498,690 which is 82% of full
year 2022. According to a consultancy report, Hong Kong’s retail
sales are expected to rise by 13% year-on-year to approximately
HK$395 billion in 2023, driven by the lifting of travel restrictions and
the city’s ambitious global promotional drive. Department stores
and the luxury sector will continue to revive by around 40% in 2023,
while clothing, footwear and allied products will grow by about 20%,
supported by the recovery in tourism and the strengthening RMB.
Hence overall, the outlook for economic recovery in 2023 is positive
and encouraging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review

The Group has commenced its business transformation from early
2020. On the product side, the Group expanded the product
range from pure cosmetics products to ‘Beauty, Health & Lifestyle
products, enhancing consumers experience including extension
to cover technology products such as mobile phones. In terms
of operations, the Group has leveraged on technology innovation
to transform the traditional retail business to a new business
ecosystem, of which the Group and all stakeholders including
consumers, merchants and suppliers will benefit. This is achieved
by (1) establishing an 020 system integrating offline with online
operations to enhance consumers’ shopping experience (2)
establishing a global eCommerce platform ‘HKMALL (F#E3) to
serve Hong Kong merchants as well as overseas brands across 34
countries over 44 market platforms. (3) establishing an ecosystem to
assist Hong Kong small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to digitally
transform their traditional business into new business models.

° New Retail 020

With the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic into 2022 and
the border between Hong Kong and Mainland still remain under
tight quarantine control, the number of tourist arrival continue
to slump. With the maintenance of social distancing measures,
people have turned to online shopping instead of going out to
physical stores. International retail brands have also switched
their focus to online sales. The Group was well aware of this
trend and have made transformation plans. Since 2020 and
continuing into 2022, the Group strategically optimised the
number of retail stores and transformed them into O20 stores
to provide consumers with new shopping experience while
also saving rental costs. Underperforming stores are closed for
better cost control. For existing stores, the Group has initiated
negotiations with landlords for rental discounts and critically
evaluate the need of tenancy renewal in each store. As of 31
December 2022, the Group operated 10 physical retail stores
in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group will continue to monitor
the rental market closely and review its store network for better
cost control and more efficient operations. Further, the Group
intends to explore new sources of income by utilising digital
displays in and outside stores with the control system powered
by Bonjour Technology Development Limited (“Bonjour
Technology”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Group will continue to leverage on technology to enhance the
shopping experience of consumers to improve sales.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

New Retail 020 (continued)

During the Year, the Group applied various leading new retail
technologies, including live streaming, intelligent shopping
guide, smart push, image search, voice search, and data
bank, to its e-commerce platform Bonjour HKMALL (& 7 5t)
(“HKMALL"), which greatly enhanced the online shopping
experience for customers.

HKMALL is an omni-channel e-commerce platform that not
only sells products and branded merchandises with exclusive
distributorship rights, but also assists small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) in expanding their sales network via
HKMALL efficiently and effectively to markets in the Greater
Bay Area and overseas countries. The Group sells authentic
goods, and offers SMEs an easy way of payment settlement,
logistics support and data services, providing a fast track to
SMEs to digitally transform their businesses. HKMALL covered
34 countries including the UK, the US, Canada, Australia,
France and Singapore, across 44 market platforms in mainland
China and overseas, including Tmall Global, Kaola, JD.com,
Facebook and WeChat Mall etc.

With the fast rise of the KOL economy, the Group has its own
direct broadcasting studio with an area of over 10,000 sq.
ft. for KOLs to conduct sales on social media. As a result,
the Group is able to enhance the interaction of consumer
experience and customer loyalty, while accumulating online
subscriptions and “Likes” to boost its turnover. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had conducted over 2,000 live
streaming broadcasts across all platforms. The Group has
cultivated more than 200 sales staff to become KOLs so
far. The Group also collaborated with various association
to launch open competitions to nurture external KOLs. The
gross merchandise value (GMV) of completed orders on 020
platform (including beauty products and technology products)
amounted to approximately HK$553 million for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Brand Management

Currently, the Group offers over 100,000 SKUs, and distributes
over 100 well-known brands, including, exclusive distribution
of Suisse Reborn, Dr. Bauer, Yumei, WOWWOW, Dr. Schafter
and |.Skin Focus. Apart from skincare, fragrance, cosmetics,
haircare and body-care, the Group also sourced health-care
and lifestyle products all over the world. Recently, a variety of
quality products are offered at competitive prices. The Group
continuously pays close attention to the market trends and
consumer behavior, and research on latest hot items to satisfy
the ever-changing customers’ needs.

Technology and Industry Innovation

Apart from its own development, the Group is also committed
to providing SMEs with the best e-commerce services and
all-rounded intelligent retail solutions, helping businesses
to transform to digital and traditional industries to innovate.
The Group not only supports businesses to streamline costs
and improve efficiency, but also empowers customers to
achieve operational excellence through the flexible use of the
capabilities of the Bonjour Technology platform.

In order to build an effective ecosystem and leverage on
partnership to accelerate growth, the Group entered into
cooperation agreements with various strong strategic partners,
including industry-leading companies and groups such as
China Mobile Hong Kong, Huawei Cloud, CEN, ATOME, Hong
Kong Science and Technology Youth Federation, and Hong
Kong Federation of Education Workers, to drive for a win-win
collaboration.

To enable traditional business to transform to new business
models, the Group has established the “Hong Kong Industry
Innovation Centre” (HKIIC), which aims to support the
digital transformation of business by combining “industry +
technology + capital”. The HKIIC also serves as the Hong
Kong site of the “Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator”, offering one-stop services for
office sharing, start-up incubation and acceleration, financing
facilitation and ecosystem development. Both the Guangdong
Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator
and the Hong Kong site were approved for inclusion into the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP) as an
accelerator recognised by Cyberport.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

Exploring Beauty Business

During the Year, the Group developed beauty services led
by experienced experts in the sector through the brand-new
Suisse Reborn beauty center which will offer one-stop new
experience of healthy lifestyle and beauty to customers. The
first Suisse Reborn beauty center was opened in June 2022.
Further, the Group actively explored the possibility of expanding
into aesthetic medical business under the development
approach of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful Life”. Bonjour Health
Limited (“Bonjour Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, commenced strategic business discussion with leading
aesthetic medical experts in Hong Kong to develop business
development in the aesthetic medical market. The Group
expects to capture enormous opportunities in markets across
the Greater Bay Area and even Asia with quality aesthetic
medical services. This led to the second shop Suisse Reborn
Medical opening in September 2022, managed by experienced
experts in the sector which will offer one-stop new experience
of healthy lifestyle and beauty to customers.

3C Product Business

In early 2021, the Company took an initiative to diversify its
product line by tapping into the 3C product business and
capturing its growth potential, as the 3C product business
caught the Company’s interest by its high-turnover and large-
volume nature, which was expected to generate a stable and
growing profit for the Company as its business expanded.

As a pilot run and in agreement with the Service Companies,
the 3C product business was conducted using a cost-plus
pricing strategy, as this business model would provide the
customers procured through the Service Companies with
adequate incentives to buy and resell the Company’s 3C
products, and hence ensure a stable profit for the Company.

In conducting the 3C product business, the Company acted
as a “Principal” and it bore various transaction risks (i.e.
credit risk, inventory risk, legal risk, etc.). With its established
branding and goodwill, the Company operates as an essential
and value-added party to the 3C product business. The
Company’s reputation not only ensures a wider customer base
for consumer products but also provides assurance to relevant
suppliers and customers when securing orders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)
° 3C Product Business (continued)

Due to the logistic restrictions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic, the 3C product business was suspended in July
2021. As the COVID-19 lockdown restriction relaxed slightly
in early 2022, the Company resumed its 3C product business
using the same business model in March to July of the same
year. However, due to the resurgence of COVID-19 cases
and the subsequent lockdown measures imposed by the
PRC government, the Company again had to suspend its 3C
product business in August 2022. The 3C product business will
resume when economic situation improves in 2023.

Strategic cooperation

During the Year, Bonjour Technology, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a non-binding Memorandum of Understanding
(“Memorandum of Understanding”) with Loving Home Foundation
Ltd. (XBEE£ARAT) (“Loving Home Foundation”) and
Runnovation Limited (E#ERI35ARAE]) (‘Runnovation”), which
represents a preliminary understanding between Bonjour Technology,
Loving Home Foundation and Runnovation in relation to a potential
cooperation, to complement each other’'s strengths, to achieve
mutual benefits and win-win outcome.

According to the Memorandum of Understanding, Bonjour
Technology, Loving Home Foundation and Runnovation unanimously
agreed to promote comprehensive cooperation partnership between
the three parties, so as to provide all-round technology support,
for local convenience stores operated under the Loving Home
Foundation; to promote digital transformation of social welfare
organisations in Hong Kong; and to enhance technology innovation
and transformation, as well as to promote the development of local
industries in Hong Kong and benefit the underprivileged community.

Based on the new concept of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful Life”, the
Group has been actively promoting “technology + consumption”
since 2020 and leading the new 5G digital economy. The Group
has upgraded from a traditional beauty industry retailer to a global
e-commerce company, and is committed to provide consumers
with international general merchandise products and professional
services, as well as to provide the best quality of e-commerce
services for Hong Kong small and medium-sized enterprises.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)
Strategic cooperation (continued)

Bonjour Technology, supported by the industrial digital innovation
platform, has developed major businesses such as big data
integration, industrial innovation incubation service, and science and
technology investment, providing Hong Kong’s incubation of science
and technology with platform support through the accumulation
of various innovative resources, which in turn helps realise the
industrialization of scientific and technological achievements, and
realizing the strategic policy of Hong Kong industry going global.

The Memorandum of Understanding aims to promote the upgrade
and transformation of local industries service to the community
in Hong Kong, the transformation of technology innovations,
benefit the general public and provide effective services for the
grassroots citizens. The three parties agreed to enter comprehensive
cooperation, carry out organisation transformation, strengthen
the synergy mechanism for conducting industrial and technology
innovation, which will bring significant opportunities. The Board
believes that the Memorandum of Understanding will further
promote the sustainable development and steady growth of the
Company, provide profitability and bring considerable returns for the
Shareholders.

Outlook

Digital transformation reshapes all industries. Since commencement
of business transformation from early 2020, the Group has
continuously renovated its business model with the aim to produce
sustainable growth and high net worth to the shareholders. Main
focus of the Group has been ‘Technology+ Consumption’ to leverage
on technology to accelerate consumption. This will continue and
will expand to create an innovated business ecosystem not just for
the Group but also a platform for all enterprises who would like to
digitally transform their businesses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook (continued)

The Group’s retail business is renovated via HKMALL. HKMALL
is more than a Bonjour online shop, it is an eCommerce platform
which allows merchants to set up their own e-shops seamlessly on
HKMALL and sell merchandise online. HKMALL will be expanding
its functions to provide one-stop services to the SMEs for them to
operate their own e-shops on HKMALL. This will provide a pathway
for SMEs in Hong Kong to digitally transform their traditional
business quickly into new business model. As HKMALL is a global
eCommerce platform, hence it will continue to offer services to the
Group as well as our merchant partners to sell merchandise to 34
countries globally across 44 market platforms. Since the epidemic
has permanently transformed the consumer behaviour to shop
digitally, this will offer enormous business potential in HKMALL'’s
service offerings.

The digital transformation also occurred offline at shop front. It is
world trend that consumer experience is no longer restricted to just
physical stores or online, but consumers will need to be satisfied
by combining both online and offline experience (020). Going
forward, having reconstituted the retail model from traditional mode
of ‘location-product-consumer’ to the innovated ‘consumer-product-
location” new retail mode, the Group will continue to transform all
physical stores into new retail O20 shops combining offline with
online experience, powered by technology/Al and big data. This aims
to provide a totally new experience to consumers when they visit
Bonjour’s stores. In this respect, the Group is working with many
technology partners in collaboration to provide this digital experience
on our platforms both physical and online.

On product side, the Group will continue to transform the traditional
retail of pure beauty products to a brand new business ecosystem
of full range of products in ‘Beauty, Health & lifestyle’ including
technology products. The diversification of products will continue
to satisfy changing consumer needs and to create a ‘Better Life’
for all, whilst sole agency brands and private labels will continue
to be nurtured. This helps to diversify our revenue portfolio for risk
management and profitability enhancement.

Digital transformation applies not just to front-line, but also in internal
transaction processing. By using technology, internal processes
and structure can be streamlined and become more efficient. This
will help control the overall costs, and generate higher value per
headcount. This will also help the organization to become ‘green’ by
saving physical resources via conducting transactions in a digital and
paperless manner.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Outlook (continued)
Conclusion

Overall, despite the headwinds to Hong Kong’s economic recovery
resulting from the fifth wave of COVID-19 outbreak in the first quarter
of 2022, the improved economic sentiment and further relaxation
of social distancing measures towards end of 2022 and lifting
of travel restrictions in January 2023, the outlook for economic
recovery in 2023 is positive and encouraging. Bonjour in its digitally
transformed business model to an integrated online/offline platform,
working in collaboration with value added technology and business
partners, and providing services to own subsidiaries as well as
third parties SMEs, Bonjour is well positioned to stage a timely
rebounce with the revive of the economy to capture opportunities
in new retail technology, e-commerce platform development and
aesthetic medical business, in order to provide better returns to its
shareholders.

Financial Review
Overview

Despite Hong Kong was entering recovery in 2022, the pace was
very slow and gradual. In Mainland China, more stringent measures
were implemented to control COVID-19, many major cities were
facing ‘close down’ for several months. This has continued to
significantly affect Bonjour’s revenue sales which traditionally were
reliant on Mainland visitors. As a result, the revenue dropped
by approximately 70.4% to HK$185.7 million in comparison to
last year of HK$627.0 million. Bank and cash balance as of 31
December 2022 amounted to approximately HK$17.9 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$41.8 million). The liquidity level
has improved as proceeds came in from disposal of subsidiaries
to third parties at approximately HK$900.0 million consideration.
Due to the assets held for sale at the year end of 2021 was
being disposed in 2022, the net current liabilities were increased
from approximately HK$55.3 million as of 31 December 2021 to
approximately HK$169.7 million as of 31 December 2022. The
current ratio of the Group was reduced from approximately 0.92 as
of 31 December 2021 to approximately 0.36 as of 31 December
2022. The Management of the Group has active plans to improve
the financial results leveraging on digital transformation to achieve
ultimate profitability as well as long term sustainable growth for the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s cash and bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$17.9 million (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$41.8 million). The Group’s bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 were
HK$138.3 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$225.5
million (excluding liabilities associated with assets classified as
held for sales)), out of which, approximately HK$53.4 million (31
December 2021: approximately HK$192.7 million) were repayable
within next 12 months. As at 31 December 2022, among the current
liabilities of approximately HK$264.1 million (31 December 2021:
current liabilities of approximately HK$662.2 million), approximately
HK$31.3 million was related to lease liability (31 December
2021: HK$21.2 million) and approximately HK$22.1 million was
mainly related to bank and other borrowings (31 December 2021:
approximately HK$171.5 million).

The Group’s net debt ratio as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 0.9 (31 December 2021: approximately 80.9), and
was calculated based on the Group’s bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities, divided by total equity of approximately
HK$155.4 million (31 December 2021: approximately HK$2.8 million
(excluding liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sales)). Total liabilities to shareholders funds was approximately
2.3 (31 December 2021: approximately 249.8). The current ratio of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 was approximately 0.36 (31
December 2021: approximately 0.92).

The Group services its debt primarily through the cash earned from
its operation.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Placing of bonds

On 2 August 2021 (after trading hours), the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”) with Venture
Smart Asia Limited, the placing agent (the “Placing Agent”),
pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed to act as
placing agent, on a best effort basis, for the purposes of procuring
placees to subscribe in cash for the two-year 9% bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of up to HK$50 million during the period
commencing from the date of the Placing Agreement and terminating
on the date falling on the expiration of six (6) months from the date
of the Placing Agreement. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 2 August 2021 for details. The Placing Agreement
was extended to 31 July 2023.

Redemption of Convertible Bonds and issue of Warrants

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 1 April
2021 and 9 April 2021, the Target Company issued the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$129,500,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) to Karfond Limited (the “Subscriber”) on 9 April 2021. On
the same day, the Company, the Target Company, Apex Frame, Mr.
Chen Jianwen and the Subscriber entered into a deed of undertaking
(the “Deed of Undertaking”) whereby the Subscriber was granted a
right of first refusal for the sale of the Property and/or the shares of
the Target Company and Apex Frame, and a co-development right in
respect of the Property, further details of which are disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2021.

Pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds, the Disposal
constituted an event which confers a right on the Subscriber to, at
its option, require early redemption of the Convertible Bonds before
its maturity date, which is 9 April 2026 (“Early Redemption”). On
the other hand, pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Bonds,
unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled,
the earliest date on which the Target Company may, at its option,
redeem the outstanding Convertible Bonds is 9 April 2024.

The Directors considered that the issue of Warrants to the
Subscriber at nil consideration would serve as a necessary and
suitable incentive for the Subscriber to (i) consent to the Disposal,
and (i) waive all its rights and claims under the Deed of Undertaking
upon Early Redemption, both of which are conditions precedent to
the Disposal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Redemption of Convertible Bonds and issue of Warrants
(continued)

Therefore, upon the Fund paying the Subscriber the outstanding
principal amount of HK$110,500,000 together with accrued interest
on behalf of the Target Company to redeem the Convertible Bonds in
full pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, the outstanding
Convertible Bonds were redeemed in full and the Subscriber’s
consent to the Disposal became unconditional and effective, and
on 29 June 2022, the Company has issued 581,578,947 unlisted
warrants conferring rights to subscribe for 581,578,947 shares
of the Company (the “Warrants”) upon full redemption of the
Convertible Bonds.

The issue price of the Warrants is nil. The exercise price (subject to
adjustment events set out in and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Warrants) of the Warrants is HK$0.19 per Warrant
Share, which represents: (1) approximately 38.686% premium to
the closing price of HK$0.1370 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the date of the announcement of the issue of the
Warrants; and (2) approximately 37.681% premium to the average
closing price of HK$0.1380 per Share for the last five consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date of the announcement of
the issue of the Warrants.

For details of the issue of the Warrants, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 March 2022, 21 April
2022, 6 May 2022, 20 May 2022, 30 May 2022, 27 June 2022 and
29 June 2022 and the circular of the Company dated 7 June 2022.

Assuming that there is no change in share capital of the Company
since 31 December 2022 and the subscription rights attached to
the Warrants are exercised in full, the number of issued shares of
the Company will be increased by 581,578,947 (the “Warrants
Shares”), representing approximately 16.56% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 30 June 2022 (i.e. 3,512,565,999
Shares) and approximately 14.21% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Warrants
Shares (i.e. 4,094,144,946 Shares).
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Dilution impact of the Conversion of Warrants

Set out below is the dilution effect on equity interest of the
shareholding structure of the Company upon the fully conversion of

FEo the outstanding Warrants.
RZIEZZH#+ZA=+—H
BHERTREDR
Upon full conversion of
RZE-_ZH#+=-H=+—H Warrants as at

As at 31 December 2022 31 December 2022
Substantial 1 EZTRG 1 EZETRE
FERR Shareholders Vigrk 4= BE#9% ik 4= #E#9%
Approximately Approximately
Number of % of issued Number of % of issued
Shares Shares Shares Shares
RS et Mr. Chen Jianwen 2,244,195,868 63.89  2,244,195,868 54.81

HEREHN (ER)NBEETE
BHE_E__F#Rr_ZE-_—F+_H
—+—RHLEFE-BEZERAEEE

No=7
/é};{;%o

—ECFEER

Dilution Impact on Earnings/(Loss) Per Share

The effects of potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (31 December 2021: Nil).

Cash Flow

Net cash outflow from operating activities for the Year was
approximately HK$126.0 million (2021: outflow of approximately
HK$108.4 million). The profit before tax was approximately
HK$164.5 million (2021: loss before tax approximately HK$220.1
million). The total amount of non-cash items amounting to
approximately HK$249.2 million (mainly depreciation expense,
provision for impairment and gain on disposal of subsidiaries)
(2021: approximately HK$63.7 million) and there was a net
decrease in working capital of approximately HK$25.5 million (2021
approximately HK$40.0 million).

Net cash inflow from investing activities for the Year was
approximately HK$460.0 million (2021: cash inflow from investing
activities was approximately HK$144.5 million), which mainly
represented net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, repayment
of rental and utility deposit and net proceeds from disposal of the
financial assets at FVTOCI.

Net cash outflow from financing activities for the Year was
approximately HK$358.0 million (2021: outflow of approximately
HK$10.1 million), which mainly represented increase in amount due
to the controlling shareholder, net repayment of borrowings and
proceeds from bank borrowing and placing of bonds.

Litigation
As at 31 December 2022, the Group has been involved in numerous
ongoing legal proceedings and claims. The management has made

full provision for the accrued rentals and has been pursuing favorable
settlement solutions with the plaintiffs.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Foreign Exchange and Bank Borrowing Interest Rate
Exposures

The Group has limited exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations
given that most of its assets, receipts and payments are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Macau Pataca and Renminbi
with a few denominated in Japanese Yen and Euro. The Group will
continue to monitor its foreign exchange receipts and payments
and the gearing levels on an on-going basis and, if necessary, will
hedge the foreign exchange exposure by forward foreign exchange
contracts. As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings
were not dominated in foreign currency.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and other borrowings
(excluding liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sales) amounting to approximately HK$41.8 million (31 December
2021: approximately HK$197.5 million (excluding liabilities
associated with assets classifies as held for sales)). The bank
borrowings were arranged at both fixed interest rate and floating
interest rate basis at short-term inter-bank offer rates.

Capital Structure

During the Year, the Company did not issue or allot new shares.

The total number of issued and fully paid Shares as at 31 December
2022 was 3,512,565,999 shares (2021: 3,512,565,999 shares).

Charges on Group Assets
As at 31 December 2022, none of the assets of the Group were

pledged (31 December 2021: approximately HK$479.3 million) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

Very substantial disposal in relation to the disposal of
the entire issued share capital of the Target Company;
Major transaction in relation to investment in a fund; Issue
of warrants under specific mandate; and Discloseable
transaction in relation to the Tenancy Agreement

On 28 March 2022, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to sell and CR Business Innovation
Investment Fund L.P (the “Fund”) agreed to purchase one ordinary
share (the “Sale Share”) of Apex Centric Investment Limited (a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the “Target Company”)
at an aggregate consideration of HK$900,000,000, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“Disposal’).

The Target Company directly holds and owns 100% of the issued
shares of Apex Frame Limited (“Apex Frame”), which is the legal
and beneficial owner of all those pieces or parcels of ground
situated lying and being at Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
and respectively registered in the Land Registry as LOT NO. 458
IN DEMARCATION DISTRICT NO. 443 AND LOT NO. 488 UB
DEMARCATION DISTRICT NO.443 TOGETHER with the messuages
erections and buildings thereon now known as NOS. 36-42 and
NOS. 44-50 WANG WO TSAI STREET, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong (the “Property”).

On 28 March 2022, Bonjour Investment Management Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, “Bonjour Investment”),
CR Capital Investment (Cayman) Limited (“CRCI”) (together with
Bonjour Investment, the “Limited Partner(s)’) and CR Business
Innovation Investment GP Company Limited (the “General
Partner”), entered into a limited partnership agreement (the
“Limited Partnership Agreement”) and a subscription agreement
(the “Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties
have agreed upon, among other things, that the Limited Partners
shall contribute a maximum of HK$550,000,000 to the Fund subject
to the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. The principal
investment of the Fund is the acquisition of the Property, which
involves the Fund acquiring the Sale Share from the Company (the
“Investment”).
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)

Material Acquisitions or Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures (continued)

Upon completion of the Disposal (“Completion”), (i) the Target
Company would redeem all the outstanding convertible bonds
previously issued to Karfond Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of FEC (“Karfond”), at its principal amount of HK$110,500,000
together with accrued and unpaid interest up to and excluding
the date of such redemption; and (i) the Company would issue
581,578,947 unlisted warrants (the “Warrants”) conferring rights
to subscribe for 581,578,947 shares to be issued by the Company
upon exercise (the “Warrant Shares”) at the exercise price of
HK$0.19 per Warrant Share with an aggregate face value of
HK$110,500,000 to Karfond.

Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, upon Completion,
the Company (or its subsidiary/affiliate) and the Fund will enter into a
tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”’), whereby the Fund
will lease the Property to the Group for the Group’s use for a term of
four years commencing on the date of the Completion. The annual
rent payable by the Group are HK$27,000,000, HK$27,800,000,
HK$28,644,300 and HK$29,503,629 for the first, second, third and
forth year of lease. The Property will continue to be used by the
Group as premises for its operation.

The Disposal, the Investment, issue of the Warrants and the entering
into of the Tenancy Agreement are contractually inter-conditional
upon each other.

The Disposal, the Investment, the issue of the Warrants and
the specific mandate to authorise the Directors to issue the
Warrants and the Warrant Shares upon exercise thereof and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company, which was obtained at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 27 June
2022. Completion of the Disposal, the Investment, the issue of the
Warrants and the Lease took place on 29 June 2022.

For further details of the Disposal, the Investment, the issue of the
Warrants and the Lease, please refer to (i) the announcements of the
Company dated 28 March 2022, 30 May 2022 and 29 June 2022;
(ii) the circular of the Company dated 7 June 2022; and (iii) the poll
results announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
The Disposals

During the period from 22 April 2022 to 14 February 2023, the
Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, made the Disposals
of an aggregate of 135,156,000 ordinary shares issued by Town
Health International Medical Group Limited (“Town Health Shares”).

For further details of the Disposals, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 14 February 2023.

Save as disclosed herein, there was no material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the
Year.

Significant Securities Investments

The investment objective of the Group is to achieve earnings and
enhance the corporate value to the Shareholders. The strategy of the
Group is to identify and invest in both listed and unlisted investments
and other related financial assets with potential of growth within their
industries. The Group has no specific industry focus on potential
investment.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had financial assets at
FVTOCI through equity investments in Town Health International
Medical Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 3886) (“Town Health”) with a total market value of
approximately HK$24.4 million, accounting for approximately 4.8%
of the Group’s total assets (31 December 2021: approximately
HK$71.2 million, accounting for approximately 10.2% of the Group’s
total assets). Throughout the Year, the Group only held two financial
assets and the change on the fair value of such financial assets
amounted to a gain of approximately HK$13.3 million for the Year
(2021: gain of approximately HK$8.1 million). The market value of
the financial assets will be affected by the financial performance of
Town Health. In addition, the fair value for the unlisted securities was
determined by the directors with reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer by using market comparable
approach which is based on enterprise value-to-sales ratio on
certain market comparables (level 3 fair value measurements). To
mitigate relevant risks, the Group will monitor the trends of macro
economy to optimise its investment strategies in response to market
conditions. When considering future investment, the Group will
assess the results of operations and compliance of the investees to
prevent receiving no future economic benefits.
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BONJOUR

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

The Board will consider plans for investments and capital assets
which can improve the Company’s profitability and liquidity.

Change of auditor

RSM Hong Kong (‘RSM”) resigned as the auditor of the Company
with effect from 10 June 2022. On the same day, the Board, with the
recommendation of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”), appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the
new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of RSM and to hold office until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 10 June 2022
and 20 June 2022.

Events after the reporting period

Winding up of Hop Fung Lung Limited (“HFL”) (formerly known
as Bonjour Cosmetic Wholesale Center Limited)

On 9 January 2023, a winding-up order was made by the High Court
against HFL, a subsidiary of the Company, at the hearing of the
Petition pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The Official Receiver of Hong Kong has been appointed as the
provisional liquidator of HFL. For further details of the winding-up,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 9 January
2023 and 17 January 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Financial Review (continued)
The Further Disposals

On 23 February 2023 and 7 March 2023, the Company, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, made the disposals of an aggregate of
26,345,586 Town Health Shares (the “Further Disposals”).

For further details of the Further Disposals, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 23 February 2023 and 7
March 2023.

Save as disclosed herein, no material events happened subsequent
to the Year and up to the date of this report.

Human Resources

The Group adheres to a strong belief that one of the most valuable
assets of a corporation is its employees. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group had approximately 194 (2021: approximately 270) full-time
and part-time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland. Staff
costs including Directors’ emoluments for the Year were significantly
streamlined at approximately HK$68.1 million (2021: approximately
HK$96.8 million).

The Group values its human resources and recognizes the
importance of attracting and retaining qualified staff for its continuing
success. Remuneration packages are generally structured by
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. In addition,
share options and discretionary bonuses are also granted to eligible
employees based on individual’s performance. The Group also
provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical insurance
schemes, staff purchases discounts and training programs for our
employees.

Annual Report 2022
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BONJOUR

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN, Jianwen (“Mr. Chen”), aged 60, is the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and an executive Director. Mr. Chen was
appointed as an executive Director on 20 January 2016. He is also
a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chen is a
seasoned merchant in various businesses and is mainly responsible
for the business development of the Company. He is currently the
chairman of Haifu International Finance Holding Group Ltd (“Haifu”)
and has diverse investments in Mainland China including commercial
real estate, natural resources and manufacturing businesses. He is
also a justice of the peace of the Special Administrative Region of
Hong Kong (the “HKSAR”), a member of the Election Committee of
the HKSAR, a convenor of Inner Mongolia Autonomous Regional
Committee (Hong Kong Region) of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, the honorary president of Hong Kong
Shine Tak Foundation, the honorary manager of Nan Tien Institute
(Australia) and the founding vice-chairman of Chinese Academy of
Governance (HK) Industrial and Commercial Professionals Alumni
Association.

Mr. WAN, Yim Keung, Daniel (“Mr. Wan”), aged 64, is the vice-
chairman of the Board and an executive Director. He is also a
member of each of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He is also a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wan is mainly responsible
for the business development of the Company. Mr. Wan was
appointed as an executive Director on 7 March 2016. Mr. Wan
obtained his bachelor degree in business administration from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and his master degree in
business administration from the University of Wales. Mr. Wan is a
Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and also a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Wan has extensive experience in the financial industry with over 27
years in senior management position. Since June 2019, Mr. Wan has
been appointed as a non-executive director of China Suntien Green
Energy Corporation Limited Git X4k & 8E TR IZ 17 B B2 B) (currently
its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 0956)). He is currently the chief executive officer of Haifu. Prior
to joining Haifu, he was the executive director, managing director
and chief financial officer of Shui On Land Ltd. G5 Z B EFRA
@) (currently its shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange) (stock code: 272) from 27 August 2009 to 31 July 2015
and the general manager and group chief financial officer of The
Bank of East Asia, Ltd. Both companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. CHIU, Lai Kuen, Susanna (“Ms. Chiu”), aged 62, is an
executive Director. Ms. Chiu was appointed as an executive Director
on 31 December 2020. Ms. Chiu has extensive experience in
accounting, business management and operations. She is currently
the Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Ms. Chiu graduated
with a bachelor’s degree with first class honours in economics from
the University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom and obtained
an executive master of business administration degree from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales, a
certified information systems auditor and a member of the Chinese
Institute of the Certified Public Accountants. She was the president
of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association (China
Hong Kong Chapter) from 2001 to 2006, and the president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2013.
Ms. Chiu is currently an independent non-executive Director for
a number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board,
namely Huijing Holdings Company Limited ((ES1ZRAERAT)
(stock code: 9968), China Vocational Education Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Huali University Group Limited) (EBZEHE
ZERBERAE FIBELABEEBFRAR) (stock code: 1756) and
China Oilfield Services Limited (FR & M RFE 1S B IR A Bl (stock
code: 2883). Ms. Chiu is an independent non-executive director of
Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited (¥ & %EETHEEAT)and
an independent non-executive director of Songz Automobile Air
Conditioning Co. Ltd. (E/@NS M ZABZERHRMHBBRAR), which
is listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002454).
She was an independent non-executive director of Kato (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited (878 (B#8) #£RERAF) currently its shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2189) from 20 May 2019 to 8 August 2022. From 2006 to 2019,
she served as a senior vice president, Group Chief Representative
(Eastern China) and consultant in various member companies of the
Li & Fung Group, which principally engages in trading, distribution,
logistics and retailing businesses.

Ms. Chiu is currently a member of the Chinese People’s political
Consultative Conference of Shanghai, the treasurer of the
Education University of Hong Kong, and a member of the Women’s
Commission. She was also a member of the Equal Opportunities
Commission from 2009 to 2017, and a member of the Energy
Advisory Committee from 2014 to 2018.

In 2017 and 2018 respectively, Ms. Chiu was appointed as a Justice
of the Peace and a New Territories Justice of the Peace by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“Hong Kong Government”). Ms. Chiu was also awarded the Medal
of Honor by the Hong Kong Government in 2013. Further, Ms. Chiu
was awarded the Outstanding Women Business Leader Award by
the Hong Kong Commercial Daily in 2017, the Outstanding Women
Professionals Award by the Hong Kong Women Professionals
& Entrepreneurs Association in 2014 and the Professor Robert
Boucher Distinguished Alumni Award by the University of Sheffield in
2014.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. KWOK, Chi Shing (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 60, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee and a member of each of the remuneration committee
and the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Kwok was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 21
September 2020 of the Company. Mr. Kwok is currently a certified
public accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Kwok obtained a degree of
Master of Arts in Economics with Accountancy from The University of
Aberdeen in U.K. in July 1986. He has been a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
1991 and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Scotland since November 1989.

Mr. Kwok is currently an independent non-executive director for a
number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board, namely
DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company Limited (XEFE T
MR B IER AR AT) (stock code: 620) and Fantasia Holdings
Group Co., Limited (TEHFEZERKREBEBRAR) (stock code: 1777)
and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director for a
number of Hong Kong listed companies on the Main Board and the
GEM Board, namely of DeTeam Company Ltd (373875 [E‘A ) (stock
code: 8112, delisted on 20 June 2009) from 27 January 2006 to
22 June 2009, Grand Ocean Advanced Resources Company Limited
GLEESHERARAT) (stock code: 0065) from 27 January 2006
to 18 September 2020, Huakang Biomedical Holdings Company
Limited CER4AMEBZ2ZERBRAQF) (stock code: 8622) from
26 November 2018 to 1 September 2020, EPS Creative Health
Technology Group Limited (EPSEIEREE AR A R) (stock
code: 3860) from 23 January 2017 to 30 June 2021, Speed Apparel
Holding Limited (325 B %R B IR A 7)) (stock code: 8183, delisted
on 12 December 2019) from 23 January 2017 to 12 December 2019
and Hang Chi Holdings (8% £ %A BR 2 B]) (stock code: 8405) from
21 June 2017 to 15 August 2022.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LEE, Kwun Kwan (“Mr. Lee”), aged 60, is an independent
non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 31 August 2020. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in the University of Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of Business
Administration degree in Lingnan University in 2003. Mr. Lee is a
veteran in the insurance industry of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee had been
appointed, from July 2005 to December 2006, as the President
of the General Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong
Limited, from April 2007 to March 2011, as the member of
Insurance Training Board of Vocational Training Council, from 2011
to 2014, as the Founder and First Convener for the Insurance and
Financial Practitioners Alliance, from October 2012 to September
2016, as the member for the Insurance Advisory Committee in
the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong Kong
Government, and from 2014 to 2019, as the Vice President of The
Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is also
the Committee Member of Insurance Management Committee of
The Hong Kong Management Association since 2007, the President
of the International Asset Planner Association since 2011, the
Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA Business
Opportunities Development Alliance since September 2014, and
the Deputy Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory &
Development Concern Group since August 2019.

Mr. YAN, Sherman Chuek-ning (“Mr. Yan”), aged 60, is an
independent non-executive Director. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. Mr. Yan was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 15 September 2020. Mr. Yan is currently a practicing
solicitor and a Notary Public in Hong Kong. He is also the Managing
Partner of ONC Lawyers. Mr. Yan was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales. Mr. Yan graduated from the University of London
with a bachelor’s degree in laws and the University of Southampton
with a master’s degree in laws.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG, Iu Ming (“Mr. Wong”), aged 67, is the chief executive
officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and the company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Wong was appointed as chief executive officer of
the Company on 10 July 2020 and was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 July 2021. He is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He had been a general manager of Internal Audit of Urban Renewal
Authority. Mr. Wong is currently a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. He is also currently an executive director and
deputy chief executive officer of Haifu, a director of Global Leather
Intelligence (HK) Limited, China Leather Intelligence Limited, Innogy
Global Limited, Haifu China Petrochemical Group Limited and a
member of executive committee of The Society for the Promotion
of Hospice Care. Mr. Wong also has extensive experience in risk
controls, finance and administration, internal audit of sizable Hong
Kong public bodies and multinational conglomerates.
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BONJOUR

Directors and Senior Management Profiles (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Mr. GUO Guanghong (“Mr. Guo”), aged 41, had been the Chief Innovation
Officer and Chief Executive Officer of Bonjour Technology Development
Limited.

Mr. Guo had been the co-chief executive officer of the Guangdong Hongkong
and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator, responsible for the innovation
business and digital transformation of the Company. Mr. Guo graduated from
the Department of Electronic and Communication Engineering of South China
University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree and subsequently studied
as a postgraduate in finance at Sun Yat-sen University. Mr. Guo is a member
of InstMC and holds Chinese Legal Professional Qualification Certification,
China Computer Software Technology Advanced Programmer certification,
Project Management Professionals (PMP) Certification, etc. From 2004 to
2016, he worked with Ericsson as a senior engineer, senior solution architect,
technical manager, etc, responsible for the project structure and technical
management of major domestic and overseas projects. From 2016 to 2021,
he worked with China Mobile Hong Kong Corporation Limited as the head
of the Network Department and the Enterprise Solution Department, and
subsequently acted as the Vice President of the Government and Enterprise
Marketing Department. Mr. Guo has been involved in the information and
communication technology industry for over ten years and is familiar with 5G,
internet of things, cloud computing, artificial intelligence and other emerging
technology applications and their empowerment to the industries and
enterprises. Mr. Guo was invited to give speeches at the Asian Leadership
Roundtable Greater Bay Area Conference (GBA Conference), the Asian
Finance Forum (AFF), the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE), the
Digital China Building Summit, the International Institute of Electronics and
Electrical Engineers (IEEE), etc.

Ms. SU Jie (“Ms. Su”), aged 38, is the Chief Executive Officer of HK Mall
Limited.

Ms. Su is committed to helping in Hong Kong local enterprises to create
digital value and achieve digital transformation. Ms. Su received her
bachelor’'s degree in Arts Management from the Department of Arts
Management of the Central Academy of Drama, and her master’s degree in
the Integrated Marketing and Financial Marketing from the SPACE School
of The University of Hong Kong. She is now studying her third master’s
degree in Enterprise Digital Transformation and Corporate Strategy. Ms. Su
specializes in Internet electronic payment and cross-border e-commerce,
covering marketing, platform operation, content creativity, 020 and
enterprise digital transformation solutions. She worked as a public relations
manager at LAFASO, a subsidiary of Vipshop. In 2011, she was in charge
of fast payment brand marketing and establishment of public opinion report
system in Alipay. In 2013, she participated in Taobao’s payment business
in Hong Kong and Macao and the innovative payment operation of “Global
Tour”, responsible for Alipay’s local market and operation in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and the establishment of the business
basis of Hong Kong-Macao wallet, which serves as the earliest pioneer
and promoter of cross-border e-commerce and mobile payment in Hong
Kong and Macao. Moreover, she worked with “Bonjour” and witnessed
the breakthrough development of cross-border electronic payment and
e-commerce in Hong Kong from zero to one. In 2019, Ms. Su acted as
the deputy general manager of Alibaba’s local Lifestyle Catering Marketing
Department, responsible for the development and delivery of the commercial
advertising system as the national KA general manager. In 2020, she was re-
appointed as the head of the Digital Media and Entertainment Department,
fully responsible for the Custom Drama Center and the Hong Kong TV
Series, the core customized drama development, IP procurement and TVB
strategic cooperation, and the creation and establishment of a commercial
drama production management system. After that, she was transferred to the
Cloud Intelligence Department, responsible for DingTalk’s internationalization
and the digital innovation of the Group, and promoting smart management
solutions of Cloud and DingTalk.
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Corporate Governance Report

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the Year, the
Company has complied with the code provisions prescribed in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) set out in the
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Year.

Board of Directors
Composition of the Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors, of
whom three are executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Jianwen, Mr.
Wan Yim Keung, Daniel and Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna and three
are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Chi
Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning. Each
of the Directors’ biographical details is set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management Profiles” of this report.

Annual Report 2022
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BONJOUR

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Composition of the Board of Directors (continued)

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. To the best knowledge of the Company, there
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among members of the Board. All executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience
and expertise to the Company.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year,
Mr. Chen Jianwen, an executive Director, and Mr. Wong Ilu Ming,
respectively continue to be the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. During the Year, the roles and duties of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer have been separately undertaken by different
officers.

Mr. Chen Jianwen, the Chairman, is responsible for the leadership
of the Board, assignment of responsibilities among members of
the Board, and maintaining the proper conduct and proceedings of
meetings of the Board and the Shareholders, and overseeing the
Group’s overall direction and strategic planning. In addition, the
chairman of the Company also plays a key role in encouraging all the
Directors to actively contribute to the Board affairs and establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures.

Mr. Wong Iu Ming, the Chief Executive Officer, is responsible for
managing the business and affairs of the Company, recommending
and implementing strategic, business and operating plans,
directing and overseeing the activities of the Group, developing and
implementing operational policies under the strategic directions
adopted by the Board, developing and recommending organizational
structure, and ensuring that the Board has the required information
to fulfill its duties.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Functions of the Board of Directors

The Company is governed by the Board which is responsible for
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board is accountable to
Shareholders for the development of the Group with the goal of
maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while balancing broader
stakeholders’ interests.

The Board is also responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company, overseeing the Group’s businesses and evaluating the
performance of the Group. Besides, the Board also focuses on
overall strategic development of the Group and its policies with
particular attention paid to the growth and financial performance of
the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the business/
functions, while reserving certain key matters in making strategic
decision for its approval. When the Board delegates aspects of
its management and administration functions to management, it
has given clear directions as to the powers of management, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where management
shall report back and obtain prior approval from the Board before
making decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on
such confirmation, considers that Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning are independent.

Annual Report 2022
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BONJOUR

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors’ Appointment and Re-election

Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and Mr. Yan Sherman
Chuek-ning, as the independent non-executive Directors, each has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of one
year commencing from 31 August 2020, 15 September 2020 and 21
September 2020, and will be renewed unless and until terminated by
either party serving not less than 30 days’ written notice.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), Mr. Kwok Chi Shing and
Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year, all Directors received regular briefings and
updates on the Group’s business, operations, risk management
and corporate governance matters. Materials on new or changes
to the legal and regulatory environments applicable to the Group
were provided to the Directors. The Company had arranged an in-
house training in November 2022 to Mr. Chen Jianwen, Mr. Wan Yim
Keung, Daniel, Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan,
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning. All Directors
are required to provide the Company with his or her training record.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Directors’ Training (continued)

A summary of training received by the Directors for the Year
according to the records provided by the Directors is as follows:

Reading
Training materials
organised by updating on
professional new rules and
organizations regulations
RESFR
EEKRBEN SERORFRN
EENH4A Name of Directors Byt | B+ 8
BITES Executive Directors
FRfEE et Mr. Chen Jianwen v N4
FIEREE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel v v
HElEZ L Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna v v
BIERITES Independent non-executive Directors
EFREERE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan v v
PEMLE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing v v
I ELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning v v
EEgERREETETER Board Meetings and Board Practices

EFgABFRETRIORER &
FETRRAEAMBAEZEUNREESFE
FHRRZBRATRTERZ -EFFR
REEFEEZRTHRERSTRZ
ZRFEFB BEMBEESHERSE
R mEEAARE A RBZAH
WE(T2AWE)) BERBELEEE
ATHRERDNEBRSEMANE
FEERIMDEFREEFTTETEE
M- ZRERFEXH BEEFEU
BRETZEMERZEN  LEUR
EXEERZLATRFRFHMBER
E-2REFHAESAAMEZR
RERERB MABDMEEENDES
CRHEEMAMBEFEZRTEN-
AEMETEERREFEEERRER
BRABT THNEFERHEEEET
EFEEREFFEZER.

36

The Board meets at least four times a year regularly, and the Board
will also meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision in advance of each Board meeting and all
Directors are given the opportunity to include matters for discussion
in the agenda. The company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) is responsible for distributing the notice and
agenda of Board meeting and detailed documents to the Directors
prior to the Board meetings in accordance with the CG Code and the
Articles of Association of the Company to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters discussed
in the Board meetings so that they may receive accurate, timely
and clear information. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who regularly updates the Board
on governance and regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is
also responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings
are observed and providing opinions to the Board on matters
in relation to the compliance with the procedures of the Board
meetings.

Annual Report 2022
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board of Directors (continued)
Board Meetings and Board Practices (continued)

Any Director wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her
duties, he or she may take independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense. The Directors are encouraged to update their
skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through their initial
induction, ongoing participation in Board and committee meetings,
and through meeting with key members of the management.

During the Year, fifteen regular Board meetings were held. The
attendance records for the Directors’ meetings are set out below:

Directors’
Attendance
BEEHERY
BITES Executive Directors
BRI E Mr. Chen Jianwen 15/15
FlEEEE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 15/15
HMREEL T Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna 15/15
BIERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
LEMASE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 15/15
THEEEE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 15/15
BOERE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 15/15
BRERERXE General Meeting

REEE AR EBHE—XKREK
g AR _ZE__#XA_+tHZA
BEHREREFINAS B ELEET
Lo( I

During the Year, the Company convened one general meeting, which
was the extraordinary general meeting held on 27 June 2022. The
attendance record is set out below:

Directors’
Attendance
EEHERY
BITES Executive Directors

RRfE SR Mr. Chen Jianwen 1/1
FlERITE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 1/1
st Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna 1/1

BiERITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BEM L Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 1/1
TEBRE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 1/1
;TR E Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 1/1

—ECFEER
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) on 17 June 2003 with written terms of reference no
less exacting terms than the CG Code. At present, members of
the Audit Committee comprise three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan and
Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning. Mr. Kwok Chi Shing is the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the effectiveness of both external audit and risk management
and internal control systems. The audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee and audited by the independent auditor of the
Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited.

The Audit Committee acts as an important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditor in matters within the scope of the
Group’s audit. The duties of the Audit Committee are to review and
discuss on the effectiveness of external audit, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, the Company’s annual
report and accounts, interim report and to provide advice and
comments to the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.
The Audit Committee meets regularly with the management and the
external auditor to discuss the risk management and internal control

A HMBEEREAL SEBRFEM  systems, financial reporting system, the accounting principles and
zg .:Jrl_ B BB o R AREE > 847 practices adopted by the Group. During the Year, eight meetings
NREBZE-BREZELTETZZEFE were held unaudited. The attendance records for the Audit
fi %ﬁu wT Committee meetings are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
REZHER
ﬁ’f?ééﬁﬁﬁﬁ Members of the Audit Committee
PLEMITE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 8/8
%ﬂﬁ?ﬁi Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 8/8
I ELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 8/8
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written
terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management and makes recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of non-executive Directors. No member of
Remuneration Committee should be involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee will consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-based
remuneration and review and/or approve matters relating to share
schemes under chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing, and the vice-chairman of the Board and
the executive Director, Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel. Mr. Lee Kwun
Kwan is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. During the
Year, one meeting was held to review the remuneration packages
of all the Directors and the senior management. The attendance
records for the Remuneration Committee meetings are set out
below:

Members’
Attendance
REZHER

HFMNEEERE Members of the Remuneration Committee
FEBERE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 1/1
FIEREE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 1/1
PEMLE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 1/1

EEFMO2EREINEALINHE
REAUKRERNTRIEE - BEZ-T
T THE+ZR=+—HLEEEZESE
B EHNMBRERWE 140

—ECFEER

The remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to their
duties and responsibilities in the Company as well as the prevailing
market conditions. Details of emoluments of Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 16 September 2005 with written terms of reference
no less exacting terms than the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for nominating potential candidates for
directorship based on the candidates’ qualifications, business
experience and suitability to the Company, reviewing the nomination
of the Directors, making recommendations to the Board on such
appointments and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee adopted the board diversity policy on 22
August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 14 December 2018 which sets out the nomination
criteria and procedures for the Company to select candidate(s)
for possible inclusion in the Board. The Nomination Policy could
assist the Company to achieve board diversity in the Company and
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and its corporate governance
standard.

When assessing the suitability of a candidate, factors such as the
qualifications, skills, integrity and experience will be taken into
consideration as a whole. In the case of independent non-executive
Directors, they must further satisfy the independence criteria set
out within Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Since the selection of
candidates should ensure that diversity remains a central feature of
the Board, a range of diverse perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional
experience would be considered.

The process to identify potential candidates for the Board would be
as follows:

(1) identifying potential candidates, including recommendations

from the Board members, professional search firms and the
shareholders of the Company;
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board Committees (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Nomination Policy (continued)

(2) evaluating the candidates based on the approved selection
criteria through methods such as reviewing the resume and
conducting the background checks;

(3) reviewing the profiles of the shortlisted candidates and
interview them; and

(4) making recommendations to the Board on the selected
candidates.

The Nomination Policy also includes the Board succession plan
to assess whether vacancies on the Board would be created
or expected due to the Directors’ resignation, retirement, death
and other circumstances and to identify candidates in advance
if necessary. The Nomination Policy will be reviewed on a regular
basis.

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yan Sherman
Chuek-ning, Mr. Kwok Chi Shing and the vice-chairman of the
Board and the executive Director, namely Mr. Wan Yim Keung,
Daniel. Mr. Yan Sherman Cheuk-ning is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. During the Year, one meeting was held to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, and make
recommendations to the Board relating to the renewal services of

EoHERBREIOT independent non-executive Directors. The attendance records for the
Nomination Committee meetings are set out below:
Members’
Attendance
REZHER
REZEEHRE Members of the Nomination Committee

BIELE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 1/1
FiEsmiE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel 11
PELE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 1/1

EEEBBEE

EFgRN_E—_—_F="BA"-+N\B&
MECEESARECHEEE RIEH
EERESE Exgaa U ThE

EARAE -

(a) FIETREBHEABDNEXEERR
RRER MREEZ

—ECFEER

Corporate Governance Functions

The terms of reference on corporate governance functions was
adopted by the Board on 28 March 2012. The Board is responsible
for performing the following corporate governance duties with its
written terms of reference:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;
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Corporate Governance Functions (continued)

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board performed the above mentioned duties
accordingly.

Accountability and Audit

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements and
Financial Reporting

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the Year have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the accounts and presenting a
balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance, position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Auditor’s Remuneration

RSM Hong Kong was engaged as the auditor of the Company
during the Year. RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) resigned as the auditor
of the Company with effect from 10 June 2022. On the same day,
the Board, with the recommendation of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”), appointed Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited (“Grant Thornton”) as the new auditor of the Company
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of RSM and to
hold office until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company. For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 10 June 2022 and 20 June 2022. During the
Year, an amount of totaling HK$Nil was payable to the Company’s
former auditor, RSM Hong Kong, for their audit services and an
amount of HK$510,000 was paid to RSM Hong Kong for providing
non-audit services, including taxation compliance services. The
remunerations paid or payable to Grant Thornton for the audit and
non-audit services (i.e. agreed upon procedures) was amounted to
HK$2,000,000 and HK$180,000 respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board
process, as well as communications among Board members, with
Shareholders and management. According to rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary, Mr. Wong lu Ming has taken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the Year.

Board Diversity Policy

In respect of the gender diversity of the Board, as at the date of this
report, 5 Directors are male and 1 Director is female. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance, and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. It is expected that the ratio of female Directors will
reach more than 15% in the following years. The Company will
achieve this goal through active nomination of suitable candidates
with no gender limitation to be newly appointed Directors in the next
few years.

Moreover, the current gender ratio of the company workforce
(including senior management) is 49 males per 135 females,
which has increased from 59 males per 211 females of past year.
Hence, the Company has already achieved gender diversity and will
continue focusing on the area because workforce gender diversity is
associated with resources that can provide a sustained competitive
advantage to the company, which include market insight, creativity
and innovation, and improved problem-solving. Men’s and women'’s
different experiences may provide insights into the different needs
of male and female customers. Further, men and women may have
different cognitive abilities, such as men’s proficiency in mathematics
and women'’s proficiency in verbal and interpersonal skills. Therefore,
a mix of cognitive abilities in a gender diverse team may enhance
the team’s overall creativity and innovation as proved by research.
Moreover, a gender diverse team produces high quality decisions.
Although there may be some mitigating circumstances where gender
diversity can be very hard to achieve (for instance, male workers
are more commonly seen regarding physical labour and female
workers are more often seen during psychological consultation),
the Company will keep focusing on the workforce gender diversity
to maintain its current strength as well as to further improve its
competitiveness in the future.
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Accountability and Audit (continued)
Shareholders’ right
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”) on 28 March 2012. Under the
Policy, the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (interim reports
and annual reports), and its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available. Any
such questions shall be first directed to the Company Secretary at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites 3301-04, 33/F.,
Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Accountability and Audit (continued)
Shareholders’ right (continued)
Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be any number
of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings at the date of the requisition.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution(s) or circulating
any necessary statement, at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six
weeks before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the
meeting.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meetings by
sending the written requisition to the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong. The Company will verify
the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and
in order, the Board will proceed with necessary procedures.

Investor and Shareholder Relations
Shareholders’ Communication Policy
Purpose

The Company recognises the importance of providing current
and relevant information to its shareholders (the “Shareholders”).
This shareholders’ communication policy (the “Shareholders’
Communication Policy”) aims to set out the provisions with the
objective to ensure that the Shareholders and potential investors
are provided with equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders and potential investors to engage actively with
the Company.
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Investor and Shareholder Relations (continued)
Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)
General Policy

The Board shall maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders
and will regularly review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

Information is communicated to the Shareholders as well as the
stakeholders through periodic disclosure through the Company’s
financial reports (interim and annual reports), annual general
meetings and other general meetings that may be convened, as well
as by making available all the disclosures submitted to the Stock
Exchange and other corporate publications on the website of the
Stock Exchange and corporate communications, on the website
of the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and the Company’s
website at http://corp.bonjourhk.com.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders
shall be ensured at all times. Any questions, requests and comments
can be addressed to the Company by mail to 12/F., Bonjour Tower,
No. 36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong or through
the Company’s share registrar.

The Company believes that communication with Shareholders
by electronic means, particularly through its website, is an
efficient way to distribute information in a timely and convenient
manner. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the corporate
communications posted on the Company’s website to help reduce
the quantity of printed copies and hence reduce the impact on the
environment.

The Company’s website will be updated with material posted to
the website of the Stock Exchange immediately thereafter. Such
material includes but not limited to financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders shall be provided with designated contacts, email

addresses and enquiry lines of the Company in order to enable them
to make any query in respect of the Company.

Annual Report 2022
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Investor and Shareholder Relations (continued)
Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)
General Policy (continued)

The Company has reviewed the Shareholders’” Communication Policy
conducted for the year ended 31 December 2021 and considered
that the Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been well
implemented and effective.

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with Shareholders and investors.
Accordingly, the Board and the Group’s senior management
maintains close communications with investors, analysts, fund
managers and the media by various channels including roadshows,
individual interviews and meetings. The Group specifically assigns
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna, an executive Director and the chief
financial officer of the Company, being the contact person of investor
relations to respond the requests for information and queries from
the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate with the Board or management of the
Company directly.

During the Year, there were no changes in the Articles of Association.
Dividend Policy

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
on 14 December 2018 which sets out the appropriate procedure on
declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the Company.
The Company takes priority to distributing dividends in cash and
shares its profits with the Shareholders. The dividend distribution
decision of the Company will depend on, among others, the financial
results, the current and future operations, liquidity and capital
requirements, financial condition and other factors as the Board may
deem relevant. The Board may also declare special dividends from
time to time. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed on a regular basis.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems for the
Group. The systems are designed to manage the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk management
and internal control systems has been conducted annually and the
systems are considered to be effective and adequate. The Company
has engaged external professional firm to carry out the analysis
and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions on risk
management and internal control as set out in the CG Code.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
a review on both design and implementation effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the Year, the Group appointed Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited (“CGPL”) to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended by
CGPL to enhance the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the
Board. Based on the findings and recommendations of CGPL as
well as the comments of the Audit Committee, the Board considered
the internal control and risk management systems effective and
adequate.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversights
risk management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

During the Year, the following principal risks faced by the Group
were identified and classified into strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks.

Strategic Risks

Change in political and economic landscape, competitor landscape;
corporate strategy misalignment, reputation risk and risk of failure to
meet consumer’s expectation

Operational Risks

Risk of product liabilities, risk of poor customer services, risk of
technological breakdown, risk of purchasing/selling counterfeit
products and shoplifting risk and insufficient insurance for employee
compensation

Financial Risks

Liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and inflation
risk

Compliance Risks
Risk of breach of labelling requirement, licensing requirement and

risk of change of rules and regulations in Hong Kong, Macau & the
Mainland China
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, for maintaining proper accounting
records, and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to
achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified
major risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major risks
and records of management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant
risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register
is updated by management as the risk owners with addition of new
risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually,
after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks
faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk
register and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area of
responsibility so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient
manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business operation processes in
order to align risk management with corporate goals in an effective
manner.

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The
Directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit function and
are of the view that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the
business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint
external independent professionals to perform internal audit function
for the Group in order to meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Directors
will continue to review at least annually the need for an internal audit
function.

Annual Report 2022
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BONJOUR

Directors’ Report

The Board presents this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the retail and wholesale of
beauty and health-care products in Hong Kong, Macau and the
Mainland China.

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the
sections of Five-Year Financial and Operational Summary, Chairman’s
Statement, Management Discussion and Analysis, Sustainability
Report and the paragraphs below.

A separate sustainability report will be available on the Group’s
website under the “Investor Relations” section and the website of the
Stock Exchange.

The Group complies with the requirements under the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance. The Group also complies with the
requirements of Employment Ordinance and ordinances relating to
occupational safety for the interest of employees of the Group. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the Financial Year.

Key Risk Factors

The following lists out the key risks and uncertainties facing the
Group.

Global Economic Conditions

The global economic condition has been weaker than expected.
Downside risks have been increased since there is slowing growth
in emerging markets. The continuing adverse economic conditions
may affect the results of operations and financial performance of the
Group adversely.

To address economic uncertainties, the Group pursues steady
earnings growth by strengthening product portfolio, enhancing in-
store promotion, adopting careful cautious network diversification
plan on points of sales, intensifying cost controlling measures and
exploring business diversification opportunities.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)
Impact of Local and International Regulations

The business operation of the Group is also subject to government
policy, relevant regulations and guidelines established by the
regulatory authorities. Failure to comply with the rules and
requirements may lead to penalties, amendments or suspension of
business operation by the authorities. The Group closely monitors
changes in government policies, regulations and markets as well as
conducting studies to assess the impact of such changes.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
Employees

The Group recognizes the accomplishment of our employees by
providing comprehensive benefit package, career development
opportunities and internal training appropriate to individual needs.
The Group provides a healthy and safe workplace for all employees.
No strikes and cases of fatality due to workplace accidents are found
in the Year.

More than a half of our employees have been serving our Group
for more than three years. As an employee-oriented corporate,
various benefits are given to our employees to boost their morale.
Employees are entitled to annual leave, sick leave, maternity leave,
paternity leave and statutory holidays. Salaries of employees are
maintained at competitive levels while bonuses are granted on a
discretionary basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory
provident fund, statutory and medical insurance and sales
commission. The total employee benefit expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$68.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

The Group commits to managing its business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity and fairness as its
core values. All directors and employees are strictly prohibited from
exercising authority, making influenced decisions and actions or
gaining access to the Group’s assets and information through their
employment in the Group to achieve private and personal gain.
Disciplinary action would be taken if an employee has committed an
act of serious misconduct. Directors and officers liability insurance is
in place to protect the Group’s interest in case of any wrongful acts
of employees.

Annual Report 2022
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Employees (continued)

Employees’ performance review and appraisal is conducted annually.
Remuneration and promotion decisions are made according to
employees’ performance appraisal results, so as to reward and
encourage positive behaviour of employees. A structured training
and development approach has been established to ensure that
employees receive consistent training to suit business needs and
help improve their knowledge and skill, as well as building their
career in our Group.

Customers

The Group values the views and opinions of all customers
through various means and channels, including usage of business
intelligence to understand customer trends and needs and
regular analyze on customer feedback. The Group also conducts
comprehensive tests and checks to ensure that only quality products
are offered to the customers.

Most of our customers are retail customers which represented
approximately 40.66% of our total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2022. As wholesale customers usually make purchase
in bulk, they are given a discount to the retail price offered at the
outlets. We do not enter into any long-term sales agreements with
our wholesale customers. As at the end of the Year, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 59%. We have maintained
long-term well-established business relationship with our customers,
amongst which three of them have more than ten years of business
relationship with us as at the date of this report. All of our five largest
customers for the Year are Independent Third Parties.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Customers (continued)

All of our retail sales at our retail outlets are settled in cash, by
smart card, credit card or mobile digital payment. Our wholesale
customers usually settle their purchases in cash upon delivery.
However, as determined by the management on a case by case
basis, open credit terms with a maximum limit of HK$1.0 million of
30 days to 120 days may be granted to established customers with
satisfactory payment records and creditworthiness. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, credit sales accounted for approximately
approximately 70% of our total sales. Our Directors consider that
the credit policy adopted by us is prudent. During the Year, the
approximate percentage of sales settled by cash payments and
non-cash payments are approximately 30% and approximately 70%
respectively. Details of the trade receivables of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.
Up to the date of this report, approximately Nil% of the trade
receivables from the major customers has been settled.

During the Year, we did not encounter any material sales returns from
our customers. It is our policy that returned goods can be refunded
or exchanged for other products after purchase at our retail outlets
and upon receipt from online purchase subject to certain conditions
within 30 days and 7 days respectively.

Suppliers

The Group encompasses working relationships with suppliers to
meet our customers’ needs in an effective and efficient manner.
The departments work closely to make sure the tendering and
procurement process is conducted in an open, fair and just manner.

We source our products from our selected local and overseas
distributors, manufacturers and traders of which more than half of
our products are sourced from local suppliers and the rest are from
overseas including Japan, Korea, Switzerland, France, Thailand
and the Mainland China etc. We purchase our products mainly
from authorised distributors, directly from manufacturers and some
supplied by independent traders. We have never placed excessive
reliance on any one of our suppliers and our Directors anticipate that
there will not be any supply problem in the foreseeable future. Our
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 81% of our total
purchase during the Year. Five of them have more than 2 years of
business relationship with us as at the date of this report.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Key Risk Factors (continued)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers
(continued)

Suppliers (continued)

Our yearly product research and development plan will be reviewed
and modified seasonally to catch up with the fast-moving trend and
market situation if necessary. In order for us to cooperate with good
reputation partners, we have adopted supplier selection policy. We
only procure our products from our list of selected suppliers. In
selecting our suppliers, we assess on, and take into account, factors
in various aspects, including quality of their products, price rate,
popularity of their cosmetic and related products, lead time, trading
terms, advertising and promotion support and credibility of the
supplier.

Given the great variety of our products sold, we have not relied on
any single brand or any particular supplier for the provision of the
Group’s products. Our Directors consider any failure of our Group
to purchase from a particular supplier would not have any material
impact on our business.

Our overseas suppliers generally request us to pay 30% to 50%
deposit of the order sum before delivery of our products and settle
the remaining balance before or after the product arrival depending
on the sales terms. For our local suppliers, the credit period may
vary from 30 to 120 days. We generally make our payments within
the credit terms by means of telegraphic transfer, letter of credit
or cheque. Details of the trade payables of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in Note 30 to the financial statements.
Up to the date of this report, approximately Nil% of the trade
payables to the major suppliers as at 31 December 2022 has been
settled.

During the Year, the Group did not have any significant disputes with
our major suppliers.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income on page 92.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 24 May 2023 to Wednesday, 31 May 2023, both days
inclusive, during the period no transfer of shares will be registered.
The holders of shares whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Wednesday, 31 May 2023 will be
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to determine the
entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer of
shares, accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms, must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Union Registrars Limited, at Suites
3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 23 May 2023.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 170.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the Year are set out in Notes 38 and 39 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 198 to 201 and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 94 respectively.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, share
premium, share-based payment reserve and retained profits of the
Company are distributable to the Shareholders. As at 31 December
2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders amounted is HK$Nil (2021: HK$Nil).

Segment Information
An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by reportable

segments is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on page 157 to 159.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, and approved by the Board, as authorised
by the Shareholders in the AGM, having regard to their time
commitment and responsibilities, the salaries paid by comparable
companies, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. No Directors are
involved in deciding their own remuneration.

The Group offers comparative remuneration package, including
medical and retirement benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from
basic salary, executive Directors and employees are eligible to
receive a discretionary bonus taking into account of the factors
such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the Year.

The Company has also adopted share option schemes as an
incentive to the Directors, eligible employees and consultants, details
of the schemes are set out in this “Directors’ Report” under the
heading “Share Option”.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those Hong Kong
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme, which
contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and the employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme (the “Central Pension Scheme”, together with the
MPF Scheme, the “Defined Contribution Schemes”) operated by the
local municipal government, which these subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage, which was pre-determined by
the local municipal government, of the sum of basic salary and
allowance of employees to the Central Pension Scheme. The
contributions by the Group for the Defined Contribution Schemes are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the relevant rules of the respective schemes.

The Group’s contributions to the Defined Contribution Schemes
vest fully and immediately with the employees. Accordingly, (i) for
each of the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2022, there was no forfeiture of contributions under the Defined
Contribution Schemes; and (ii) there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to reduce its existing level of contributions to
the Defined Contribution Schemes as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2022, the Group did not have any defined benefit plan.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Emoluments of Directors, Five Highest Paid Individuals and
Senior Management

Details of the emoluments of the Directors, the five highest paid
individuals and the senior management of the Group are set out in
Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 163 to
168.

Equity-linked agreement

Details of the equity-linked agreement entered into during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Convertible Bonds

On 29 June 2022, all the outstanding Convertible Bonds were
redeemed in full. For further details, please refer to the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review —
Redemption of Convertible Bonds and Issue of Warrants” above in
this annual report.

Share Option
I 2003 Scheme

Share options are granted to the Directors, executives and
employees of the Company under the share option scheme
approved by a resolution in writing passed by the sole
Shareholder on 17 June 2003 and was terminated by the
Shareholders on 27 May 2009 (the “2003 Scheme”).

Il. 2009 Scheme

On 27 May 2009, the Company has passed a resolution in a
Shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option
scheme which was terminated by the Shareholders on 24 May
2019 (the “2009 Scheme”).

Annual Report 2022
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme

On 24 May 2019, the Company has passed a resolution in a
Shareholders’ meeting for the adoption of a new share option

scheme (the “2019 Scheme”).

Qutstanding share options

granted under the 2019 Scheme prior to such termination
shall continue to be valid and, subject to the vesting schedule,
exercisable in accordance with the 2019 Scheme. The vesting
period for options shall not be less than 12 months.

(1)

2

Purpose

The purpose of the 2019 Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Directors
consider the 2019 Scheme, with its broadened basis
of participation, will enable the Group to reward the
employees, the Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group.

Who May Join

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants, to take up options to subscribe for shares:

(@) any eligible employee or any of our subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity;

(b) any directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of our subsidiaries or
any associated companies;
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

(2) Who May Join (continued)

(©

any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
and

any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant
to any area of business or business development of
the Group or any Invested Entity; and

For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any options by the
Company for the subscription of shares or other securities of the
Group to any person who fall within any of the above classes of
participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors otherwise
determined, be construed as a grant of option under the 2019
Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the above class of eligible participants to the

grant of any option shall be determined by the Directors from time to

time on the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his/her contribution

or potential contribution to the development and growth of the
Group.
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Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

n

BONJOUR

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019

Scheme

(@) The initial total number of Shares which may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of all options
(excluding, for this purpose, options which have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the 2019
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group) to be granted under the 2019 Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
at the day on which the 2019 Scheme is approved

(the “General Scheme Limit”).
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019
Scheme (continued)

(b)

The Company may issue a circular to the
Shareholders and seek approval of the Shareholders
in general meeting to refresh the General Scheme
Limit provided that the total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2019 Scheme and any
other share options scheme of the Group must
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the refreshed limit and for the
purpose of calculating the refreshed limit, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or
exercised in accordance with the 2019 Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group)
previously granted under the 2019 Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group will
not be counted. The circular sent by the Company
to the Shareholders shall contain, among other
information, the information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

lll. 2019 Scheme (continued)

(3) Maximum Number of Shares Subject to the 2019
Scheme (continued)

(©

The Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in general meeting to grant options beyond
the General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
refreshed limit referred to in (c) above to participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, the Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders containing
a general description of the specified participants,
the number and terms of options to be granted,
the purpose of granting options to the specified
participants with an explanation as to how the terms
of the options serve such purpose, the information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

2019 Scheme (continued)

4)

5)

Maximum Entitlement of Each Participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the 2019 Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised
or outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued
Shares for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in
any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular
to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval in
general meeting of the Company with such participant
and his/her associates abstaining from voting. The
number and terms (including the exercise price) of options
to be granted to such participant must be fixed before the
Shareholders’ approval and the date of Board meeting for
proposing such further grant should be taken as the date
of grant for the purpose of calculating the exercise price
under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.

Subscription Price for Shares and Consideration for
the Option

The subscription price for Shares under the 2019 Scheme
will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not
be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must be a Business
Day; (ii) the average closing price of Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1
acceptance of the grant of an option.

is payable on

Annual Report 2022
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Share Option (continued)

lll. 2019 Scheme (continued)
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BONJOUR

(6) Time of Acceptance and Exercise of Option

An offer of the grant of an option may be accepted by
a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer of

grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2019 Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee,
which period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in any
event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination

thereof.

(7) Minimum Period

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is
no minimum period required under the 2019 Scheme for
the holding of an option before any options granted under

the 2019 Scheme can be exercised.

(8) Period of the 2019 Scheme

The 2019 Scheme will remain in force for a period of
10 years commencing on the date on which the 2019
Scheme is adopted and the remaining life of the 2019

Scheme is 7 years.

The total number of shares available for issue under
share option scheme is 341,256,599 shares, representing
approximately 9.72% of the issued share of the Company

as at the date of this report.

No Share option has been granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled

under the 2019 Scheme up to the date of this report.

The number of share option available for grant under the scheme
mandate of the share option scheme as at 1 January 2022 and 31

December 2022 is 341,256,599.

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of options
granted under the share option scheme of the Company during

the year ended 31 December 2022 is nil,

representing 0% of the

weighted average number of shares of the relevant class in issue of

the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

65



MmN

BONJOUR
EFEgRE (A

=4

AFEEARBEARSBHLERZ
KRBEER

BITES
BREXEE (FFE)
FlEREE (BZ/E)
HEEZ LT

BIFATESR
E AT E
FHEBSLE
BNELE

BEESEMBEI108KZRE  BE
BAERBNBERERNEERRE
FRELHBESR-FTAEREIESS
GERIEEERREFAG LBE
B

EEREREEANAERE

REAKREEH ~EBEEThsH

kg
BABZEBEFBHNARSETFEIOE
348

EFZRBAN

2RESHEHELRRTTILRE W
FoMBEXATERFEARLEZEE
BANBITURBHE BT _F
FEBES YT AW E H@%
MEBAN  BEE—HBHELTLDRI0
AW EEmBHNRIEAILE - BEBEL L
EERAXRNTILURFHZ - B T
EEFE+_AZ+—HE_ZE_Z=ZF
+-_B=Z+HASH=F HEBBHEHE
B BEEE—HBBEHAILRIOKH

EEENRKRILEAIE -BEMILES A

PiNE/N —_ID]—_LHE?&TNJD?X’ BE-_Z2_Z24F

NEZ+—HEZZ —Eﬂﬁ +
HAEBH—F HBBE#ES W

E—E%ﬁKmh%%miﬁ@ﬁm
A - EREEEEBREARAT ]I
REHmZ B2 _EF)N\A=+—
HE_Z_—&F S N\B=+HAH—
FoHBREBEN BEEE—FH &
HADRIOKRNEBDBEBNAKRIEAIE
ﬁw*%iegm@ﬂizm%w
CEAE_ZEFHAA+TREBE

_—Ehﬁ+ma%%—¢ Eék
MEBAN  BEEE—HBEHLTDRS0
AKHE@mENKRIEAIE-

66

Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Jianwen (Chairman)

Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel (Vice-Chairman)
Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Shing

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan

Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning

In accordance with article 108 of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Kwok Chi Shing and Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming AGM. All the retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 30 to 34.

Directors’ Service Contracts

All Directors have entered into a service agreement with the
Company. Each of Mr. Chen Jianwen and Mr. Wan Yim Keung,
Daniel has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of two years commencing from April 2020 will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than 30 days’ notice in writing. Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 3
years commencing from 31 December 2020 to 30 December 2023
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Kwok Chi Shing has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 21 September 2020 to 20 September 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving
not less than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 31 August 2020 to 30 August 2021 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less
than 30 days’ notice in writing. Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term of 1
year commencing from 15 September 2020 to 14 September 2021
and will continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not
less than 30 days’ notice in writing.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ Service Contracts (continued)

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation.

Directors’ Material interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts that are significant in relation to the Group’s
business

Save as disclosed in the annual report, no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its parent company, its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
company or his/her connected entities had a material interest, where
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

Indemnity of Directors

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for
the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force
throughout the Year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed under the heading
“Share Option”, the interests of the Directors and Chief Executive
Officer in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules were as
follows:

REXBKRMGZER Interest in the shares of the Company

. ZERRHYE _ HBBRTRAEY

EEfY BHREE (Btzt4) Mt Bt

Approximate

Number of percentage of

ordinary shares issued share

Name of Directors Capacity and nature (Note 4) Total capital

BREES % BHEEA 2,244,195,868 2,244,195,868 63.89%
Mr. Chen Jianwen Beneficial owner

FIEBREL BHEEA 7,300,000 7,300,000 0.21%
Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel  Beneficial owner

HERETL BHEEAA 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.03%

Ms. Chiu Lai Kuan Susanna  Beneficial owner

—ECFEER
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executive Officer Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or Associated Corporation (continued)

Interest in the shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer had, pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken to or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO, any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to be entered into
the register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or any interests which are required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
set out in the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, was interested in or
had any short position.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debt Securities

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the Year was the
Company, its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate; and none of the Directors, chief executive officer of the
Company or their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or had exercised any
such rights during the Year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business
During the Year, none of the Directors or management shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a

business which compete or may co-operate with the business of the
Group.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short Positions in the
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

REMANEE Long Positions in the Shares
LB RITRG
BABE DL
(Htzt1)
Number of Approximate
underlying FRfFIRIPEE  percentage of
RERER HTE B3/ EEtE Shares Number of issued Shares
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of interests HEARKEE Shares held (Note 1)
RIEFRAH BmEBA 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Karfond Limited Beneficial Owner (B1728) (Ht522)
(Note 8) (Note 2)
BEREEERALT REEERER 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Far East Consortium Limited Interest of controlled corporations (B1728) (B15£3)
(Note 8) (Note 3)
Far East Consortium (B.V.l) =& iE#ER 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Limited Interest of controlled corporations (H1528) (Hrzt4)
(Note 8) (Note 4)
HEARAE ZEAE R 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Ample Bonus Limited Interest of controlled corporations (B1728) (H15#5)
(Note 8) (Note 5)
Far East Consortium T EERE 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
International Limited Interest of controlled corporations (B1728) (Bi5t6)
(Note 8) (Note 6)
Sumptuous Assets Limited £ EE R 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Interest of controlled corporations (B1728)
(Note 8)
Far East Organization RELEER 581,678,947 667,578,947 19.01%
(International) Limited Interest of controlled corporations (B17£8) (Hiz#6)
(Note 8) (Note 6)
BiEESLE ZEEERE 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Mr. Chiu David Interests in a controlled corporation (B1728)
(Note 8)
MREFZL oBER 581,578,947 667,578,947 19.01%
Ms. Chiu Ng Nancy Interest of spouse (Ba#s) (Hizt7)
(Note 8) (Note 7)
B TFFR 69
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and Short Positions in the
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company (continued)

Long Positions in the Shares (continued)

Notes:

(1) These percentages have been compiled based on the total number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2022 (i.e. 3,512,565,999 Shares).

(2)  The share capital of Karfond Limited was wholly owned by Far East
Consortium Limited. Accordingly, Far East Consortium Limited is
deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares held by Karfond
Limited.

(83)  The share capital of Far East Consortium Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited. Accordingly, Far East Consortium
(B.V.I.) Limited is deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares
held by Far East Consortium Limited.

(4)  The share capital of Far East Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited was wholly
owned by Ample Bonus Limited. Accordingly, Ample Bonus Limited is
deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares held by Far East
Consortium (B.V.l.) Limited.

(6)  The share capital of Ample Bonus Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Consortium International Limited. Accordingly, Far East
Consortium International Limited is deemed to be interested in all the
underlying Shares held by Ample Bonus Limited.

(6)  The share capital of Far East Consortium International Limited was
substantially owned by Sumptuous Assets Limited with 48.6% of its
share capital and Mr. Chiu David with 0.96% of its share capital. And
the share capital of Sumptuous Assets Limited was wholly owned by
Far East Organization (International) Limited. Furthermore, the share
capital of Far East Organization (International) Limited was wholly
owned by Mr. Chiu David. Accordingly, Sumptuous Assets Limited,
Far East Organization (International) Limited and Mr. Chiu David are
deemed to be interested in all the underlying Shares held by Far East
Consortium International Limited.

(7)  These underlying Shares are held by Mr. Chiu David, as Mrs. Chiu Ng
Nancy is the spouse of Mr. Chiu David, Mrs. Chiu Ng Nancy is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Mr. Chiu David by virtue of
the SFO.

(8)  These underlying Shares are unlisted warrants issued by the Company
to Karford Limited on 29 June 2022 upon full redemption of the
Convertible Bonds.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities

Save as disclosed herein, there was no purchase, sale or redemption
by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of any listed securities of
the Company during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 58% and approximately 81% of
the Group’s purchases respectively, and the Group’s largest and
five largest customers accounted for approximately 35% and
approximately 59% of the Group’s turnover respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.

Investment in Subsidiaries

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
210 to 211.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the

whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or its
subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the Year.

71



MmN

BONJOUR
EFEgRE (A

BALTR 5

K%*E?)%%Eﬁﬁ%?ri%,ﬁ\w&ﬁ%r%ﬁ

MALTIWALITZLETRS -BEBZ
f’\%ﬁ’]#la?&"%ﬁ\ﬁiiiﬁﬁ?éﬁa‘%
BRENEL44-EFZR R KREMHR
%’%I‘ﬁ.ﬁ44?&" W5 (FRRE AL
%)T*%E)ZE%L B ERERS
(% SUMEBRZ ZHEMN L
FE%EE'J) CIRBERZHEHRE —F
HEEBT LT RWFI4ATETH
NE-BREBIRIHAERTE -

HiG I E
N_E - - FEBNEEEXEMARAS
E|COVID-19M B E & £ - R 15 BT

st (THetER)) g =2 -
EE2ENTERIEMTAS3,500F8
T(ZE - —F :3,5308T) &
TEC—FRM TR0 I% - EE B
TECTFEUR O OEBENRERE

EREHNEES i&%ﬁmﬁ/ﬁéﬂ
EHAL O BIE - _FR_T - —

fﬁﬁﬁﬁ}iﬁﬁomﬁ’&%ﬁ%mﬁ%?%m

%z?;%):%::ieﬁt‘%tg )
605,000 AKX M _E_-_—FEAHH
90, ooo)\‘x’ EEZH TR EE

COVID-19Hi HHF?EEELS,OOO%
%ﬁgeﬁ7}<$ i%ﬁ%ﬂ@kﬂﬁ;ﬁw
REBERITHNEE N BM#ESR — 2
::Eaﬁgﬁﬁmjzik%&&%
ﬁjgo

72

Directors’ Report (continued)

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as “related parties” under the applicable accounting standards.
Details of these transactions are disclosed in Note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report. In the
opinion of the Directors, the transactions disclosed as related party
transactions in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements
do not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined under the Listing Rules in force at the time
of the entering into of the relevant transactions, which is either a
de minimis transaction or under exemption, both are exempt from
the announcement, the circular and the independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Market Overview

Retail sales in Hong Kong are still severely affected by COVID-19
in the year of 2022. According to the Census and Statistics
Department (“Statistics”), for the full year of 2022, the value of
total retail sales was estimated at HK$350 billion (2021: HK$353
billion), a slight decrease of 0.9% from 2021. Despite the repeated
outbreaks of the epidemic and the variation of the virus strain since
2020 which have caused unprecedented reduction in global travel
activities, 2022 has shown a rebounce from 2021. According to
the Hong Kong Tourism Board, the total number of visitors to Hong
Kong in 2022 was 605,000 compared to only about 90,000 in 2021,
although the figure still fall short of over 50 million visitors per year in
the pre-COVID-19 period. The significant decline in tourists to Hong
Kong and the economic downturn during the prevalent period of
epidemic have continued to bring major difficulties and challenges to
the retail industry in 2022.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Crisis brings opportunities. The outbreak of the epidemic, social
distancing measures and advancement in technology have
significantly altered consumer behaviour. The business ecosystem
has transformed from traditional retail to omni-channel — fully
integrating online and offline (020) retail experience. According
to Statistics, for the year of 2022, the value of online retail sales
was estimated at HK$34.6 billion, an increase of 20.8% year-on-
year, accounting for about 9.9% of the value of total retail sales.
The trend of online retail sales is growing. The core focus of retail
transformation is the alignment and coordination among customer
channels, operation processes, payment methods and supply chain
management, Through effective electronic payment, efficient logistics
support, e-Commerce is able to meet changing consumer needs and
improve shopping experience such as enabling shopping at home at
own leisure via mobile phone, computers or other electronic devices.
Mobile e-commerce is enhanced with 5G networks available,
increasing on-the-go internet speeds and facilitating more mobile
e-commerce.

With the improved economic sentiment and further relaxation of
social distancing measures towards end of 2022, the fourth quarter
of 2022 has shown an increase of 0.9% in value of total retail sales
compared to preceding quarter. The value of total retail sales in
January 2023, provisionally estimated at HK$36.2 billion, increased
by 7.0% compared with the same month in 2022. In January 2023,
since the lifting of travel restrictions, the number of visitor arrivals
in Hong Kong reached approximately 498,690 which is 82% of full
year 2022. According to a consultancy report, Hong Kong’s retail
sales are expected to rise by 13% year-on-year to approximately
HK$395 billion in 2023, driven by the lifting of travel restrictions and
the city’s ambitious global promotional drive. Department stores
and the luxury sector will continue to revive by around 40% in 2023,
while clothing, footwear and allied products will grow by about 20%,
supported by the recovery in tourism and the strengthening RMB.
Hence overall, the outlook for economic recovery in 2023 is positive
and encouraging.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has commenced its business transformation from early
2020. On the product side, the Group expanded the product
range from pure cosmetics products to ‘Beauty, Health & Lifestyle
products, enhancing consumers experience including extension
to cover technology products such as mobile phones. In terms
of operations, the Group has leveraged on technology innovation
to transform the traditional retail business to a new business
ecosystem, of which the Group and all stakeholders including
consumers, merchants and suppliers will benefit. This is achieved
by (1) establishing an 020 system integrating offline with online
operations to enhance consumers’ shopping experience (2)
establishing a global eCommerce platform ‘HKMALL (F#E3) to
serve Hong Kong merchants as well as overseas brands across 34
countries over 44 market platforms. (3) establishing an ecosystem to
assist Hong Kong small and medium enterprises (SMEs) to digitally
transform their traditional business into new business models.

° New Retail 020

With the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic into 2022 and
the border between Hong Kong and Mainland still remain under
tight quarantine control, the number of tourist arrival continue
to slump. With the maintenance of social distancing measures,
people have turned to online shopping instead of going out to
physical stores. International retail brands have also switched
their focus to online sales. The Group was well aware of this
trend and have made transformation plans. Since 2020 and
continuing into 2022, the Group strategically optimised the
number of retail stores and transformed them into O20 stores
to provide consumers with new shopping experience while
also saving rental costs. Underperforming stores are closed for
better cost control. For existing stores, the Group has initiated
negotiations with landlords for rental discounts and critically
evaluate the need of tenancy renewal in each store. As of 31
December 2022, the Group operated 10 physical retail stores
in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group will continue to monitor
the rental market closely and review its store network for better
cost control and more efficient operations. Further, the Group
intends to explore new sources of income by utilising digital
displays in and outside stores with the control system powered
by Bonjour Technology Development Limited (“Bonjour
Technology”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The
Group will continue to leverage on technology to enhance the
shopping experience of consumers to improve sales.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

During the Year, the Group applied various leading new retail
technologies, including live streaming, intelligent shopping
guide, smart push, image search, voice search, and data
bank, to its e-commerce platform Bonjour HKMALL (& 7 5t)
(“HKMALL"), which greatly enhanced the online shopping
experience for customers.

HKMALL is an omni-channel e-commerce platform that not
only sells products and branded merchandises with exclusive
distributorship rights, but also assists small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) in expanding their sales network via
HKMALL efficiently and effectively to markets in the Greater
Bay Area and overseas countries. The Group sells authentic
goods, and offers SMEs an easy way of payment settlement,
logistics support and data services, providing a fast track to
SMEs to digitally transform their businesses. HKMALL covered
34 countries including the UK, the US, Canada, Australia,
France and Singapore, across 44 market platforms in mainland
China and overseas, including Tmall Global, Kaola, JD.com,
Facebook and WeChat Mall etc.

With the fast rise of the KOL economy, the Group has its own
direct broadcasting studio with an area of over 10,000 sq.
ft. for KOLs to conduct sales on social media. As a result,
the Group is able to enhance the interaction of consumer
experience and customer loyalty, while accumulating online
subscriptions and “Likes” to boost its turnover. As of 31
December 2022, the Group had conducted over 2,000 live
streaming broadcasts across all platforms. The Group has
cultivated more than 200 sales staff to become KOLs so
far. The group also collaborated with various association
to launch open competitions to nurture external KOLs. The
gross merchandise value (GMV) of completed orders on 020
platform (including beauty products and technology products)
amounted to approximately HK$553 million for the Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Brand Management

Currently, the Group offers over 100,000 SKUs, and distributes
over 100 well-known brands, including, exclusive distribution
of Suisse Reborn, Dr. Bauer, Yumei, WOWWOW, Dr. Schafter
and |.Skin Focus. Apart from skincare, fragrance, cosmetics,
haircare and body-care, the Group also sourced healthcare
and lifestyle products all over the world. Recently, a variety of
quality products are offered at competitive prices. The Group
continuously pays close attention to the market trends and
consumer behavior, and research on latest hot items to satisfy
the ever-changing customers’ needs.

Technology and Industry Innovation

Apart from its own development, the Group is also committed
to providing SMEs with the best e-commerce services and
all-rounded intelligent retail solutions, helping businesses
to transform to digital and traditional industries to innovate.
The Group not only supports businesses to streamline costs
and improve efficiency, but also empowers customers to
achieve operational excellence through the flexible use of the
capabilities of the Bonjour Technology platform.

In order to build an effective ecosystem and leverage on
partnership to accelerate growth, the Group entered into
cooperation agreements with various strong strategic partners,
including industry-leading companies and groups such as
China Mobile Hong Kong, Huawei Cloud, CEN, ATOME, Hong
Kong Science and Technology Youth Federation, and Hong
Kong Federation of Education Workers, to drive for a win-win
collaboration.

To enable traditional business to transform to new business
models, the Group has established the “Hong Kong Industry
Innovation Centre” (HKIIC), which aims to support the
digital transformation of business by combining “industry +
technology + capital”. The HKIIC also serves as the Hong
Kong site of the “Guangdong Hongkong and Macau Youth
Entrepreneurship Incubator”, offering one-stop services for
office sharing, start-up incubation and acceleration, financing
facilitation and ecosystem development. Both the Guangdong
Hongkong and Macau Youth Entrepreneurship Incubator
and the Hong Kong site were approved for inclusion into the
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme (CASP) as an
accelerator recognised by Cyberport.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Exploring Beauty Business

During the Year, the Group developed beauty services led
by experienced experts in the sector through the brand-new
Suisse Reborn beauty center which will offer one-stop new
experience of healthy lifestyle and beauty to customers. The
first Suisse Reborn beauty center was opened in June 2022.
Further, the Group actively explored the possibility of expanding
into aesthetic medical business under the development
approach of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful Life”. Bonjour Health
Limited (“Bonjour Health”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, commenced strategic business discussion with leading
aesthetic medical experts in Hong Kong to develop business
development in the aesthetic medical market. The Group
expects to capture enormous opportunities in markets across
the Greater Bay Area and even Asia with quality aesthetic
medical services. This led to the second shop Suisse Reborn
Medical opening in September 2022, managed by experienced
experts in the sector which will offer one-stop new experience
of healthy lifestyle and beauty to customers.

3C Product Business

In early 2021, the Company took an initiative to diversify its
product line by tapping into the 3C product business and
capturing its growth potential, as the 3C product business
caught the Company’s interest by its high-turnover and large-
volume nature, which was expected to generate a stable and
growing profit for the Company as its business expanded.

As a pilot run and in agreement with the Service Companies,
the 3C product business was conducted using a cost-plus
pricing strategy, as this business model would provide the
customers procured through the Service Companies with
adequate incentives to buy and resell the Company’s 3C
products, and hence ensure a stable profit for the Company.

In conducting the 3C product business, the Company acted
as a “Principal” and it bore various transaction risks (i.e.
credit risk, inventory risk, legal risk, etc.). With its established
branding and goodwill, the Company operates as an essential
and value-added party to the 3C product business. The
Company’s reputation not only ensures a wider customer base
for consumer products but also provides assurance to relevant
suppliers and customers when securing orders.
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Due to the logistic restrictions caused by the COVID-19
pandemic, the 3C product business was suspended in July
2021. As the COVID-19 lockdown restriction relaxed slightly
in early 2022, the Company resumed its 3C product business
using the same business model in March to July of the same
year. However, due to the resurgence of COVID-19 cases
and the subsequent lockdown measures imposed by the
PRC government, the Company again had to suspend its 3C
product business in August 2022. The 3C product business will
resume when economic situation improves in 2023.

Strategic cooperation

During the Year, Bonjour Technology, a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a non-binding Memorandum of Understanding
(“Memorandum of Understanding”) with Loving Home Foundation
Ltd. (XBEE£ARAT) (“Loving Home Foundation”) and
Runnovation Limited (E#ERI35ARAE]) (‘Runnovation”), which
represents a preliminary understanding between Bonjour Technology,
Loving Home Foundation and Runnovation in relation to a potential
cooperation, to complement each other’'s strengths, to achieve
mutual benefits and win-win outcome.

According to the Memorandum of Understanding, Bonjour
Technology, Loving Home Foundation and Runnovation unanimously
agreed to promote comprehensive cooperation partnership between
the three parties, so as to provide all-round technology support,
for local convenience stores operated under the Loving Home
Foundation; to promote digital transformation of social welfare
organisations in Hong Kong; and to enhance technology innovation
and transformation, as well as to promote the development of local
industries in Hong Kong and benefit the underprivileged community.

Based on the new concept of “Beauty, Health & Beautiful Life”, the
Group has been actively promoting “technology + consumption”
since 2020 and leading the new 5G digital economy. The Group
has upgraded from a traditional beauty industry retailer to a global
e-commerce company, and is committed to provide consumers
with international general merchandise products and professional
services, as well as to provide the best quality of e-commerce
services for Hong Kong small and medium-sized enterprises.

Bonjour Technology, supported by the industrial digital innovation
platform, has developed major businesses such as big data
integration, industrial innovation incubation service, and science and
technology investment, providing Hong Kong’s incubation of science
and technology with platform support through the accumulation
of various innovative resources, which in turn helps realise the
industrialization of scientific and technological achievements, and
realizing the strategic policy of Hong Kong industry going global.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

The Memorandum of Understanding aims to promote the upgrade
and transformation of local industries service to the community
in Hong Kong, the transformation of technology innovations,
benefit the general public and provide effective services for the
grassroots citizens. The three parties agreed to enter comprehensive
cooperation, carry out organisation transformation, strengthen
the synergy mechanism for conducting industrial and technology
innovation, which will bring significant opportunities. The Board
believes that the Memorandum of Understanding will further
promote the sustainable development and steady growth of the
Company, provide profitability and bring considerable returns for the
Shareholders.

OUTLOOK

Digital transformation reshapes all industries. Since commencement
of business transformation from early 2020, the Group has
continuously renovated its business model with the aim to produce
sustainable growth and high net worth to the shareholders. Main
focus of the Group has been ‘Technology+ Consumption’ to leverage
on technology to accelerate consumption. This will continue and
will expand to create an innovated business ecosystem not just for
the Group but also a platform for all enterprises who would like to
digitally transform their businesses.

The Group’s retail business is renovated via HKMALL. HKMALL
is more than a Bonjour online shop, it is an eCommerce platform
which allows merchants to set up their own e-shops seamlessly on
HKMALL and sell merchandise online. HKMALL will be expanding
its functions to provide one-stop services to the SMEs for them to
operate their own e-shops on HKMALL. This will provide a pathway
for SMEs in Hong Kong to digitally transform their traditional
business quickly into new business model. As HKMALL is a global
eCommerce platform, hence it will continue to offer services to the
Group as well as our merchant partners to sell merchandise to 34
countries globally across 44 market platforms. Since the epidemic
has permanently transformed the consumer behaviour to shop
digitally, this will offer enormous business potential in HKMALL's
service offerings.

79



MmN

BONJOUR

EFEgRE (A

HFELHENEARBIAECHREET
ERE - HEETLTBRRNEEE N
MEBEBY MEKLRTHERS
WO20HEBEX -BERK HRE
ETEXHFRH—EERNEXRLE
MBENMERXABEEANTEIAE
BIFEAEEREBN B REER
BREMKREMABFME  BRER020
METEE EEAERNERREEZN
WEYER AEEEHEZEARNKD
X REAMINERRGLYA
REILHEFCER-

TERFH AEEREBLUEN
ABENEREZETA2EEE A K
I8 £ & Beauty ~ Health & lifestyle |
ZRINELH BREARER AW E
HEEATHEENE R AEEBR
BB TER O GETEFEF) M
BRAEMBERMERFEESBE B
B-E2EOoMAEBRAMEASE XU
MR EEEMESRAEE -

HFCBEFEBEBRRAG MER
RARXSEE - EEBMBLEN
RO UBEEABRENERBLUIES
MR- BREDNERBRER AL E
TEEMABEBE BRHFLHE
MERNETRZ  UBHEERMNAE

HmENEES EEIRE-
i
BMEME BEN_ZE__%—=

EREEMNERFZCOVID-19EEAELS
BRBEEHTEEE D BHEELE
ERENREUR ST __FEZ
B REREEENE— T RRERR T
ECE—BRTEHFNBHE Z8
TCENRKREEEGSEREBM S A
BEN HRTEERFTLELNEE
BT A BEaNEL /BT
TE  BEERMTABEXSEERS
T ABCHNBATURE =
RN ERMERY > 218 B & MiT %
HORBELENEM REFREB IME
MEERM BFEASFTaNERR
BEEZAEFMNET UEAHERKSE
REFHFHEEK-

80

Directors’ Report (continued)

The digital transformation also occurred offline at shop front. It is
world trend that consumer experience is no longer restricted to just
physical stores or online, but consumers will need to be satisfied
by combining both online and offline experience (020). Going
forward, having reconstituted the retail model from traditional mode
of ‘location-product-consumer’ to the innovated ‘consumer-product-
location’ new retail mode, the Group will continue to transform all
physical stores into new retail O20 shops combining offline with
online experience, powered by technology/Al and big data. This aims
to provide a totally new experience to consumers when they visit
Bonjour’s stores. In this respect, the Group is working with many
technology partners in collaboration to provide this digital experience
on our platforms both physical and online.

On product side, the Group will continue to transform the traditional
retail of pure beauty products to a brand new business ecosystem
of full range of products in ‘Beauty, Health & lifestyle’ including
technology products. The diversification of products will continue
to satisfy changing consumer needs and to create a ‘Better Life’
for all, whilst sole agency brands and private labels will continue
to be nurtured. This helps to diversify our revenue portfolio for risk
management and profitability enhancement.

Digital transformation applies not just to front-line, but also in internal
transaction processing. By using technology, internal processes
and structure can be streamlined and become more efficient. This
will help control the overall costs, and generate higher value per
headcount. This will also help the organization to become ‘green’ by
saving physical resources via conducting transactions in a digital and
paperless manner.

Conclusion

Overall, despite the headwinds to Hong Kong’s economic recovery
resulting from the fifth wave of COVID-19 outbreak in the first quarter
of 2022, the improved economic sentiment and further relaxation
of social distancing measures towards end of 2022 and lifting
of travel restrictions in January 2023, the outlook for economic
recovery in 2023 is positive and encouraging. Bonjour in its digitally
transformed business model to an integrated online/offline platform,
working in collaboration with value added technology and business
partners, and providing services to own subsidiaries as well as
third parties SMEs, Bonjour is well positioned to stage a timely
rebounce with the revive of the economy to capture opportunities
in new retail technology, e-commerce platform development and
aesthetic medical business, in order to provide better returns to its
shareholders.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of at least 25%
throughout the Year.

Charitable Donations

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations totaling
HK$890,000 (2021: HK$563,084).

Auditor

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was appointed as the auditor of
the Company on 10 June 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following
the resignation of RSM Hong Kong on 10 June 2022. Details of the
change of auditor were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 June 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of
the Company in any of the preceding three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
Year have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Jianwen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

° Grant Thornton
2 [=]

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF BONJOUR HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bonjour
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 212, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred net cash outflow from
operating activities of HK$126,007,000 during the year ended 31
December 2022 and, as of that date, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$169,740,000. As stated in note 2, these events
or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

FEHERER
REESSFE

Key audit matter

Inventory valuation and allowance

EENEFUNNEERBESETE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

2REEMBRR]MNEES.2(iv) K23 -
Refer to notes 5.2(iv) and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

WR_E__&#+-_F=Z=+—H° BEBRHF
EEFEEMENI3, 755,000 8B T REEEBY
26,628,000 T MU G M FERKRMT4.8FH W

BT HERMEIME  FEEMAET]EEFEN
EE AR
At 31 December 2022, the Group held gross

inventories of approximately HK$33,755,000
and allowance for inventory of approximately
HK$26,628,000. As described in the accounting
policies in note 4.8 to the consolidated financial
statements, inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

EERINZER REEMEBEBRRERBENLE
FEEREEETEEMMRENBRFZEIRNER
o CLSE EAWHTEEEE’JH%HH ERBEARAE > FAItARE
ERNFEKTEMES

We focused on this area because the economic effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic required management to
exercise significant judgement in a period of extreme
uncertainty in determining the amount of provision
made for aged or obsolete inventory, as such there is
an increased level of judgement in the current year.

—ECFEER

EEHMGTERERBENSESSEREE !
Our audit procedures in relation to inventory valuation
and allowance included:

s MENTFEREEHNKIEHRERRERS ;
identifying and assessing aged and obsolete
inventory when attending inventory counts;

e HRHBNIERFEEFENABKETLR;
comparing the subsequent net realisable value to
the cost price of inventories;

e EBHBINFEREERERFEANEFER
KIE 5 &
reviewing the historical accuracy of allowance
for inventory and the level of inventory write-offs
during the year; and

e HOARENEFEEHEUHEEREIE
E o
performing a recalculation, on a sample basis, of
the inventory provision made.

5 4 55

17T E# 5t
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets

EENBEHNMREEMRRBESSHA

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RGEe BRI EE5.2() 180
Refer to notes 5.2(i) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RZZE-_—_F+"A=+—H> EEEEAD
BAERAREENGERTEES3,323,0008

T o
As at 31 December 2022, the Group had headquarter
and retail store classified as right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$53,323,000.

EEEROEBEEMETWEERER R &
ZEEMNRAEBEMREE WD &8 -

The carrying amounts of the headquarter and retail
stores are written down to their recoverable amounts
when the assets, carrying amounts exceeded their
estimated recoverable amount.

EEERA BTEEUR/BEEELEERMN (TRE
EEEN)) UWEEHMBRRE D FTHET
S ERNWETSKESEREYN SEENZTERE
WERBAEEANAIANEE EEE2ETBHIUE
FLEMERNEREBESFERARKREZRAEAR
ETHNGEREBRAFMEINTRETSNMRA
TEEETTRESNMG-

Management determined that each retail store is
a cash-generating unit (“CGU”) and monitors their
financial performance for the existence of impairment
indicators. Given the potential adverse impact on the
performance of the Group’s retail stores as a result
of the COVID-19 pandemic, management performed
impairment assessments for all the retail stores in
Hong Kong and Macau SARs market with reference to
valuation performed by the independent professional
valuer based on value in use calculations using future
cash flow projections.

EEEHARESTRNAMAERITIRE
BESTE HERFRNGEEE@ERN
B5181,849,0008 m o ZE B AEMN AT W
A B E LB BB S
FREEFETUEE -
Management carried out impairment assessments
for the headquarter and retail stores which have an
impairment indicator and as a result an impairment
loss of HK$1,849,000 has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year. The recoverable amounts of such assets
are determined by value-in-use calculations using
discounted cash flow projections based on the
forecasts approved by management.

BRAHAELEEE ARECHBETRTEER
B U [B] 5 B8 BF 0 e B8 K fdh 5t e FI B o

We focused on this area because significant estimation
and judgement were involved in determining the
recoverable amounts of the relevant headquarter and
retail store.

2
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EENEEENTREEENRENEREFME
THESREFERE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment process for right-of-use assets
include:

e THEEBEHNBESTRNER ;
understanding management’s process for
identifying impairment indicators;

. %E“ﬁnfﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬂ
challenging the judgements made by management
in identifying impairment indicators;

. ?ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁ%%&%
= .
evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivities of the independent professional
valuer;

. ﬁﬁ?%ﬁi&%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁiﬁ
BxREBEEME
assessing the valuation methodology and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions used to
estimate the value in use;

. %E%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%&ﬁ%%?%%ﬁ%%
B EEMNE
challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

e WMEEEEGREMNEREREN THE Re
ELBUNESRBAPMERANTERR
RigERAUFENE M ERY ;
obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management, understanding the major
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts
for each CGU and checking arithmetic accuracy
of the forecast calculation;

e REBREHF WMMEE -FAHFHERERNX)
RESEGHEER UARBERMREHRB®
WHERRTHEESEN; &
comparing the major assumptions such as
growth rates, forecasted sales and gross
margins to historical results and evaluating their
reasonableness in light of current and expected
future market conditions; and

e HHEEEENGEMBRREENAET G
EEREC
evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of the
impairment assessment by management in the
consolidated financial statements.

\Hbjj&g
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Revenue recognition

EENBHNNEEMBREtEE
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRERESHBEMRMETS.1(00i) &8
Refer to notes 5.1(iii) and 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

S EBRTFTENEES BE-EEARNEERENE®
mE - BE_E_—_F+_-_B=+—HILHE
 BEBEESXWEAN185,662,0008 T (Fh=E
CBEREETREERBEEUREMNEREE
B EEUWHT5,481,0008 75 K%110,181,000%
) o

The Group is principally engaged in the sales
of beauty, health-care, lifestyle and technology
products. The Group generated revenue of
approximately HK$185,662,000 (HK$75,481,000 and
HK$110,181,000 for sales beauty, healthcare and
lifestyle products and sales of technology products,
respectively) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

o} K T I

J1 D

EEEIRNLEFE HDEAERXZNBERETEH
Nk E&EBEENE EEERSFEREZSTAN
REBEARMRFEBNERAE KRB AEDER -
We focused on this area because of the volume and
amount of the transactions and significant judgement
is made by the management of the Group in assessing
whether the Group acts as a principal or agent and the
timing of revenue recognition.

—ECFEER

EEEH EEERaRIBCESNEFBE
Qur audit procedures in relation to the Group’s
recognition of revenue include:

e TEHkIAM EEEMNWEEIRBERKER
B OEEEEBHFEZHXTARNEBA (BHE
BRENEWERHEE) NTME ;
understanding and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policy and process, including
the management’s assessment of principal
versus agent, particularly for sales of technology
products;

e WISEIRES R TN AR5 A BT B AY
mEtREBI
obtaining an understanding of the design and
implementation of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e WMEMEMBEREN UZTZR1ITEHE
AINREH A R B E mEG EEZ
15 TR B AR A5
inspecting key customer contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify and assess the commercial
terms and conditions relating to transfer of
control of the goods with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

s BBAEN - VMANHKHERERHERNEMNE
MoHERLERFEFRNAESNEERS > Let(E
TEERE EEENW G D BRER W ;
comparing sales transactions recognised during
the year, on a sample basis, with contracts,
logistic documents and customers’ acceptance
of the goods and assessing whether revenue
was recognised in accordance with the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;

e ZHHETEXAAHEEHBBRIT ER &
XERk EEENTIEER &
arranging audit confirmation with key customers
and suppliers to confirm the commercial terms
and primary responsibilities of the Group; and

e HITOoOMBRFUBNEENAE RNOKT R
o
performing analytical procedures to identify any
unusual patterns of revenue.
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EFHHMENGBE - HMENERE
ERB - _FFERNFABER
BRrEEEe M HRERABZHH
W&o

EEHGEOMBTRENEREANRE
HthEr - EFTFAHEMENERX
ERFENBIZBAER

BERRAVBERRF EENEER
FREHEMEMN TRIEBED > ZE
HMENEERGAMBREANES
RESABREPFATHENBEREENE
B RNELUFEERERRL - ER
ESEHTHN I HESIREHM
EMAEAHRRL EFARSTZ
FEE-RILEPE BEEREEARS
EERS

EFHGRAMBRRNER

EFREEREEEEMAERM
MEBMBREENREB(LFF
PIINEKBERERREEMA T2
INEEMBERE UAHERXB/L A
HERREEYBFTRESEFEHNR
FRERMERNEARERRANR

BEEES-

RERAVBREAK EFEEF
it BEEEFELENSEN LEE
AERTHREEFELEERINSE
BoURERFECESEER
RIFEFTEER EEEBFENFL
ME N EEMBERNENS R

EREZESWHESFTRETEE
BV BREEENEE-

EES
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2022 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs wiill
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

87



MmN

BONJOUR
BizmRs (&)

REMMEBAGEMBRRNEE

(#&

e MEEERAUFTELEERE
ROEFHERENRE  LIRE
EERNBEZERE RERSE
H EEEREBELKENENER
ERRBNEFHABRFERT
BERZX - HESBEILER
ERTHERR EFFREZH
MMRERRFITFEMBRE
WEVAERERIRE > WM RAE R
REFTE MEITEENER -
EENERUBEZEERSER
HFMERSNEXBRESER &
AREHABRALEER 85
ErBAEEFEKENED -

e HEFEMBRER (BEEMNK
B)RWEERIB - BBERRE U
RIZEVBERRESE QAR
BEAXZKREE-

e T BEEERRBEENEBIH
WUV BEHESTEENEZR
B UGGV BRRERR
R-EFFEERE - EEBERH
TEENERIF-EFERE
ENEZERAKEENEE-

88

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

31 March 2023

Lam Kam Fung
Practising Certificate No.: P07822
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2022

—E-C BT —F
2022 2021
i3 FAET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
=E 31 Turnover 8 185,662 626,991
EERmAE Cost of goods sold (151,908) (577,031)
ER Gross profit 33,754 49,960
HAhug A Other income 9 7,345 74,699
HENRBASIZWE 24  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net 40 350,031 -
PAR=IIN Distribution costs (16,369) (16,681)
THHEX Administrative expenses (154,641) (253,486)
H&Z xR Other operating expenses (125) (965)
DEEEREER Share of results of a joint venture 22 (7,787) -
e RKEEZESHMELRE  Imparment loss on rental and
utility deposits (7,621) -
B 5 REMEWRRD Impairment loss on trade and
BEEE other receivables (3,625) (12,574)
I BB KR B RUREES 18 Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 17 - (3,866)
FREEENHERSR Impairment loss on right-of-use
assets 18 (1,849) (13,873)
TEEIHEN (B8 Profit/(Loss) from operations 199,113 (176,786)
MEME Finance costs 11 (34,624) (43,292)
BIATER (B518) Profit/(Loss) before tax 164,489 (220,078)
FIgiRig e Income tax credit 12 2,732 4,000
FEGEH (§518) Profit/(Loss) for the year 13 167,221 (216,078)
UTEFEEEE Profit/(Loss) for the year
wA (B8 attributed to:
ENUNGTEZ 2= DN Owners of the Company 167,221 (216,738)
FEERER Non-controlling interests - 660
167,221 (216,078)
SRR, (§518) Earnings/(Loss) per share 4.8 (6.3)3 L
BERRE#E Basic and diluted 16 HK4.8 cents HK(6.3) cents
90 Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2022

—E-C TR —F
2022 2021
bzt FET FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FEEH (E518) Profit/(Loss) for the year 167,221 (216,078)
Hthzm X)) ik Other comprehensive (expense)/
income:
BETZEHSEZHERZ  Items that will not be reclassified
EH subsequently to profit or loss:
REIRBESBEEHE  Remeasurement gains on
W long service payment liabilities 36 164 36
BRATESFAREMEZE Fair value changes of equity
W BHETAY instruments at fair value through
N EEE) other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") 20 (13,275) 8,077
(13,111) 8,113
BB GEEM HIEFE7  Items that may be reclassified
2B subsequently to profit or l0ss:
BEMB AT ZERZE  Exchange differences reclassified
BNNEERE to profit or loss on dissolution of
subsidiaries - 470
BEBINEFZERERE  Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations (118) (694)
(118) (224)
EERREEMEE Other comprehensive (expense)/
() /Wi income for the year, net of tax (13,229) 7,889
EERENE (FX) Total comprehensive income/
PRk L] (expense) for the year 153,992 (208,189)
UTEFEEEERZA Total comprehensive income/
W, (FX%) 4858 . (expense) for the year
attributed to:
RRBEBA Owners of the Company 153,992 (208,905)
FEERER Non-controlling interests - 716
153,992 (208,189)
B TFFR 91
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EEMBRRAR Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZE-_—&F+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2022
—E-C BT
2022 2021
ik FET FET
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME--BENERE Property, plant and equipment 17 1,440 2,254
FREEE Right-of-use assets 18 53,323 13,673
BRYEE Intangible assets 19 - -
HeEkkEEE Rental and utility deposits 7,401 5,129
BATFESFAHEMEE Financial assets at FVTOCI
WHnzEmMEE 20 349 71,172
REERTANKRE Investment in associates 21 - -
NEERENRKE Investment in a joint venture 22 343,625 -
HAhE U IR Other receivables 25 4,900 -
411,038 92,228
TEEE Current assets
FE Inventories 28 7,127 26,373
FEUL B Z R Trade receivables 24 777 4,082
HERKERE Rental and utility deposits 4,238 15,723
SEENE R Prepayments, deposits and other
H AU AR TR receivables 25 40,277 20,349
BATESAREMER Financial assets at FVTOCI
WHZEHEE 20 24,021 -
RIT RIS AR Bank and cash balances 28 17,929 41,834
94,369 108,361
NEARFEHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 29 - 498,454
94,369 606,815
mEaRE Current liabilities
ANIERZE SN Trade payables 30 17,365 16,044
HAME R EWETE K Other payables, deposits received
fEst & and accrued charges 31 127,716 127,311
HEaR Lease liabilities 33 31,323 21,150
P& {3 A1 R B 75 TR 1A Amounts due to former related parties 26 35,490 35,490
eI ARG AR BR TR T8 Amount due to the controlling
shareholder 27 30,118 -
RIT R EAMER Bank and other borrowings 32 22,097 171,513
BERIEEE Current tax liabilities - 2,732
264,109 374,240
BNBAREHEN Liabilities directly associated with
BEHERERANEGE assets classified as held for sale 29 - 287,914
264,109 662,154
mENEEREE Net current liabilities (169,740) (55,339)
BMEERRSEE Total assets less current liabilities 241,298 36,889

92
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

At 31 December 2022

—E-C B
2022 2021
k3 FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
JEREBERE Non-current liabilities
HEER Lease liabilities 33 65,205 6,831
HAER Other borrowings 32 19,666 25,975
RIERMIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 35 - -
RURBFEEE Long service payment liabilities 36 1,039 1,296
85,910 34,102
BEEME NET ASSETS 155,388 2,787
BRRHE Capital and reserves
g A Share capital 37 35,126 35,126
#fE Reserves 39 120,262 (32,339)
KADHE NELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 155,388 2,787
R ER Non-controlling interests - -
s TOTAL EQUITY 155,388 2,787
Chen Jianwen Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
PR & HEE
Director Director
BZ BZE
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Ret#En ﬁ: xR Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

FATHA AR
Attributable to owners of the Company
NATEHA
Eft2EKE? TBRER  REEN/
BE  RGERER ErERGE  oHER DRESEE NBEREE SREERRE G (BsER) B kERER EL 3

Foreign Financial Retained
Share Capital Share currency  assetsat profits/ Non-
premium  redemption Merger warrants ~ translation FVTOCI  Convertible (Accumulated controlling Total
Share capital account* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* loans reserve* losses)* Total interests equity

T T Fé#r Fén Fén & & & 7 T T FEr
HKS 000 HKS000  HKSODO  HKSUOD  HKSUOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSUOO HKS 000 HKS000  HKSO00

KZE-%-pA-H At 1 January 2021 34,126 209,902 1,181 45 - 607) (15,015) - (67,836) 172,166 3618 168,548
TERETZERYD Equity components of convertile loans

(HizEs4) (note 34) - - - - - - - 27532 - 2753 - 753
ERTERER Conversion of convertible loans 1,000 18,000 - - - - - (4104 - 14,89 - 14,89
WBSEERES (F3E41.1)  Acquisition of non-contrling interests

note 41.1) - - - - - - - - (2,902) 2,902) 2,902 -
HERATEIARM Transfer of gain on disposal of financial
2ENEZEREEY assels al FVTOCI

[t F - - - - - - (3711 - n - - -
HEEAIRS Transactions with owners 1,000 18,000 - - - - (371) 23,428 (2531) 30,56 2902 448
EEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (21673 (16,739) 660 (216,078
A2 E (F%) /A Other comprehensive (expense)fincome - - - - - (280) 8077 - 3% 783 5 7,889

2 @%) /UABE  Total comprehensive (expense)income for

ihe year - - - - - 280) 8077 - PIBTY (208.09) M6 (208189
RZ%=-& At 31 December 2021
+ZRA=+-8 35,126 207,902 1,181 45 - 887) (7,309) 23428 (277,069) 2,181 - 2,181
RIBZZF-F-A At 1 January 2022 35,126 221,902 1,181 45 - (887) (7,309) 23428 (277,069) 2,787 - 2787
BEMERER (H:3) Redemption of convertible loans (note 34) - - - - - - - (23,428) - (23,428) - (23,428)
BTRRER (Wea00) Issuance of share warrants (note 40(j) - - - - 2,031 - - - - 22,031 - 22,307
HERATESARM Transfer of loss on disposal of financial
2ENEZEHEE? assets at FVTOCI
3 E - - - - - - 12,063 - (12.963) - - -
HEEAZRS Transactions with owners - - - - 2,037 - 12,963 (23,428) (12,969) (1,391) - (1,391)
EEGH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 167,221 167,221 - 167,221
EaE @R & Other comprehensive (expense)fincome - - - - - (118) (13,.215) - 164 (13,229) - (13,229)

EEREER) /UEEE  Total comprehensive (expense)income for

the year - - - - - (M8 (13.2m R AR 1. ) 1)
At 31 December 2022
BAH 2000 1181 “5 2 (1008 () Y X - 1
* RREDPZECENRERIES * The total of these amounts as at the reporting date represents
BB R RPN IEE - “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
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—E-C TET—F
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RETHFRELZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
BRENRF (B8 Profit/(Loss) before tax 164,489 (220,078)
HUTEBEELRE . Adjustments for:
=S Finance costs 34,624 43,292
RITERF] B WA Interest income on bank deposits (10) (10)
RS HENSIWA  Imputed interest income on rental
deposits (1,004) (1,961)
RPARZ BB Provision for long service payments 373 513
ME-BERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 884 4,841
FHRAREENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 26,731 69,011
W E B KRB Write-off of property, plant and
equipment - 527
B & & s Write-off of other
intangible assets - 1,102
HEME - BRERZEZ Gain on disposal of property, plant

Wi and equipment (4,602) (9,107)
HEMBAT Z W FE  Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net (350,031) -
PMEEEREER Share of results of a joint venture 7,787 -
BIERN W Gain on termination of leases - (26,373)
E 5 R EMEUER R Impairment loss on trade and other

HERKEEZEEN receivables and rental and utility

BERE deposits 11,246 12,574
ME-BERREN Impairment loss on property, plant

BEEE and equipment - 3,866
HMEFEENRESE  Impairment loss on other intangible

assets - 1,123
FREEENRESS Impairment loss on right-of-use

assets 1,849 13,873
RENB AR Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries,

g pEeR net - 470
R ERRE NS Gain on settlement of legal claim - (27,424)
WIEEE (BML) #E (Reversal of)/allowance for

slow-moving inventories (8,000) 21,000
HAnm & = # i Amortisation of other intangible assets - 124
B ERRERRE COVID-19 related rent concessions

AR RE received - (465)
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—EZC T
2022 2021
FET FEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEBTETR Operating loss before working capital

KA changes (115,664) (113,102)
FEHRD Decrease in inventories 27,246 49,945
FEUR B ZBREF (18 0) W’V (Increase)/Decrease in trade

receivables (545) 854
FANRIE 5] & R HA Increase in prepayments, deposits

JRE U BR RN A0 and other receivables (15,898) (16,380)
FERTE ZERFUEM, CF7)  Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 1,345 (7,690)
HAhEFERF BUWET& K Decrease in other payables, deposits

FEsH & R received and accrued charges 10,229 10,740
FE 1T 1 B B 75 R IB I N Increase in amounts due to former

related parties - 2,771
BERK/ ZH R Long service payments to retired/

BEHNRERES redundant staff (466) (718)
REEBMAZRE Cash used in operations (93,753) (73,580)
BREFENER Hong Kong profits tax refunded - 210
BHE Interest paid (26,138) (25,416)
HESENE Interest lease liabilities (6,116) (9,631)
RS EMARERE Net cash used in operating activities (126,007) (108,417)
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—E-C g —F
2022 2021
V=3 FET FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
RETEFRESX 2IRERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BUH 2 Interest received 10 10
BAVE - BERRE Purchases of property, plant and
equipment (4,966) -
HERKEREMM Payments for rental and utility
deposits - (10,784)
BEMAERKERS Repayment of rental and utility
deposits 250 30,507
HENE -BREREEZ Proceeds from disposal of property,
FTigsa plant and equipment 90 113,107
HERATFERA Proceeds from disposal of financial
Httzmimz assets at FVTOCI
TRMEEZFIENIE 33,527 11,641
HERNBARZ Proceeds from disposal of
P FIE 358 subsidiaries, net of
(NBFFTHERE) cash disposed of 40 431,077 -
RERMELZ Net cash generated from investing
RE P activities 459,988 144,481
"B FFR 97
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2022 2021
ez FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
MERHFRELEZHEHRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
BERBPRITER Repayment of long-term bank
borrowings (357,599) (45,294)
BITO]EIMENFREAIE  Proceeds from issue of convertible
loans - 127,457
I RITIEMN Bank borrowings raised 4,296 -
Mg ERREER Increase in amount due to controlling
shareholder 30,000 -
I EMEN Other borrowings raised 9,240 34,400
BEEMER Repayment of other borrowings (9,000) (8,000)
BoMEETRVFE Decrease in trade finance loans, net - (38,772)
HENRNEZE 2 Principal elements of lease payments (34,936) (79,923)
MEEIMAREEHE Net cash used in financing activities (357,999) (10,132)
RERFEEZEEW (K2L) / NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
EINREE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (24,018) 25,932
EXEBH o TE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes - (733)
R—B—HZRER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REEEY AT 1 JANUARY 41,947 16,748
B+ZB=+—HZ3}&Kk CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Re%EY AT 31 DECEMBER 17,929 41,947
RERAEEEW2 S ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
IRITNIRE % Bank and cash balances 28 17,929 41,834
SHADEABIEHE ZHE  Cash and bank balances included
EBZIREMIRITHERR in a disposal group classified as
held for sale - 113
17,929 41,947
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bonjour Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its
registered office is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The address
of its principal place of business is 12/F., Bonjour Tower, No.
36-50 Wang Wo Tsai Street, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, Mr. Chen Jianwen is the ultimate controlling party of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group are disclosed in note
4. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. Although these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The Group incurred a net cash outflow from operating activities
of HK$126,007,000 during the year ended 31 December 2022
and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$169,740,000. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as
the directors have given careful consideration to the current
and anticipated future liquidity of the Group after consideration
of the following:

(@)  The ultimate controlling shareholder, Mr. Chen Jianwen
has agreed to continue to provide financial support to
enable the Group to meet all third-party obligations for
at least the next twelve-month period after 31 December
2022.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) The Group has taken various cost control measures to
tighten the costs of operation including closing down
under-performing retail stores.

(c)  The Group is actively negotiating with external parties and
banks to obtain new sources of financing to finance the
Group’s working capital and improve the Group’s liquidity
position.

(d) The Group is actively disposing the financial assets at
FVTOCI to improve the Group’s liquidity position.

The directors have prepared the cashflow projection which
covers a period of not less than twelve months from
31 December 2022. Having taken into account the above, the
directors consider that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet in full its working capital requirements
and financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of the assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for
any further liabilities which might arise and to classify non-
current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have
not been reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

3.1 Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning on 1 January 2022

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2022 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRS Standards 2018-

2020
Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for
(Revised) Common Control

Combination

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material
impact on how the results and financial position for
the current and prior periods have been prepared and
presented.
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3. RMMITHAKLEITIEEMEHRS 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)
28 (&)

3.2 EEMEMEKRERNEE 3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

MRS ER

RItEGREHHFRE2NE At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
HRHB - AEBRLEMLEN financial statements, the Group has not applied any new
ZEZZHF—B8—B0H and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
FEBEEMERNKREN yet effective for the financial year beginning on 1 January
HNEMMTR&EITINS 2022. These new and revised HKFRSs include the
B BREEN - ZFWE] following which may be relevant to the Group.

REETEEMHBRSE
) B 15 B BE B2 7 & [ AH RE

X TFEIE
RUTHESHZE
BN EHARER
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or
after
EARAMBREENE17TR BT RSO RAEREET TEI=F—HF—H
Amendments to HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts and related amendments 1 January 2023
EAVBREENEI0EE B G ENE28R I B] —REEHRAEHE QT RE
REECEHANEEHEREA
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets Not yet determined
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
EAVBREENEI6R BT - ERHARXRZHTNEEAR —ENE—A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
SARAGHENE I B —SEREES B AT RIERBHEELERER 2 -0NF—HF—H
(EH]
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
and related amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5
SRS EE IR 2B —WELmNIERSaE —ENE—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
EARASHENE I REEUBREENFERENE2R BT - S BERNE — 2 =F—HF—H
E:'g
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of 1 January 2023
Accounting Policies
ARG ERESF BT S EHANER TEI=F—F—H
Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BFARAEHENFI2R BT HE—XFZEL EERBEERNELERE —Z”-_=F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising 1 January 2023

from a Single Transaction
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs (continued)

3.2 lIssued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments and new
standards is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group considers that the adoption
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain financial
instruments that are measured fair value).

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

4.1 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s
returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1 ZERE (& 4.1 Consolidation (continued)

MEBARMHEHREEHEE
FEBZAEGEHE I
MERERILEZ BEELE
mAEstE e

ERRAEHEZHENW
BArEWmEEE()HEE
REBEZRAFEERHEZ
MEBARFFMREREZAR
TAE B (i) & R B &AL &%
BABZEEREERA
HzME RS ZEMGT
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Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling shareholders even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.1

4.2

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, unless the investment is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) or groups
of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which
the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews
are undertaken annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3 BE AR KREE AT 4.3 Associates and joint ventures
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Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of an entity but is not control or joint control over those
policies. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions relating
about relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

Investment in associates or a joint venture are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements by the equity
method and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the associate or the joint venture
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s and joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is recorded as goodwill which is included
in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Associates and joint ventures (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any
asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s or a joint
venture’s post-acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate or a joint venture equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate or the joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or the joint venture), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or the joint
venture. If the associate or the joint venture subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates or joint
ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates
and joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Foreign currency translation

()

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”) which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all of the group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed to
non-controlling interests are derecognised, but they
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5 ME - BEREZHE 4.5 Property, plant and equipment
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Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land, held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at acquisition cost and/or manufacturing cost (including
any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the Group’s
management), less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
right-of-use assets in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interests in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.5

4.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

2% or over the
lease term,
whichever is shorter

Over the period of
lease or their
expected useful
lives to the Group,
whichever is shorter

10% - 20%

Land and buildings

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles 30%

The useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee.

After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. The lease
liability will be reduced for lease payments made
and increased for interest cost on the lease liability.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
F+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.6 Leases (continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term. The Group also assesses the right-of-use
asset for impairment when such indicator assets.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.6 Leases (continued)

(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case
the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied
the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS
16. In such cases, the Group took advantage
of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it was not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or
profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already

reduced to zero.

(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified
as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Leases (continued)
(iiij) Sales and leaseback

The Group as a seller-lessee

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a
sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the Group as a
seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset arising
from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset and recognises any
gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred
to the buyer-lessor only. Right of use asset and
lease liability with fixed payments are subsequently
measured in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies above.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately — brand names
and other

Brand names and other intangible assets are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives of 10 years. Amortisation
commences when the intangible assets are available for
use.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. Cost represents the invoiced cost of
inventories which include all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.9

4.10

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, including any
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets. The classification is determined by both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
asset, and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset. All income and expenses relating
to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.10

4.11

Financial assets (continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the “financial
assets at FVTOCI reserve” until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the financial assets at FVTOCI reserve is
transferred to retained earnings/accumulated losses. It
is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.12

4.13

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification. Impairment losses on initial classification
as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses on
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss. Gains are
not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment
loss.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or
disposal group’s previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as held for
sale are not depreciated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.14

4.15

4.16

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a
financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The
liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently
at the higher of:

- the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9 and

- the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Convertible loans

4.18

4.19

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consisting of a liability and an equity component. At the
date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible debt. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the holder to convert the loans into
equity of the Group, is included in equity as “convertible
loans reserve”. The liability component is carried at a
liability at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component will remain in equity until
conversion or redemption of the bond.

When the loan is converted, the equity component of
convertible bond and the carrying value of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to
share capital as consideration for the shares issued.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and equity components of the convertible loans based
on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.
The portion related to the equity component is charged
directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being at
the point the customer purchases the merchandise at
the retail shops. Payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the customer purchases
the merchandise. Under the Group’s standard contract
terms, customers have a right of return within 30 days.
At the point of sale, a refund liability and a corresponding
adjustment to revenue is recognised for those products
expected to be returned. At the same time, the Group has
a right to recover the product when customers exercise
their right of return so consequently recognises a right to
returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustment to
cost of sales. The Group uses its accumulated historical
experience to estimate the number of returns on a
portfolio level using the expected value method. It is
considered highly probable that a significant reversal in
the cumulative revenue recognised will not occur given
the consistent level of returns over previous years.

Revenue from the wedding planning services is
recognised when the service is provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
as it accrues using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BT _HF+-H=+—HIEFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Revenue and other income (continued)

4.21

Revenue from the wholesale of merchandise is recognised
when control of the goods has transferred, being when
the products are delivered to the wholesaler.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment are established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) participate in the retirement
schemes operated by the local authorities for the
Group’s employees in the PRC. Contributions to
these schemes are charged to profit or loss when
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Long service payment liabilities

The Group’s net liability in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods. The
long service payment liabilities are the present
value of long service payment obligation less the
entitlements accrued under the Group’s defined
contribution retirement scheme that is attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

The long service payment obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of
the long service payment obligation is determined
by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension
obligation. If there is no deep market in such bonds,
the market rates on government bonds are used.

Remeasurements of the net long service payment
liability which include actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income in the
period in which they arise and will not be reclassified
to profit or loss. Service costs and interest on the
net long service payment liability are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Interest on the net long service payment liability
is determined by multiplying the net long service
payment liability by the discount rate used to
measure long service payment obligation at the start
of the annual reporting period, taking account of
any changes in the net long service payment liability
during the period as a result of benefit payments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

42258 B KSR

4.22 Share warrants
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4.23

4.24

Share warrants which entitle the holder to convert the
warrants into a fixed number of equity instruments at
a fixed conversion price are accounted for as equity
instruments. At the date of issue, the difference between
the proceeds and its fair value is recognised in profit or
loss with a corresponding increase in a reserve within
equity. Upon the exercise of the warrants, the resulting
ordinary shares issued are recorded as additional share
capital.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.25 Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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4.25 Taxation (continued)
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Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense in profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to
individual CGU, when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. An impairment loss on goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods. In respect of other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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4.27 Impairment of financial assets
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The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
trade receivables. The amount of expected credit losses
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective
financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses
that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.27 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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4.27 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

() the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.27 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BT _HF+-H=+—HIEFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.27 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4.

F+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.27 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at
default, for financial assets, this is represented by the
assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined based on
historical trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific
future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated
as the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.28 Provisions and contingent liabilities

4.29

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

° Wholesaling and retailing of beauty, health-care and
lifestyle products

° Wholesaling of technology products
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.29

4.30

Segment reporting (continued)

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches. In addition,
corporate assets which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any reportable segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to the
Group’s headquarter and investment in a joint venture.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(il)y  is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. FEGHEEK (&) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.30 RAER (&) 4.30 Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

A0 ae T Em—IR
wF ERSDE—EE

(b)

B .
g5 -

(i) ZERHEAEH ()  the entity and the Group are members of the
BE—EBKE- same group.

(il —(EERAS— (i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
EEMNEBEESNS of the other entity (or an associate or joint
EhE (B —8 venture of a member of a group of which the
BB WERK other entity is a member).

ENBEREE
) -

(i) ERE BB — (i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
FE-ZENEED the same third party.
¥ o

(ivy —BEERBZR %= (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
ERENEE G and the other entity is an associate of the third
X M%B — B HR entity.

ERE=ZEBHSE
i

(v) ZERAURE (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
EARNEFRAB for the benefit of employees of either the
RIE 2 1E R E R Group or an entity related to the Group.
ZEE®AZ@A
Z R AR F 8 o

(vi) ZERA Lit(a) (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
FMAEZANLE person identified in (a).

ZEHISHEE TS

(vii) (a) (i) #EE B A (vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
THERBEE KX influence over the entity or is a member of the
EENAZE R key management personnel of the entity (or of

(HZEBZ a parent of the entity).
NE) EFEEBEA
BENHEAP—F-
=59

(Vi) Z B RE o H 7 B (viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
EBZMEMKE which it is a part, provides key management
A== =S personnel services to the Group or to the
7 & NI parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.30

4.31

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

5.1

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(i) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which is explained in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.1

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Determining the lease term (continued)

Generally, periods covered by an extension option
in other properties leases have not been included in
the lease liability because the Group could replace
the assets without significant cost or business
disruption. See note 18 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is
a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
During the current financial year, no lease term has
been reassessed.

Judgement of the Group’s trading of
technology products as a principal

Significant judgement is made by the management
of the Group in determining whether the Group is
acting as principal or agent in the Group’s trading of
technology products.

Considering that the Group controls the technology
products before it is transferred to the customer as
(i) the Group has primary responsibility for fulfilling
the promise to provide the technology products
including responsibility for the acceptability of
the technology products; (i) the Group bears the
inventory risk; and (iii) the Group has the discretion
to establish the price of the technology products,
management of the Group has assessed that the
Group acts as principal.

The Group recognises revenue in the gross amount
of the consideration to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods transferred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
F+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

(iv) Accounting for share warrants

v)

The share warrants are accounted as equity
instruments, with the difference between the
proceeds and its fair value is recognised in profit
or loss with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. In making this judgement, the
Directors of the Company have taken into account
the commercial rationale for the issuance of share
warrants, that upon redemption of the convertible
bonds, the Company issued the share warrants to
the Subscriber of the convertible bonds (as defined
in note 34), conferring rights to subscribe shares of
the Company and for serving as a necessary and
suitable incentive for the Subscriber to consent
to the Disposal (as defined and detailed in note
40), and waive all its rights and claims under the
deed of undertaking upon early redemption of the
convertible bonds.

Accounting for joint ventures

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
the Group’s investment in the Fund (as defined in
note 22) is accounted for as an investment in a joint
venture (note 22). Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. Although the Group has
75% interest in the Fund and contractual right to
appoint two out of five members in the Fund’s
investment committee, the Group’s investment in
the Fund is accounted for as a joint venture as the
important decisions that has significant effect on the
returns of the Fund require the unanimous approval
of all members of the Fund’s investment committee.
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5. FRIEKREEMGE 5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

5.2 st FHBEARZEER

/a8

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other

FEEEMBEREEZE key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
EFHERBEZZRKETE reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
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a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

()

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgement and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (iii) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections, an appropriate discount rate,
market comparable and weighting factor. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset (including right-of-use assets),
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test.

Further, the cash flows projections, growth rate and
discount rate are subject to greater uncertainties
in the current year due to uncertainty on how the
COVID-19 pandemic may progress and evolve and
volatility in financial markets, including potential
disruptions in the Group’s retail operation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

The carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31
December 2022 were HK$1,440,000 (2021:
HK$2,254,000) and HK$53,323,000 (2021:
HK$13,673,000) respectively.

Impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and rental and utility deposits

The management of the Group estimates the
amount of impairment loss for ECL on trade
receivables, other receivables and rental and
utility deposits based on the credit risk of trade
receivables, other receivables and rental and utility
deposits. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. The amount of impairment loss
for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and rental and utility deposits
(continued)

The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables, other receivables and rental and
utility deposits are disclosed in note 6.3.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables, other receivables are
HK$777,000 (net of allowance for expected credit
losses of HK$6,125,000) (2021: HK$4,082,000
(net of allowance for expected credit losses of
HK$2,500,000)), HK$56,816,000 (net of allowance
for expected credit losses of HK$17,695,000)
(2021: HK$41,201,000 (net of allowance for
expected credit losses of HK$10,074,000))
respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
F+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made. During the year, income
tax of HK$2,732,000 (2021: HK$4,000,000) was
credited to profit or loss.

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates after taking into consideration of
the recent market condition under the impact of
COVID-19. Where the actual outcome in future is
different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories and
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2022, allowance for slow-
moving inventories amounted to HK$26,628,000
(2021: HK$34,628,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

6.1 Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities except for bank balances denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) that result in certain foreign currency
risk. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

At 31 December 2021, if the HKD had weakened or
strengthened 5% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the year and
the equity would have been HK$36,000 lower or higher,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain or
loss on bank deposits denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2022, if the HKD had weakened or
strengthened 5% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year
and the equity would have been HK$133,000 higher or
lower, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
loss or gain on bank deposits denominated in RMB.

6.2 Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investment in equity securities. The Group’s equity
price risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.2

6.3

Price risk (continued)

If equity prices had been 10% (2021: 10%) higher or
lower, other comprehensive expense for the year ended
31 December 2022 would increase by HK$2,402,000
or decrease by HK$2,402,000 (2021: decrease by
HK$7,106,000 or increase by HK$7,106,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other
financial instruments. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited because
the counterparties are banks and financial institutions with
high credit-rating assigned by international credit-rating
agencies, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures
and control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 120 days (2021: 120 days)
from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that are
more than 12 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.
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6. HMBRAMEIRE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 EERME (& 6.3 Credit risk (continued)

W E 5 R ()

FEEREENREEEE
HREMEEREBE2ES% (B
BHEEMRSE) SHERWE
ZERTREBERE -

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix.

TREEBTEHEAEER The following table provides information about the
—E_ZF+ZRBR=+— Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
H B’] FEERBHMORE S receivables as at 31 December 2022;
FEWRFMNTBHEERIE .
g
2022
TEHARS IR X R4 %E 581 E
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% FET FAET
% HK$’000 HK$°000
BNHA (Gk#HA)  Current (not past due) 0.00% - -
BHA1E30H  1-30 days past due 4.75% 379 18
#HIS1E60H 31-60 days past due 30.21% 96 29
#HI61ZE90H 61-90 days past due 30.95% 84 26
#EEAEBBO0H More than 90 days past due 95.41% 6,343 6,052
6,902 6,125
—E-—F
2021
SELENSEEES IRME4R 8 [agicke i
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% FET FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000
BNHA (3k#HA) Current (not past due) 0.00% - -
HFHEA1ZE30H  1-30 days past due 0.00% 381 -
#HEA31E60H 31-60 days past due 0.00% 595 -
#HEI61E90H 61-90 days past due 0.00% 61 -
#EABBO0H More than 90 days past due 45.09% 5,545 2,500
6,582 2,500
TEITFEFR 147
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6. HMBRAMEIRE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.3 EERE (&) 6.3 Credit risk (continued)
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EEHIJHj(/R&ZIK%%ﬂ?H&
R BERERANEE
Hk/RE’],%'\EZFﬁE’J#EO

ERENEZRBIEEKRRH

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 2 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance account in respect of

BREHREFHNT trade receivables during the year are as follows:
—EZC = 3
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
t—H—H At 1 January 2,500 -
FERNERBRERE Impairment losses recognised
for the year 3,625 2,500
B+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 6,125 2,500

HttER R U R Z R

KEEE

AEBENFTA H M’ IR
RUREERKEREH
WA BBEREERAR
MERNESDNEEBEER
Ri12BHAAHER EE
stIR A& A G W@ By
HMEWERERAUAKRESE
kRXKEZZHNEERE

17,695,000%71:(_’3:
210,074,000% Lo HE
EUWEE R U RS &K

EWENRREMEM
ABEITRESRRNE
\‘\] fﬁ Zfﬁﬁuuﬁfi ’
HRAEHEERRK

ZassEm
bliﬂbiﬁ?cﬁ?ﬁl

~ <

—
R
o\
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Other receivables and rental and utilities deposits

All of the Group’s other receivables and rental and utilities
deposits are considered to have low credit risk, and the
loss allowance recognised during the year was therefore
limited to 12-month expected losses, except for the
credit-impaired other receivables and rental and utility
deposits of HK$17,695,000 (2021: HK$10,074,000) that
were not expected to be recovered were provided. These
other receivables and rental and utilities deposits are
considered to be low credit risk when they have a low risk
of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FETTHF+H=Z+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
MEERERE (8) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.3 EERM (& 6.3 Credit risk (continued)
H 1t FE U Bk 7= L B F £ R Other receivables and rental and utilities deposits
KE#ZZE (8 (continued)
FANHMEKREMRREE Movement in the loss allowance for other receivables and
RKERZETNEEEEREE rental and utility deposits during the year is as follows:
BT
—E_C =BT —F
2022 2021
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
®n—B—H At 1 January 10,074 -
FERERBRERE Impairment losses recognised
for the year 7,621 10,074
R+ZHA=+—H At31 December 17,695 10,074
BB EN T EE Financial assets at amortised cost
N E FH T A % E 8  AK st All of the Group’s investments at amortised cost are
ENEEEREAEAERSRK considered to have low credit risk, and the loss allowance
EERE > PANHEE RN recognised during the period was therefore limited to
EsiE s L1218 B 38 27 &5 12-month expected losses. Management considers ‘low
EAR BEEIRA -HE credit risk’ for listed debt securities to be an investment
BEENTHREERK) grade credit rating with at least one major rating agency.
EEZ/D—RFTEF4H Hg Other instruments are considered to be low credit risk
BHETHERAANEET when they have a low risk of default and the issuer
4 o Eﬂﬁlgﬁ'}ti’jﬂﬁ & has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
BT ABITEHAEHNIR obligations in the near term.
é?mLEE'EEE’]Hbj] B
HAEEREERRE-
6.4 FETESTRME 6.4 Liquidity risk

MEBETRREANERE
FETHEHEBAINRS
REAMETHMEEGENE
MEEREBEEENRARE
%ﬁ K%@@Eﬂuﬁ%ﬁnﬂ%ﬁ
5 R H fth & 7 BR 7 & H R
ﬁf&%ﬁ@ééﬂhﬁ
FTRERSEREEE A&
BxHEATCHERBHA
REHzZABHESTETE U
ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁh%%ﬁ%
HHEUEBMHEHESHEEREHR
ZREBESR

8 o
b=

—ECFEER

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade and other payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

6.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

fe iR
Z & H3

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

DR—FH —EEME MEELE
BEX i) il FENE
Less than
1 year or Between Between
ondemand 1and2years 2and5 years Over 5 years
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
WZEZZ& At 31 December 2022
+-BA=+—H
B MEMELRR Trade and other payables 142,841 - - -
RITER (HzEa) Bank borrowings (note a) 4,296 - - -
Hii g H® Other borrowings 18,964 11,206 10,713 -
FE T R AR R IR Amount due to the controlling
shareholder 30,118 - - -
&S B0 B B A 0B Amounts due to former related
parties 35,490 - - -
HEERE Lease liabilities 37,788 28,461 43,754 -
269,497 39,667 54,467 -
—E-_—-& At 31 December 2021
+-BA=+-H
B REMEMRER Trade and other payables 141,118 - - -
RITERT (Mista) Bank borrowings (note a) 162,513 - - -
HhfE Other borrowings 11,785 19,475 11,200 -
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬂlﬁ Amounts due to former related
parties 35,490 - - -
HEaE Lease liabilities 22,629 7,017 - -
373,535 26,492 11,200 -
ff sk (a): Note (a):

ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ?fﬂﬂ RBWITERR
DR EATDR—

P ——

it E
EREE ) R
£+-A=+—8>

) B =
BX <F
BRMWAKRBERAS KA %' 48
54,738,000 (&~ —

iR 17

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “Less than 1 year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2022,
undiscounted principal and interests amounts of these bank
loans amounted to HK$4,738,000 (2021:
details of which are set out in the table below:

the aggregate

HK$166,088,000),

F :166,088,000%87) » £ 15
BN TR
B Im—ERENRE B Maturity analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on demand
Hﬂ BRERBNIRITER clause based on scheduled repayments
Over 1 year Total
Within but within Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years amount amount
—ER —ELf EENME  REREE IREE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2022 W_Z_”"&#+”-B=+-H 630 2,707 1,401 4,738 4,296
31 December 2021 WZIZ-_—F+_-A=+—H 166,088 - - 166,088 162,513

Annual Report 2022



PR R MAE (40
HE-E- G+ -FA=+—HILFE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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6. HMBRAMEIRE (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
6.5 %= & & 6.5 Interest rate risk
AEBFFEHEZFEXRR The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises
TERBEBETERAIER from its bank deposits and bank borrowings. These
TER - ZEERRERA deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable rates
M s 2 # B 1% ¥ 8 A X5 that vary with the then prevailing market condition.
B FPAXEHEERT
ST E) o
WZZE2E__H+ =8 At 31 December 2022, if interest rates at that date had
=+—B WrzBZ2H been 100 basis points lower or higher with all other
TR DL M100ME B F - variables held constant, consolidated loss after tax for the
MATAE & o] &K R4 F year and the equity would have been HK$186,000 lower
" AFEZHERERR or higher (2021: HK$1,326,000), arising mainly as a result
%18 & w RO D 3E of lower or higher net interest expense on interest-bearing
N186,0007%# T_l: (Z=&2=—— cash at banks and bank borrowings.
& 11,326,00087m) &
/F?_ﬁ"‘qu BRITEMR BVITE
MZHMERZFER LR
i" i e
6.6 SRITH%ER 6.6 Categories of financial instruments
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ETMEE: Financial assets:
DU SH R A5t &M Financial assets measured
THMEE at amortised cost 54,139 71,118
LU AFEEHAHEHM Financial assets measured
2EKEZ at FVTOCI:
EMEE
KATA Equity instruments 24,370 71,172
THMEERE: Financial liabilities:
LU SH A5t &M Financial liabilities at
THEas amortised cost 250,215 374,096
6.7 2¥1{E 6.7 Fair values

FEBRGEEMHRRE
ARBZEREERER
BERZEEEEZERZEZ
NFERSE

—ECFEER

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their

respective fair values.
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REBEABFHNIREERE
REFURE BEOT !

FB1REA AEBEFESEBQR
#gE: R"ZHEREEAER
EEBTHZRE CR

SR o

FoRE A FREBIRBRELUIN B

g INCIR=REEIAR RS =
REzEEN B EH
ABE BWEERE
AR ERENEHE A K
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value
hierarchy that categorises into three levels inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The three levels are
defined based on the observability and significance of inputs to
the measurements, as follows:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly,
and not using significant unobservable
inputs.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

n
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71 W+-_B=+—B®AF 7.1 Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at
31 December:

BEERELZKRE:

FERAATERAEATE: et
Fair value measurements using Total
F14 3R —F-C
Level 1 Level 3 2022
FAET F#ET F#ET
#15 Description HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
KWEMATESFE:  Recurring fair value
measurements:
TREE Financial assets
MRAFETAEM Financial assets at FVTOCI
2HENEZ
EFHRAESF Listed equity securities 24,021 - 24,021
JELEMRAGES Unlisted equity securities - 349 349
Hast Total 24,021 349 24,370
FRAUTERFEZATFE ! st
Fair value measurements using Total
ERE B3R 22 —F
Level 1 Level 3 2021
FEr FErT FEr
E3 Description HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
KEMNFETE Recurring fair value
measurements:
THMEE Financial assets
MRAFETAEM Financial assets at FVTOCI
2EWRGEZ
EMEE
FHRARES Listed equity securities 71,061 - 71,061
FELEHRAE Unlisted equity securities - 111 111
Mt Total 71,061 111 71,172

—ECFEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

7.2 Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value

HER - based on level 3:
UAFEFA UAFEFA
HzEkaz Hth2EWEZ
EREE EHMEE - oo
FELHRAES FHRAES st
Financial Financial
assets assets
at FVTOCI at FVTOCI
unlisted equity listed equity 2022
securities securities Total
FAET FAET FET
B3 Description HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
K—A—H At 1 January 111 - 111
REMZEWEERY  Total gain recognised in other
EEIRAREEY comprehensive income® 238 - 238
R+ZBE=+—H At 31 December 349 - 349
WEIERBREEARIFTAZ ¥ include gain for assets held at
BEZEBE end of reporting period 238 - 238
MURAFEFA MAFEEA
Hth2EkEr  Hth2EREZ
SREE ERMEE —E-
FEEMRAES FIRAEE oS
Financial Financial
assets assets
at FVTOCI at FVTOCI
unlisted equity listed equity 2021
securities securities Total
FET FET FET
2 Description HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R—B—H At 1 January 234 74,502 74,736
BHB3M Transfer out of level 3 - (74,502) (74,502)
REMEZEWERERY  Total losses recognised in other
ESIRAREE" comprehensive income® (123) - (123)
R+ZB=+—H At 31 December 111 - 111
WEIERIREEIRIEFAZ  Winclude losses for assets held at
BEEZEBE end of reporting period (123) - (123)
W R HME2EWREERED @ The total gains or losses recognised in other
WK BB E 2N comprehensive income are presented in other
GeEEakEME2EK comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
mRPFHNEMZE KRR profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
W o
HE_Z”-_—%+_H During the year ended 31 December 2021, financial
=t+—HLEFE > UAFEE assets at FVTOCI listed equity securities amounting to
AHEME2EWRR 2 S/HEE HK$74,502,000 were transferred from measurement
g AEEST74,502,000%8 7T based on Level 3 to Level 1 as a result of the listed equity
ThHEREIRZFT2HEE securities resumed trading on Stock Exchange on 1
B RER > L HRAFS March 2021.
RIEZ—F=B—HIRHK
RFTMEEE °
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

7. AFEE (B 7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

7.3 FAZGEERFRATFE

7.3 Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group

SEFRZEERSERS

and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair

ASERE value measurements:

AEBVBRBEEEEUH The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
R ECEEREBER value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
FTEFEZ BEEIRLF financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
Bet=E i‘% 48 E EHE measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
EEERZSELATEF=E the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
57} BRENEESEEFE Discussions of valuation processes and results are
LDERETMRGEERF R4 held between the financial controller and the Board of
Retemeo Directors at least twice a year.

B3R AT

RS

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will

AEBEERTZRERAER normally engage external valuation experts with the
AHEEER EZ THR R B 2 recognised professional qualifications and recent
I EERERETHBE experience to perform the valuations.

B AT EBFFAEZRH

Key unobservable input used in level 3 fair value

BB $ﬁﬁ ABEBETE measurements is mainly discount for lack of marketability.
ARZHmEREEZITIR
BIRATFEHE Level 3 fair value measurements
BE
Assets
TR
Fair value
gl @R AIEEHAEE  €E BAHEEN
HATEZYE  ZB-CE -k
Effect on fair value
for increase of
Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs  Range inputs 2022 2021
&7 FEr
HK$ 000 HKS 000
Unlisted equity investments Market comparable approach  Enterprise 0.17-2.24(2021:1.96 - 5.13)  Increase 349 M

classified as financial assets value-to-sales ratio

at FVTOC!
PEANATEARMRERE AL PEEEAHERE  017-24(CBZ-F: H#1
SREEEITRARE 196-5.13)

Discount for lack of Decrease
marketability

HZHRRERZIR 205%(C%

20.5% (2021: 20% - 30%)

Z—E 1 20% - 30%)ED
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

8. TURNOVER

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERMBRSER Revenue from contract
E15EHERD with customers within
EEAEHKE the scope of HKFRS 15
HEER - BERK Sales of beauty, health-care and
45 I 5 EE an lifestyle products 75,481 158,493
HE R E MR Sales of technology products 110,181 468,498
185,662 626,991
Uy 25 B 58 B9 BF A Timing of revenue recognition
PR —E R EEN E M Products transferred
at a point in time 185,662 626,991
Hth ik A 9. OTHER INCOME
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B SRKESEBHERBM COVID-19 related rent concessions
T+ B - 465
B W T 0 Discounts received - 32
BT A Display income - 469
HEME -BEX Gain on disposal of property,
B2 W= plant and equipment 4,602 9,107
EF—FEZXEBARMAE Gain on settlement of legal claim in
I &= prior year - 27,424
BMIEMANZ W= Gain on termination of leases - 26,373
BT 7 Bh (B 53) Government subsidies (note) 555 -
RITHERF B WA Interest income on bank deposits 10 10
HeRes2HEH Imputed interest income
M E WA on rental deposit 1,004 1,961
EEUA Rental income 339 3,473
MIEUL A Sundry income 835 5,385
7,345 74,699
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

9. OTHER INCOME (continued)

Note:

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

n

BONJOUR

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$248,000 in respect of COVID-19 related
subsidies from Employment Support Scheme provided by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The chief operating decision-maker (the “CODM”) has been
identified as the Company’s executive directors.

. —

$ °
(a) EHBSE (a) Business segments
HERTE
E5 BRR RAEEEE
LEREER MERWER ERAfF @it
Wholesaling
and retailing
of beauty,
health-care Wholesaling Unallocated
and lifestyle of technology corporate assets
products products and liabilities* Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEZZFZ"H+ZH=1+—H For the year ended
ILEE 31 December 2022
DEEERE Segment turnover 75,481 110,181 - 185,662
NBEEERRAE Segment cost of goods sold (46,697) (105,211) - (151,908)
DEEF Segment gross profit 28,784 4,970 - 33,754
RZZ2__F+-B=+—-H As at 31 December 2022
Hittp i gk Other segment information
NBEE Segment assets 96,249 17,774 391,384 505,407
NBER Segment liabilities (263,909) - (86,110) (350,019)
HEZZZ-F+ZH=+—H Forthe year ended
HEE 31 December 2021
NEEEE Segment turnover 158,493 468,498 - 626,991
NBEEERMAAE Segment cost of goods sold (113,128) (463,903) - (577,031)
DEEF Segment gross profit 45,365 4,595 - 49,960
RI2Z—-F+ZF=+—H As at 31 December 2021
HittpH &k Other segment information
NBEE Segment assets 686,261 12,782 - 699,043
NPEE Segment liabilties (696,256) - - (696,256)
* tEEEFIZOEETEREEE Corporate assets mainly include certain right-of-use assets and
RRAEERABNBRE - LEXBETE investment in a joint venture. Corporate liabilities mainly include certain
BEAETHESE- lease liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers

In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by
timing over revenue recognition (under HKFRS 15). The
table also includes a reconciliation of the disaggregated
revenue with the Group’s reportable segments.

DEEER o
HERZTE
£5 RER
£ERHER HERWES it
Wholesaling
and retailing
of beauty,
health-care Wholesaling
and lifestyle  of technology
products products Total
FHET FET F#7
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE_Z”-"%+"H For the year ended
=+—HLEE 31 December 2022
——{E B R B - At a point in time 75,481 110,181 185,662
BEZZZ—F+H Forthe year ended
—+—HLEEE 31 December 2021
—A—1{E BF R B - At a point in time 158,493 468,498 626,991
(c) MHEEHK : (c) Geographical information:
KEBRRBIIHER ZW = The Group’s revenue from external customers by location

(BEKEMNUE) RIERFE
EREEME MIA

of operations and information about its non-current
assets (other than financial instruments and investment in

RREEPLENKERIN a joint venture) by location of assets are detailed below:
HNERFRDT
W5 E|
Revenue Non-current assets

g —E-—F &g BT —F

2022 2021 2022 2021

FET FET FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

E Hong Kong 177,660 607,427 54,310 15,913

B Macau 8,002 19,395 453 10
mE R (FERBEF  PRC (except Hong Kong and

B& o) Macau) - 169 - 4

ReiEs Consolidated total 185,662 626,991 54,763 15,927
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(d) Revenue from major customers

n

BONJOUR

2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REMBERME®D ! Arise from wholesaling of
technology products:
EHA Customer A RER N/A* 174,213
ZFB Customer B RER N/A* 94,394
ERC Customer C 65,758 AEA N/A*
EFED Customer D 23,028 AEA N/A*
ERE Customer E 21,395 B N/A*
* 1R W RS A B AR * The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10%
WM 10% L E o of total revenue of the Group.
=0 %: 11. FINANCE COSTS
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HESGBZMNERX Interest expense on lease liabilities 6,116 9,631
IRITREMBERZ Interest expense on bank
MERZ and other borrowings 21,868 24,073
AERERFERE Interest expense on convertible loans
(MI5E34) (note 34) 6,522 9,588
FEIERR IRRARIBE Interest expense on amount due to
MEMRZ the controlling shareholder 118 -
34,624 43,292

—ECFEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
12. FRiSHIES 12. INCOME TAX CREDIT
MR EmEENT Income tax has been credited in profit or loss as following:
—E-C TE 4
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BNERIRIE—F B FIEH  Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
KEERRB Provision for the year - 21
BEFEBBEEES Over-provision in prior years - (626)
- (605)
BP AR IE — 8 oh Current tax — Overseas
BEFEBBEEES Over-provision in prior years (2,732) (1,006)
EIEIE (FI5E35) Deferred tax (note 35) - (2,389)
(2,732) (4,000)
EANGERREE - Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
+ZB=1+—HIEFEZMHE (2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year
ERREAURNE16.5% (Z=F ended 31 December 2022,
— & 116.5%) fEHEHE o
REBEFERMARSG  REAKIL Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for
WEEREXNE2,000,000% the first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying
TTERR AN ERKEEE R corporations established in Hong Kong will be lowered to
F£8.25% > Mit& 2 MU W& F) 8.25%, and profits above that amount will be subject to the tax
2 16.5% M EHH - rate of 16.5%.
FEPEMBRURE25% (= PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25%
T —F 1 25%) EHEE- (2021: 25%).
Fﬂ L’H }”:U THEHEITREE12% Macau SAR Complementary Tax has been provided at a rate of
BT —F 1 12%) R EG 12% (2021: 12%).
EREE-
Hith & 2 EREREF 2R IER Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
TR BEAERBEKS AT calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which
EBZRITMIEWIZEM 2 BITE the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation
B~ 2 ERIEHETE - and practices in respect thereof.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

M

AY

BONJOUR

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
accounting profit/(loss) before tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate

ZHIERWT : is as follows:
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B pEA S (B518) Profit/(Loss) before tax 164,489 (220,078)
BEBNERKRE16.5% Tax at the Hong Kong Profits
EZMIE Tax rate of 16.5% 27,141 (36,313)
DEEEREERA Tax effect of share of results of
BT E a joint venture (1,285) -
BAEZBRZIWA ZMFEE Tax effect of non-taxable income
z® (58,555) (1,503)
AR AT ZMHE S Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
z 4,026 12,266
REDMEBEEFERERZE Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses
BB E and temporary differences 28,673 23,309
BEFEBBES Over-provision in prior years (2,732) (1,632)
B AT ARKREZEE Effect of different tax rates
of subsidiaries - (127)
TSIt % Income tax credit (2,732) (4,000)
TEEFR
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BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

13. FE&HAN  (B18) 13. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
rNEBFEGN (BB B (5 The Group’s profit/(loss) for the year is stated after (crediting)/
A) BRI TEIE charging the following:
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Z B AN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,180 4,340
BETFEMAE (#f3t) Cost of inventories sold (note) 151,908 577,031
HHHES (BE) (Reversal of)/Allowance for slow-
B (H ) moving inventories (note) (8,000) 21,000
ME -BERREBINE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 884 4,841
FEREEETE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 26,731 69,011
HthmEEE#E Amortisation of other intangible assets - 124
WY BB KRR E Write-off of property, plant and
equipment - 527
HtEFEEMNBERE Impairment loss on other intangible
assets - 1,123
M B AT REEFE Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries,
net - 470
WisEEMEBEEE Write-off of other intangible assets - 1,102
ETHA > 8EEFEME Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments
—TER#HFERIELA — Wages, salaries and bonuses 67,312 94,593
—RAKTEF] 5T B H R — Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 2,421 3,340
—RKERAFE KR — Reversal of provision for unutilised
B o] B E annual leave (2,006) (1,655)
—REHERBEEE — Provision for long service
payments 373 513
Wz . BEGFERAGEFHEEFEE Note: Cost of inventories sold includes reversal of allowance for
#[E]8,000,0008 T (= slow-moving inventories of HK$8,000,000 (2021: allowance
——4& #121,000,000% of HK$21,000,000) which is included in the amount disclosed
g%ﬁ ’WEJr AEXBIFEN separately above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

n
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

14.1 Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

2EDIWENEERTE (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
BTERABMEWOT Regulation, is as follows:
AR st kg
BEE e HBTEAL 8 (W) REEH #3 Eh
Estimated
money value of Retirement
Directors’ Discretionary other benefits Housing  benefits scheme
fees Salaries bonuses (note (a)) allowance contributions Total
TEr FET FET FET &7 FEr AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
YhES Executive directors
BRENEE Mr. Chen Jianwen - 1,200 - - - 18 1,218
FERAE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - 1,200 - - - 18 1,218
HERYT Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna - 1,200 - - - 18 1,218
- 3,600 - - - 54 3,654
BUFHES Independent non-executive
directors
TRBRE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 198 - - - - - 198
EINES Mr. Yan Sherman Chuk-ning 198 - - - - - 198
BoHiE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 208 - - - - - 208
604 - - - - - 604
ZECIEAR Total for 2022 604 3,600 - - - 54 4,258
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B smRmE (B) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

14. EEEFNRETZUREEMNE 14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND

(& EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
141EFME (&8 14.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued)

HtER EBinERIzE

YA e HBTEAL 28 (i6) BEEH #3 &3
Estimated

money value of Retirement

Directors’ Discretionary other benefits benefits scheme
fees Salaries bonuses (note (a))  Housing allowance contributions Total
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr TE1 FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

YhnES Executive directors

BESHBT (13H0)  Dr Ip Chun Heng, Wilson (note (b))
(

IEHt)) (Dr.1p') - 2,158 - 801 - 94 3,053
ERELL (Hab) Ms. Chung Pui Wan (note (o))

(g% +)) (*Ms. Chung’) - 2,158 - 801 - 94 3,053
R RE Mr. Chen Jianwen - 2,600 - - - 18 2,618
FERRE Mr. Wan Yim Keung, Daniel - 2,600 - - - 18 2,618
BEE%4 (H5Hc)  Mr Kwan Tat Cheong (note (c) - 1,119 - - - 18 1,137
a4y e Ms. Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna - 1,200 - - - 18 1218

- 11,83 - 1,602 - 260 13,697
BUuknGEs Independent non-executive
directors
FRELE Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan 198 - - - - - 198
ANERE Mr. Yan Sherman Chuek-ning 198 - - - - - 198
BEREE Mr. Kwok Chi Shing 208 - - - - - 208
604 - - - - - 604
ZEC-EAH Total for 2021 604 11,83 - 1,602 - 260 14,301
Kiat . Notes:
(a) HEMEAEHSEEEE (a) Estimated money value of other benefits includes rent
ENEERESEEMA paid and directors’ quarter expenses.
% o
by W =% = — &F KX A8 (b) Removed as executive directors on 29 June 2021.
“tHNAHERHITES -
(c) WMZEZ—F+ZAR (c) Resigned as an executive director on 6 December 2021.
HEE®ITES-
FR O TEREZERENE None of directors have waived or agreed to waive any
ERESAMNS (T2 — emoluments during the year (2021: Nil).

F|)o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

14, EERMKRETZUREENE

(&

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

MH42EENRF ZHAEHP

14.2 Directors’ material interests in transactions,

ZEXRED

BEXEERTNERME
BRE AABILESIE
HHEAERBXBEAERALX
ANRAEERBERIZESE
BEEEA D (BEREEXN
BE)WEARS 2R

A
54 o

14.3 Rk E-ERE KA

FEBRTEKREENSG
EREERMHERMHENER
IRET 8 A H MR

AEBEEZBRTEBER
ERER 2 ME S BA
SFHRELFISEEZH
WEBMRBAKSE (M
BRIRETE ) c XEEIZE
&R REM 75 BT A
MENEEM P ERIKE
MR -EERAKE 7
BEEHFRESFIE SR
ZERKREES N RIKEF -

FERRB(RHMEIAES
stEEAI) (BFBIEPIE485
B) RE(EBEEEA)
(BEBZEOEL7TE) EE®R
B A XENEES SRS
MRBEEE (T8 E 5
gl1) -sarE 5T 8 B E 2 M
MBAEE HBIREA
EE-REBRBEEFE E
ThREERAZBEBRERE
B W AR5 %M 5T 8 B
BEREEAEBABANLERA
30,0008 7 ©

—ECFEER

14.3

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Pensions - defined contribution plans

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
the Group has joined defined contribution retirement
schemes for the employees arranged by local government
labour and security authorities (the “PRC Retirement
Schemes”). The Group makes contributions to the PRC
Retirement Schemes at the applicable rates based
on the amounts stipulated by the local government
organisations. Upon retirement, the local government
labour and security authorities are responsible for
the payment of the retirement benefits to the retired
employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong
Kong) for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the laws of Hong Kong). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.3

14.4

Pensions - defined contribution plans (continued)

Employees employed by the Group in Macau SAR
are members of government-managed social benefit
schemes operated by the Macau SAR government (the
“Macau SAR Social Benefit Scheme”). The Macau SAR
operation is required to pay a monthly fixed contribution
to the social benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the social
benefits scheme operated by the Macau SAR government
is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme, MPF Scheme and Macau SAR Social
Benefit Scheme and which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions. There were also
no forfeited contributions available at 31 December 2021
and 2022 under the PRC Retirement Scheme and MPF
Scheme which may be used by the Group to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

Obligation to pay long service payment under Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, Chapter 572

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022
(the “Amended Ordinance”) was gazetted on 17 June
2022, which will eventually abolish the use of the accrued
benefits of employers’ mandatory contributions under
the MPF System to offset severance payment (“SP”) and
long service payment (‘LSP”). The Amendment will come
into effect prospectively from a date to be determined
by the Hong Kong Government, which is expected to
be in 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Under the Amended
Ordinance, the mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus
any positive/negative returns thereof after the Transition
Date can only be applied to offset the pre-Transition
Date LSP obligation but no longer eligible to offset
the post-Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore,
the LSP obligations before the Transition Date will be
grandfathered and calculated based on the last monthly
wages immediately preceding the Transition Date.
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BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

14. EEEFNREZUREEMNE 14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND

(& EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
1455%EEHAL 14.5 Five highest paid individuals
FR AEBREBEDSH The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
ATHFEE=%2 (22— the year included three (2021: four) directors whose
FIOBES HEZWE emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
HEBEN EXXZz oo HER above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2021: one)
“H((ZEZI—F %) A individual(s) are set out below.
TZSWT
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EAXRFHE 2K Basic salaries, allowances and
BEYH = benefits in kind 3,789 2,600
iBORTEF 5T B R Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 16 -
3,805 2,600
ZENTZHMEBR T The emoluments fell within the following bands:
#HE
A
Number of individuals
—E-C ="
2022 2021
1,000,001# 7Tt — HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
1,500,0007% 7T 1 -
2,500,001%8 75— HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T 1 1
2 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

14.6 Senior management

The senior management of the Group during the year
included the board of directors whose emoluments are

HREXE2HH DM (Bﬁ% reflected in the analysis presented above (note 14.1), and
141)) =% (ZEZ — three individuals (2021: one individual). The emoluments
Fi—2)ENANL ZEE of the individuals are set out below.
AMALTZEEHZWMT o
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
BEARHFE BMK Basic salaries, allowances and
BEYH &= benefits in kind 4,002 2,600
BRIREF ST B Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 20 -
4,022 2,600

ZEANLTZHMEBE K T

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

& .
A
Number of individuals
—E-C B2 —F
2022 2021
0B T— HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T 2 -
2,500,001%8 75— HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 7T 1 1
3 1

FR-AEBRTEDEMNSE
FEdERsHFAIIGNE
E7 R 51 1% % & s Em
B A& B R 2 5B o BE
mE(CEZ—F 1 8) -

168

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of interim and
final dividends (2021: Nil).

16. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following:
—E-C TE 4
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
wA L (BB1R) Profit/(Loss)
BRsEEREARK Profit/(Loss) for the purpose of
BERA (B8 2 calculating basic and diluted
wmAlL (E518) earnings/(loss) per share 167,221 (216,738)
—E-C _E_—F
2022 2021
& B Number of shares
BRstEER Weighted average number of
BEXARBF (BB = ordinary shares for the purpose
ZiERMEFEIH of calculating basic earnings/
(loss) per share 3,512,565,999 3,461,607,095

BHE_ZT_"_FRZIZEZ—F
+-_B=+—HLEFEE - BEE
BRAEEBREBENE -RIL > &
ECEC_FRIEZ—F+Z
B=+—BLEE :BERRK
MEXNRBERA (BR) KB
ENBNEERMNEFHRKREN
7 1EE o

—ECFEER

The effects of potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. Hence, the same
weighted average numbers of ordinary shares would be used
as denominator for calculating the basic and diluted earnings/
(loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

R %8
TiRiEF  HEEMEEE e RE et
Furniture,
Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements equipment vehicles Total
FH#T FHT F#T FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
D% Cost
AZE-—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 167,159 117,254 62,696 7,455 354,564
HE Disposals (164,860) - - - (164,860)
b6 Written off - (26,956) (1,254) (487 (28,697)
RIB-_—F+"A=+—HkK At 31 December 2021 and 1
—Z-"#-F-H January 2022 2,299 90,298 61,442 6,968 161,007
RE Additions - 2,036 2,661 269 4,966
HE Disposals (2,299) - - (682) (2,981)
HEMBAE (FHizE40() Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(ii) - (2,036) (1,829) - (3,865)
b6 Written off - (79,257) (55,362) - (134,619)
RZEZZH+”ZR=+—-H At 31 December 2022 - 11,041 6,912 6,555 24,508
RAMERRAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
R_E_—£—F—H At 1 January 2021 61,629 114,251 55,741 7,455 239,076
AEERE Charge for the year 37 2,013 2,791 - 4,841
HE Disposals (60,860) - - - (60,860)
Wi Written off - (26,548) (1,135) (487 (28,170)
BEEE (1) Impairment loss (note 18) - - 3,866 - 3,866
AZZZ—F+ZH=+—HKE At 31 December 2021 and
“Z-—#-A-H 1 January 2022 806 89,716 61,263 6,968 158,753
AEERE Charge for the year 5 477 398 4 884
HeE Disposals 811) - - (682) (1,4993)
HEMBAT (5E40(i)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40() - (291) (166) - (457)
s Written off - (79,257) (55,362) - (134,619)
RZE-_ZH+-A=+—-H At 31 December 2022 - 10,645 6,133 6,200 23,068
IREE Carrying amount
KRZEZZF+ZA=+—-8H At 31 December 2022 - 396 779 265 1,440
RIBZ-F#+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2021 1,493 582 179 - 2,254
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18. FRAEEE 18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

[EYiEN=¢7/ES
Leased
properties
FAET
HK$'000
A _E_—F—H—H At 1 January 2021 151,746
NE Additions 36,270
e Depreciation (69,011)
RERIEHEY= Early termination of leased properties (91,459)
BB 5 18 Impairment loss (13,873)

WIZEZ—F+ZH=+—HM& At 31 December 2021 and
2 -HF—HA—H 1 January 2022 13,673
NE Additions 74,898
HEWB AR (FiEE40(i)) Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40(ii)) (6,668)
e Depreciation (26,731)
VRN SE=! Impairment loss (1,849)
RWZE_Z_H&#+”-HB=+—H At 31 December 2022 53,323

et :

iy MZ_EBE__EF#+_B=+—

H>96,528,000#87T (=&
— 4 1 27,981,000% 7T) K
EQ%ELWSS 323,000
—®” —4% 113,673,000
WIBRMERREE T M
% EHE S E
723%’1&&%&}\&%3%%5
FENREER RS
EELATESHREEENREER

—
= |

o

0 A ol I
Eﬂﬁﬂy%@?%?ﬂ

o

i)y RZE_Z_F+HB=+—
BrRESTRENS  E£A8
HEEA5,564,00087T (2

Z—4% 27,546,000 1) >

DOBREMBERTEER #

BEREERHERD I AR

MEABHKBEEEBHTEL
EWAMEE, KEBKARM
BEsREATHEENRRLER
ZEER BELKEEEHHE
BTN FEEEEEETNRS
EEXBEUMNTREeE R
EEBMMNATKRESESHB
%£16,445,0008 7T (Z &~ —
119,607,000 T) » IR

EEDRREREEEURY
¥ BERRERINERSRE
1,849,000t (Z & - —%F
13,873,000 70) REHE T (=
T~ —4 :3,866,000# 7T) °

. —

Notes:

(i) Lease liabilities of HK$96,528,000 (2021:

HK$27,981,000) are

recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$53,323,000
(2021: HK$13,673,000) as at 31 December 2022. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

(ii) At 31 December 2022, before impairment testing, the right-

of-use assets of HK$5,564,000 (2021:

HK$27,546,000) was

allocated to wholesaling and retailing of beauty, health-care
and lifestyle products segment. Due to the adverse impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic on retail operations, the Group
assessed the recoverable amount of the CGUs comprising the
wholesaling and retailing of beauty, health-care and lifestyle
products segment determined on the basis of their value in use
using discounted cash flow method. The recoverable amounts
of the CGUs have been reduced to HK$16,445,000 (2021:
HK$19,607,000) and impairment losses of HK$1,849,000

(2021: HK$13,873,000) and HK$Nil (2021:

HK$3,866,000)

was recognised for right-of-use assets and property, plant and

equipment respectively for the current year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:(continued)

(i) (#) (iy  (continued)
RIS RELZNMERBRA The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method are
ERFERRX - BREX those regarding the discount rates, growth rates, budgeted
HEMNEXREXEENRK & gross margin and turnover during the year. The Group estimates
ERFERARMENMBEHER discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
HEEENMREEFEURNE assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
B Bz B 5T 1 B AR AT F) X B RG to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on long-term average
I i EEXEDERBETESE economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
BEAKEEBMEMENER businesses of the CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and
FTHREEBREE - FBEER X turnover are based on past practices and expectations on
REEBBILERBENMBER market development.
HMIBEEMNWTER-
AEBRRHURERAEEN > Z The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
FERARBESHENRFHRM recent financial budgets approved by the directors.
BEEo
HREREBAAEBREERNZ The cash flow projections and discount rate have been
Z__HERZIE”—%+°AH reassessed as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 taking into
=+ —H&EEMHMAFE B P 5T consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
RTEHEMESRKFESEEE current year due to how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
ERMRBEENF A RS/ IB and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including potential
BEEER (BRESAEESE disruptions of the Group’s retail operations. The rates used to
KRENBETE) MEMBAR discount the forecast cash flows from the Group’s sales of the
FERSEENGBTIAHEE wholesaling and retailing of beauty, health-care, and lifestyle
HoREBRBEMABRERBE products operation are 25.14% and 20.71% for Hong Kong and
AEBHEMLERTEER Macau respectively (2021: 17.60% and 21.26% for Hong Kong
BEREGRHEHEREENE and Macau respectively).
AR REETHENELR
DAAE25.14%K%20.71% (=
2:—& EEREMD A
7.60%K21.26%) ©
2022 2021
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEREEEZITERX Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets 26,731 69,011
EEBEZMERZ Interest expense on lease liabilities
(D+J\HT\§EZZI§) (included in finance costs) 6,116 9,631
MRAEERR Expenses relating to short-term lease
MY Gt ATTEREX) (included in administrative expense) 7,419 16,551
BRENFHETKRES COVID-19 related rent concessions
BRI & E R received - (465)

HENRESMEBAEFFTHR
istat.40

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 41.4.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:(continued)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group leases
various retail stores for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 year to 4 years (2021: 1 year
to 4 years), but may have extension and termination options
as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.
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In addition, the Group owns an industrial building where its

office building and warehouse are located.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension options
exercisable by the Group to provide operational flexibility.
The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether
it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options. If
the Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options, the future lease payments during the extension periods
are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the occurrence
of either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there has been no

such triggering event.

In 2021, the Group leased a number of retail stores which
contain variable lease payment terms that are based on
sales generated from the retail stores and minimum annual
lease payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms
are common in retail stores in Hong Kong where the Group
operates. The amount of fixed lease payments recognised in
profit or loss under such lease arrangement for the year is

HK$8,377,000.

In 2022, the Group has no lease with variable lease payment

term.

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that an increase in sales
generated from these retail stores by 10% would have increased

the lease payments by HK$Nil.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
T —HFAF+ _H=+—HIEFE  Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

HittmpEE
Other intangible assets
8 iE Hith#iE B
e (BA) (BA) (BA) @t
Other
Brandname Trademark Software
Goodwill*  (purchased) (purchased) (purchased) Total
FET BT FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
D Cost
A _E-_—&—HF—H At 1 January 2021 7,561 1,113 135 1,338 10,147
b6z Written-off (5,520) (1,113) (139) - 6,772)
ERERE Exchange differences - - 4 37 41
RZEZ—%F+Z-ZHA=+—H" At31December 2021,
—E-_”"5-F—-HBk 1 January 2022 and
—E-_”_&#+”ZB=+-H 31 December 2022 2,041 - - 1,375 3,416
BHEHKRAE Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
RZE-_—-F5—HF—H At 1 January 2021 7,561 111 27 135 7,834
TEEHH Amortisation for the year - - 12 112 124
e Written off (5,520) (111) (39) - (5,670)
HEBE Impairment loss - - - 1,123 1,128
fEREH Exchange differences - - - 5 5
RZFEZ—%+-HA=+—H" At31 December 2021,
—_E-__E-A-Bk 1 January 2022 and
—E-__&+-HB=+—-H 31 December 2022 2,041 - - 1,375 3,416

fREE

Carrying amount

WZEZZF+ZH=+—H At 31 December 2022

RZZEZ—F+"A=+—H At31 December 2021 - - - - -

* EREBAHBBENEE D * Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated to
EXAEEMRBERTEES TL the Group’s CGUs identified under the wholesaling and retailing
BEEREERHEREBNIR of beauty, health-care and lifestyle products operation.
EEB-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI

2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
TaRE - BAFE Listed investments,
FrE at fair value
% 2 5% &5 Equity securities 24,021 71,061
BAFEFEN Unlisted equity securities
JE LR A at fair value 349 111
24,370 71,172
N_E__HFR_E-_—F+_ As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of listed
B=+—H ' EWmBESHFZAFE securities are based on current bid prices.
ThiRIRIREREEABETE

RIEZ R —F+=
BA=+—B BRIELHTHHL
HEIERHIE LN S ®RE WIE
TR ENRAFENHESSZE
SNEB I AL L E TR B T 5 L BOA
ETHNEEmMET  WHERSE
THEITLEBEATDN L EEEHR
HELX (FE=ZBRAFEF2)
FTAREMITIRES20.5% (=
BT —fF 125%)

BE—_ZE-_—_F£+-B=+—H
LEEE REBEMNRIRS R
FEoEANATESAHEMEZE
WHZEMEEN EHESRIE
IHESEREMEZEREERA
F{EEIE13,513,0008 T (ZE
——F ! AF¥{EWES,200,000
BIt) R AFEWER238,0008
T(ZEZ—F  AFEKIA
123,000 75) °

—ECFEER

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, as there is no quoted
market price in an active market for the unlisted securities, the
fair value of unlisted securities was determined by the directors
with reference to the valuation carried out by an external
independent valuer by using market comparable approach
which is based on enterprise value-to-sales ratio on certain
market comparables (Level 3 fair value measurements). The
liquidity discount rate used is 20.5% (2021: 25%).

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
fair value loss of HK$13,513,000 (2021: fair value gain of
HK$8,200,000) and fair value gain of HK$238,000 (2021:
fair value loss of HK$123,000) related to listed securities and
unlisted securities respectively which are classified as financial
assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the reporting period in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI (continued)

MEE (&
BAFEFAEMEZERGEZ® Financial assets at FVTOCI are denominated in the following
MEEUTHEBE currencies:
—s=-= B
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT HKD 24,021 71,061
ETT usD 349 111
24,370 71,172

REHE ~EEE—THEL
TRAZH FHEEZFTEDN
E—THBE B2EAATHEE
AT _ZE_F+WTAF
_=FEZBEZH+Z=ZHRERZZEZ=
FEZBtHBN Ao

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group has further
disposed the listed equity securities. For further details of the
disposal, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 14 February 2023, 23 February 2023 and 7 March 2023.

21. REBELABTIMNKE 21. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES
—E=-= B
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FELEHEE: Unlisted investments:

DIEFEE

Share of net assets - -

WZE - _—_F+_F > ~&EEHIE
TE T BB R GE S E T
SN ERRE T ZTER RME
B oAEERZEWELATH
BEEH100%H L E30% (M &F
40(ii)) A > REBRZEKN
BAEMNKERBEDEARST
BEAEBNBHEQNAR HE_E
T TE+ZR=+—HLEEEW
REBAEDIEESBN A FER
DAHEEUHRRMS L AE
Ko

In December 2022, certain subsidiaries of the Group allotted
ordinary shares to entities controlled by Mr. Chen Jianwen.
Upon the share allotments, the Group’s equity interests in
these subsidiaries reduced from 100% to 30% (note 40(ii)).
Accordingly, the Group’s investments in these subsidiaries
were accounted for as associates of the Group by using equity
method. The fair values of the retained interests and share of
results for the year ended 31 December 2022 are considered
immaterial to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21,

For the year ended 31 December 2022

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

n

BONJOUR

Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows:

BUWE
P fEts
A/
ML/ BETR 3
st S BRER Filbebadag TEEBED
Percentage
of ownership
Place of interest/voting
incorporation/ Issued and power/profit Principal

418 Name registration paid-up capital sharing activities

BERSFAE Guangdong, Hong Kong & Macau 5 100# 7T 40% -
BERBRRAT Youth Entrepreneur Limited Hong Kong HK$100 (ZBZ—F: 40%) Inactive

40% (2021: 40%)

SRREEERRAR Bonjour Brand Management Limited ) 3,650 7T 30% LEEE

Hong Kong HK$3,650 (ZZEZ—%F :100%) Inactive
30% (2021: 100%)
ERBREREBRAT Bonjour Global Beauty Limited 5 3,650 7T 30% REERRE
Hong Kong HK$3,650 (ZZZ—% :1100%) BHLRER
30% (2021: 100%) EmTE
Operating beauty
and slimming
centre and retailing
beauty products

BRERERAT Bonjour Health Limited ) 14,1508 7T 30% REZARE

Hong Kong HK$14,150 (ZZZ—%:100%) BHROEER
30% (2021: 100%) ERTE

Operating beauty

and slimming

centre and retailing

beauty products

ERNBREEERAT Bonjour Technology Development E# 7,080 7T 30% R F

Limited Hong Kong HK$7,030 (ZEZ—4F:100%) Inactive

30% (2021: 100%)
EAMBRAE HK Mall Limited Y 14,0308 7T 30% EFEH
Hong Kong HK$14,030 (ZZZ—%:100%) E-commerce

30% (2021: 100%)

BHERRAT Tong Lik Limited (formerly known RBRTEE 50,0001 30% HmEE
(RiEA =R (85N as Bonjour Cosmetic (Overseas) British Virgin EREE (CTZ—F:100%) Inactive
BRRAE) Limited) Islands AIETN 30% (2021: 100%)

EERAE
1,000 & 5%
HEEA1ETH
BETRE
50,000
authorised
capital of US$1
each/ 1,000
issued
share capital at
US$1 each
TEEFR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

T _HFA+_HFH=+—HIEFEE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

REETLENKE 22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
g BT —4F
2022 2021
FAET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
%’L B A Cost of investment 351,412 -
DIEWEEBER Share of post-acquisition results (7,787) -
343,625 -

W_E2E__&F#+-_B=+—H">
AEERGELENREEBUW
T

As at 31 December 2022, details of the Group’s investment in
a joint venture are as follows:

BT ES FristEs
BERBRR  FEER/ Y HfEAR B TEEY
Country/ place of
Form of business incorporation and Registered % of Principal
BECELAE Name of joint venture structure business capital interest held activities
CR Business Innovation CR Business Innovation EREBREH HEHE 75% MELE
Investment Fund L.P. Investment Fund L.P. Exempted limited The Cayman 550,000,000 (ZEZ—% Property investment
[G-%3) (the “Fund”) partnership Islands B (e )
HK$550,000,000 75%
(note) (2021: N/A)
Jiog-:a Note:
WZE-__F+-"HA=+—H =& As at 31 December 2022, the Group has capital commitment of
EEEAEESEEFHNE EHIER HK$61,088,000 to the Fund.
61,088,000 7T ©
RZE2E_Z_HF#=ZBZ+NH>& On 28 March 2022, Bonjour Investment Management Limited (a
’Tﬁ T E B E ﬁ [RAB (KAEW wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, “Bonjour Investment”), CR
2ENBLABE TEMRMKEEI) ~CR Capital Investment (Cayman) Limited (“CRCI") (together with Bonjour
Capital Investment (Cayman) Investment, the “Limited Partner(s)”) and CR Business Innovation

Limited (TCRCIlJ) (HER=EIR
KERBRTAREEAL) HCR
Business Innovation Investment
GP Company Limited ((Z&E& %
ANFTILEREEHE (TEREE
WeEl) RRERE B BT8R
FEE)  BEREBAED

P (5
%%ﬁi\%’ﬂ% %550,000,0007% 7T >
EERABHARRER R _F

R

ZHEFRBZ+NAB FEEBRESE
'EHETﬁTApex Centric Investment
Limited&Apex Frame Limited (4%
A THEEH) MEBRE-

Investment GP Company Limited (the “General Partner”), entered
into a limited partnership agreement (the “Limited Partnership
Agreement”) and a subscription agreement, pursuant to which the
parties have agreed upon, among other things, that the Limited
Partners shall contribute a maximum of HK$550,000,000 to the Fund
subject to the terms of the Limited Partnership Agreement. On 29
June 2022, the Group disposed the entire equity interest in Apex
Centric Investment Limited and Apex Frame Limited (collectively
referred to as the “Disposal Group”) to the Fund.
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BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

22. REELENKE (B) 22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
TXHINFBEREARNE Set out below are the summarised financial information of the
N BEERBTE . Fund which is accounted for using the equity method:

g
2022
FAET
HK$’000
MEEE Current assets 8,621
ERBEE Non-current assets 844,804
mEaR Current liabilities (13,282)
FRBEIE Non-current liabilities (450,000)
BEEFE Net assets 390,143
FAUEBEEREE Included in the above assets and liabilities:
RERIFEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 8,621
FnEmemas FTaEEa K Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade
HMEA RS B E) and other payables and provisions) 450,000
g
AAZ+hBE
+=ZA=+—H

HARE (T2 HAR)

Period from

29 June
2022 to
31 December
2022
(the “Period”)
FET
HK$’000
M EREERSZ 48R Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the Period (10,383)
2022
FET
HK$’000
ﬁ%ﬁ¥i§}%i$ﬁ%§+ Total net assets of the joint venture 390,143
REEMMFEBRGLE Proportion of ownership interests held by Group 75%
mE Goodwill 51,018
FEMBRRPRaEEEN Carrying amount of the investment
KRENREE in a joint venture in the consolidated financial
statements 343,625
AREBITEELSHENR S S b2 The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities relating to
ML ERENERREE-o its investment in the joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
23. 7§ 23. INVENTORIES
—E-C TE 4
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DUMEEZIRES R Merchandise stock for resale 7,127 26,373
24. BB HERM 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
—E-C —m-
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEUWL B 5 BR R Trade receivables 6,902 6,582
FEEHEEBEEE Allowance for expected credit
losses (6,125) (2,500)
777 4,082
(a) REBRZMHBEPRIHEE R (a) The Group’s sales to wholesale customers are entered

NAFE30E1200 (ZE - —
F :30FE120H) 2R EH
ETO TEHEZRKES
A BERE HEAEFT30H
£ :30H) " E

— = —

e —

into on credit terms ranging from 30 to 120 days (2021:
30 to 120 days), and trade receivables under retail sales
are due within 30 days (2021: 30 days) from the date of
billings. The ageing analysis of trade receivables before
allowance for expected credit losses is as follows:

Ho-BWEZERM NKRA
SHEERREERR) ZRE

DWW

o= -4
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HERR Wholesales customers
0-30H 0 - 30 days - -
31-60H 31 - 60 days - -
61-90H 61 — 90 days - -
91-120H 91 - 120 days - -
120 U £ Over 120 days 3,517 3,557
3,517 3,557
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BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

24. BREZKR™M (&)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

n

BONJOUR

—E-C B4
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000

TEHEZ Trade receivables

e E F R under retail sales
0-30H 0 - 30 days 374 384
31-60H 31 - 60 days 71 595
61-90H 61 — 90 days 98 61
91-120H 91 - 120 days 164 134
12080 ML Over 120 days 2,678 1,851
3,385 3,025
48 5t Total 6,902 6,582
(b) "EBREKE ZERABHE (b) The gross carrying amounts of the Group’s trade

REEUTIERSE:

receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

BT
BT (MRM7T) st
Macau
Pataca
HKD (“MOP?) Total
FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
—EZCH 2022 6,895 7 6,902
e % 2021 6,489 93 6,582
TR TFFR 181
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

o= -
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$ 000
B5il% Trade deposits 18,980 14,098
HMET& Other deposits 2,708 2,027
H #7819 3 2 B FE WBR =X Other prepaid expenses and
receivables 4,694 4,224
FEWER (s ()) Loan receivable (note (i) 6,058 -
FEUS B & A B FRIE (MEEX(i))  Amounts due from associates
(note (i) 12,737 -
45,177 20,349
e Less:
FFAERBHEEN Loan receivable included in non-
FEUW & 2 (M s%)) current assets (note (i)) (4,900) -
40,277 20,349

KrzE Notes:

(i) MIZEBEZ_F - xX&EEREH
52 H3%6,000,00078 75 A —
LBUEZAHE—EYWE
HERAEEN —BIFERS
RXHm - R_E__F+_A
Z—t+—HB ERERERESEHE
4.675%5T B WL —IBY %
ERBREBEVIOEREE -
RZZEZZH+ZH=+—
H BEHEYENAFEEY
6,900,000 7T ©

(i) MEWEBEQTINIESEILH
PENRBEEREE RIZ
—_—_&®#+-_RBA=+—HB &R
SRR ERBEXLEEEHE
N EE R EWREE QT REE
%uﬁz@ﬁ'ﬁﬁjﬁééiﬁwﬂﬂgﬁ
EO

26. FE(THIRAE:S NIE 26.
ENREEBINEBIIEE S
H-EEKHF RENRBEEXRE

182

AT BHERLIRER T (&

MERABDHEF WER_-F
“T—FARBIZTABRERRIT

Ex51M) &6 -

(i) In 2022, the Group disposed a property to an independent
third party for HK$6,000,000 under a financial arrangement,
which constituted a non-cash transaction for the year. As at
31 December 2022, the loan receivable is interest bearing at
4.675% per annum, secured by a property and to be repaid
within 10 years. The secured property has a fair value of
approximately HK$6,900,000 as at 31 December 2022.

(if) The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2022,
the Company’s controlling shareholder, Mr Chen Jianwen has
indemnified the Group against any losses that may result from
the non-recovery of the amounts due from associates.

AMOUNTS DUE TO FORMER RELATED PARTIES

The amounts due to former related parties are non-trade in
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The related companies are controlled by Dr. Ip and Ms. Chung
(former directors of the Company) who were removed as
executive directors on 29 June 2021.

Annual Report 2022



PR R MAE (40
HE-E- G+ -FA=+—HILFE

27. EAERKRERRIE
ERNIERREEREEENR
EBREIEEZMEE EIKF 7
2.75% st ERBMIERNERE-

n

BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

27. AMOUNT DUE TO THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to Mr. Chen Jianwen, the controlling
shareholder, is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest bearing
at 2.75% and repayable in 1 year.

28. IRITKINELEER 28. BANK AND CASH BALANCES
—E-— -
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
IRITAFHEIEE Cash at bank and on hand 17,929 41,634
EHER Time deposits - 200
RITRIBE S RBEE Total bank and cash balances 17,929 41,834
AEBZRITRIASEREEN The carrying amount of the Group’s total bank and cash
REEUTHEEKSE ! balances are denominated in the following currencies:
—s=-= =&
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
— BT - HKD 15,561 34,448
— B Py IT - MOP 416 5,384
—ARE - RMB 1,776 1,660
— %7 - UsD 176 127
— H1th — Others - 215
17,929 41,834
W_&2_—%+_-_B=+—H"> As at 31 December 2021, the fixed interest rates on bank

RITEHFER (FHEBAR12@A)
ZEIEEMERBOAE - FITIR
EUBHBRTERMEZFZEF
RAB MEASHEESRSNX
}_ngDEIO

A —
I —

F+ZHA=+—
B AEBRFPEZHBER G
MARBABZIRTREBS &
BR 755,000 T (ZE - —4F
801,000 ) - BARBERIKR
P = e N E ) N ]
RitE-EERNEZTERTR
il o

—ECFEER

time deposits, with maturity of 12 months, were 0.1% per
annum. Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates, and is therefore subject to cash flow
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to HK$55,000 (2021: HK$801,000). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.
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29. NEABFHELENEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
DEABFLEENEE Assets classified as held for sale - 498,454
HNEARBEHEEE Liabilities directly associated
HEEEENaE with assets classified as held
for sales - 287,914

BHE_ZE”_—F+/8=+—
HEFE AEBFBYBI—%
BIESEBMHE W HEZBESIE
BHEOTE—BE > UBZEE
EEBHEBERNINERERE
FHEXREBPApex Centric
Investment LimitedkApex
Frame Limited (fifBATHEE
B MR- R -8 —
+ZB=+—H > ARBEH
EFEER _ T - _F ¥ FE5%
BH-HEEBRR _E_-_—F+ =
B=+—HHNFZEEKEBEE
MM

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group identified
a strategic partner and agreed with the strategic partner a
plan to sell the Group’s entire equity interest in Apex Centric
Investment Limited and Apex Frame Limited (collectively
referred to as the “Disposal Group”) to a limited partnership
fund to be established by the strategic partner. As at 31
December 2021, the Company anticipated that the Disposal
would be completed in the first half year of 2022. The major
classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group at 31

December 2021 are as follows:

FET
HK$’000
MEBERFZE Property, plant and equipment 497,481
e kKBRS Rental and utility deposits 769
FEREIE ] REMEWRIE Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 91
IR1TRIRE 4R Bank and cash balances 113
NEAFIEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale 498,454
HMEMZIE - Bl E K Other payables, deposits received and accrued
FEstE R charges 1,229
RITER Bank borrowings 195,086
Al s G ([EE34) Convertible loans (note 34) 90,186
EIERIBEE (H5E35) Deferred tax liabilities (note 35) 1,413
HNEABEHEEESTEMBBZ  Liabilities directly associated with assets
afE classified as held for sale 287,914
DA EHENEEFE Net assets classified as held for sale 210,540
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W _E_—F+_/BA=+—H"
HEEBEKBEEA479,262,000
BETHYME BERIKREEW®
HBEEAHEEBEBRITER
195,086,000 Tt AE B IR
THEH162,513,000% 7T A # 17
(MF3£32) °

 E_ZE-_—F+°ZA=
H>H&&EKEXIRIITME
195,086,000 7T

2 |

BHEzE_E-_—EF+"B=Z+—
BIEEE HEEBRER TR
TRHRERRTERA#RFLEER
WEBITDAF EEN X T AW
BTENBER AL RITE™R
195,086,000& Tt = & i iR 17
EKRIREBEENEER - PN _ZT
——#+ZA=+—H > %%R
TEIAFEENPBEATHEGE-
ERFHEZORBERRETE
IRITEIREREZEEN

U0 B EE40 ()Pt > A E E B R
—_E__F#XNAZt+ABRERT
HHEEEMNHE-

—ECFEER

n
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Property, plant and equipment of the Disposal Group with
carrying amount of HK$479,262,000 as at 31 December
2021 was pledged as security for the Disposal Group’s
bank borrowings of HK$195,086,000 and the Group’s bank
borrowings of HK$162,513,000 (note 32).

The Disposal Group was in default of bank borrowings of
HK$195,086,000 as of 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Disposal Group
breached certain covenant clauses in banking facility letters in
relation to the maintenance of the EBITDA interest coverage
ratio of the Disposal Group. As a result, bank borrowings of
HK$195,086,000 is subject to an early repayment option by
the banks. Such bank borrowings are reclassified as current
liabilities as at 31 December 2021. Breaches in meeting the
financial covenants and shareholding requirement would permit
the bank to immediately call borrowings.

As mentioned in note 40(i), the Group has completed the
disposal of the Disposal Group on 29 June 2022.
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30. BEHEZERM 30. TRADE PAYABLES
(a) XREBENEZERMZEE (a) The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based
BRotm (ZIWEREYHE) on the date of receipt of goods, is as follows:
mE
—E-C —T 5
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0-308 0 - 30 days 512 1,236
31-60H 31 - 60 days 951 560
61-90H 61 — 90 days 360 247
91-120H 91 - 120 days 43 704
1208 M Over 120 days 15,499 18,297
17,365 16,044
by AEBZENEZEZW (b) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are
REBEUTNEKSE denominated in the following currencies:
BT R AR BX 7T Hith Hast
HKD MOP RMB EUR Other Total

T TET TET TFET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—EZC 2022 16,105 - 409 607 244 17,365

B 2021 15,928 110 6 - - 16,044
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022
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31. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND ACCRUED

&H CHARGES
—E-= —E-—F
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
EstE T AA Accrued staff costs 10,772 10,346
FEstTAE Y EE(E Accrued leasehold improvements 27,935 27,304
HMESRX Other accrued expenses 85,727 84,969
HMMIEE SR Other sundry creditors 3,282 4,692
127,716 127,311
32. RITREMMBR 32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
—E-C -
2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000
FRHRITER Short-term bank borrowings 4,296 162,513
H & Other borrowings 37,467 34,975
41,763 197,488
_E__FFR 187
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

—®2-= —Emo
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—F R Within one year 18,364 171,513
—EM EERBBERE More than one year, but not
exceeding two years 9,666 15,975
MEM EEARBBERSE More than two years, but not
more than five years 10,000 10,000
N—E%IEEEE Portion of bank loans that are due
BIEREREZRKER for repayment after one year but
HIRTERI D contain a repayment on demand
(RARBEBETEY) clause (shown under current
liabilities) 3,733 -
41,763 197,488
AR+ ZEARNE Less: Amount due for settlement
EEZRE (RRga within 12 months (shown
BT E%) under current liabilities)
—RITER - Bank borrowings (4,296) (162,513)
—HMER - Other borrowings (17,801) (9,000)
IS —f— ZERAEEA Amount due for settlement after
mHEZ A 12 months 19,666 25,975
N _E_—F+ZRA=+—8"> As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of

$RITE 162,513,000 7T LUK
BEAREBRDBARBIEFHEEERE
HEfro

WZE-_—_®#+-"/8=+—H"
$R1TE 4,296,000 THAA
BIERRERB I EFER

A —_E_—-F+_RA=+—8"
HMME 9,000,000 THALE
E— 2B ESEEER-

HK$162,513,000 are secured by charges over the Group’s

assets classified as held for sale.

As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings of HK$4,296,000
are guaranteed by the Company’s controlling shareholder,

Mr. Chen Jianwen.

As at 31 December 2021, other borrowings of HK$9,000,000
are guaranteed by a former director of the Group.
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32. IRITKHEMMBER (A8) 32. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(a) RZEBE__FR_ZFT - — (a) As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the Group’s bank
F+ZRBR=+—H FIEX and other borrowings are denominated in HKD.
EERETREMERA U
BITEE

by XEBR+ A =+—4H (b) The interest rates of the Group’s bank and other
ZHRITREMMER ZH =X borrowings at 31 December were as follows:
mE

—EZE ET-&

2022 2021

RITER Bank borrowings ERARBESAR  FEBRTHERE625EE
REEF=E-2.5% FRARITEERE6.5E

HKMC Prime rate -2.5% HIBOR + 6.25% to

HIBOR + 6.5%

HfER Other borrowings 2.75EE9E LEE18E
2.75% to 9% 4% to 18%

(c) HEAfthfEmM37,467,000 () Other borrowings of HK$37,467,000 (2021:
B oo (Z & Z —&F HK$34,975,000) are arranged at fixed interests rates and
34,975,000 7T) 2 & E # expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. Bank
X SKREBAZTAFE borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing
B ER R R1THE AT the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

ARz H AMAEEE
AZBREREF AR o

EEMHFAERERNATER The directors estimate the fair values of the Group’s borrowings

IREERE- are closed to their carrying amounts.

RBEE_ZE_—=F+_B=+— During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group

BIEFER ZEBEERIETH breached certain covenant clauses in banking facility letters

BERPEREFRAEREBHE in relation to the maintenance of the debt-to-inventory ratio of

SEhXFmEE FTRE H I - the Group. As a result, bank borrowings of HK$162,513,000

SEITE162,513,0008B T2 R is subject to an early repayment option by the banks. Such

RBPBTHRAIEEEE#E ZE bank borrowings are reclassified as current liabilities as at 31

BTEIN_ZE_—F+_8H December 2021. However, the banks have not requested for

—+t—HEWDBEARHER any early repayment of the bank borrowings.

PATH » 817 i 4% B K 42 A 16 B 4R
TR
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33.

34.

190

HEAaR 33. LEASE LIABILITIES
RIEHERIE REREMEZRE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
“E--f T CZE-Z _E_—F&
2022 2021 2022 2021
FHET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
—ER Within one year 37,788 22,629 31,323 21,150
S EERE In the second to fifth years,
(BEEEME) inclusive 72,215 7,017 65,205 6,831
110,003 29,646 96,528 27,981
BARHEER Less: Future finance charges (13,475) (1,665) ARBANA  TEHNA
HEREZRE Present value of lease obligations 96,528 27,981 96,528 27,981
W+ ZE B A # 4 E ZLess: Amount due for settlement
FEMRRBHEETE within 12 months
5Il) (shown under current
liabilities) (31,323) (21,150)
R+Z@B#%IH Amount due for settlement after
EEZHIE 12 months 65,205 6,831

WNIE - _HER_E-_—F+_
B=+—H FrEMREBEUSE
TTEHE

BRAREEERNMEFHEE

BERNEKA8.08% (ZE_Z—F
8.99%) o
AEKRERN 34.

ATE_—FEBNAHJE
EREREETFREEFERAFT
(TRIEIHXTBBAL) - RER
BOTHBEAER EHoH
BMARXRDPEBER AEEES
129,500,000 B TN EREH %
FHR0.19BTHEH -

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all lease liabilities were
denominated in HKS.

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to
lease liabilities was 8.08% (2021: 8.99%).

CONVERTIBLE LOANS

The convertible loan notes were issued to Karfond Limited
(“Karfond” or the “Subscriber”) on 9 April 2021. The notes
are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issue of the notes and their settlement
date. The loan notes in principal amount of HK$129,500,000
are convertible at HK$0.19 per share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

34. AIHBER (B 34. CONVERTIBLE LOANS (continued)

HEBHERME D BHELRNL =
TTREONBABRBHAERA
BAINEER BEASAEBRED
REEHEBOD REELATES
FONWMEREBFFXLNE
EREERH-

W —F+tA/H" T
EHMmBENEH19,000,0008

If the whole or any part of notes are not converted into ordinary
shares of the Company by 9 April 2026, the relevant non-
converted portion will be redeemed at par. Interest of 8.0%
per annum on outstanding principal amount will be paid semi-
annually up until that settlement date.

On 6 July 2021, the convertible loan notes of HK$19,000,000
are converted to 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company

T HBBAEBR AKX QT
100,000,000k f&0.19BTtH
T B (MF5E37) o

(note 37) at HK$0.19 per share by the Subscriber.

BT BMREREBEMRMWERN
FIESMEFEENREGEN D AR
EEDZBEOFOT :

The net proceeds received from the issue of the convertible
loan notes have been split between the liability element and an
equity component, as follows:

FAET
HK$’000
DETEBENZHEEE  Nominal value of convertible loan notes issued 129,500
RETHRRES D Equity component at date of issue 27,973
BREREIS DR Z A Transaction cost related to equity component (441)
S, Conversion of shares (4,104)
AT —F+_"HA=+—H Equity component at 31 December 2021 and
rRZEBE-__F—F—H 1 January 2022
B9 Bzt &R 23,428
EREM Early redemption (23,428)
N_E-_F+"H=+—H Equity component at 31 December 2022
B9 A% REEL 3 -
RETHHENEESHD Liability component at date of issue 101,527
HEaBEdN BB FZMZA  Transaction cost related to liability component (1,602)
L Einliogh) Conversion of shares (14,527)
ISR (fFEE11) Interest charged (note 11) 9,588
BFE Interest paid (4,800)
RZZE_—F+"HB=+—H Liability component at 31 December 2021 and
rkRZEZ”ZH—F—H 1 January 2022
ESEEREE ) 90,186
FMEREZ FPEE11) Interest charged (note 11) 6,522
[SEREiRS Interest paid (6,522)
IR ER (MY5E29) Early redemption (note 29) (90,186)

RZE__#F#+_"_B=+—H Liability component at 31 December 2022
NEEE D -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

AIEBRER (&) 34. CONVERTIBLE LOANS (continued)
AEEFERIXBEENDZ The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an
EEAER15.1%tEEH o effective interest rate of 15.1% to the liability component.
N_E_—F+"HB=+—H" As at 31 December 2021, the convertible loan of
PEBER110,500,0007%8 5T U HK$110,500,000 are secured by charges over the Company’s
AT M BIEFRIEHER shares.
BHE_ET_—_F#+_-_B=+— During the year ended 31 December 2022, the convertible
HEFE AJ#SBERANE loans were fully redeemed by the Group upon the completion
RHEEEFBE (EERFBERWH of the Disposal (as defined and detailed in note 40()).
40(i)) SER B BB EEE -
IR E M IE 35. DEFERRED TAX
UTAAEERIZEILERIEE The following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities
EkE8E: recognised by the Group:
MERIBRE  RERERE HttEFEEE Bzt
Accelerated Decelerated Other
tax tax intangible
depreciation depreciation assets Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
RZE-_—-F—F—H At 1 January 2021 (3,552) - (250) (3,802
EFEEBRER Credit to profit or loss for the year 2,139 - 250 2,389
BREEDBARFLEEE Transfer to liabilities directly associated
BRiERENAaRE (E29) with assets classified as held for
sale (note 29) 1,413 - - 1,413

RZEZ—-F¥+Z-RA=+—-RH>
—_E__E—-B-ARk
—E--&E+ZHA=+—-H

At 31 December 2021,
1 January 2022 and
31 December 2022

RHEEHR LEMEKSA
ZHREBBZZREZEYN
128,181,000 Tt (Z & - —4&F:
99,508,00078 JT) Mk IE R 18
EE CRAEARKAKBEAHREZR
MEM - AHBERBEEERIER
B4 EE o

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses
with tax effect of approximately HK$128,181,000 (2021:
HK$99,508,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Annual Report 2022



n

BONJOUR

B RMEE (&)
BE_E__HF+_HA=+—HIFE

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

36. REIRZEE&®E 36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES

REEBREGEG > FEBARN
ETERTRAERAEBRELDRS
mBEFZEENKELERASELY
—EBRNR-BNZEBRFE
ERBEzZHEKRBRBERME
THERBEAERZ EEMHMNER
Rt Rt 2 A E B EAEHRE
BzRmE - AER L EREEM
EEREABHRTEERHES-

RERBTEEZREGLEER
B _HERZIFE”Z—F+ZAH
=+ —HEPMBEAFEHEAERL
B TAFTENEE R ET

REEEMHRRRESRS Z RAR

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employee’s
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by entitlements
accrued under the Group’s defined contribution retirement
scheme that is attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations.

An actuarial valuation of long service payment liabilities was

carried out at 31 December 2022 and 2021, by BMI Appraisals
Limited, using the projected unit credit method.

The amount of long service payment liability recognised in the

BeaBEEsBUT consolidated statement of financial position is as follows:
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RIRBEEETZIRE Present value of long service
payment obligations 1,039 1,296

Eh o AEEZENRHEA®
BHUT :

Movements in the Group’s long service payment liability during
the year are as follows:

—E-Z T4
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—A—H At 1 January 1,296 1,537
BP 5B AR 75 Bk A Current service cost 353 462
MERE Interest expense 20 23
B S BB A5 18 Losses from staff resignations - 28
mERAK ZTEHBEN Long service payments to retired/
HWERWRERRY S redundant staff (466) (718)
B EREZETEELE Actuarial gains arising
5 8 U from changes in financial
assumptions (164) (36)
R+ZBA=+—H At 31 December 1,039 1,296
TEEFR
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36. RIAIREEEE (&) 36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES (continued)
KEBR _E-__FR_FE-— The principal actuarial assumptions adopted by the Group
F+ZA=Z+—"HEWNZETER as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 (expressed as weighted
Bz (UN#EFEFHEYR) W@ average) are as follows:

T

—E-C —T 5

2022 2021

B Discount rate 3.675% 1.509%
HFENEREX Salary growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
AEEEAEEZERAR B9 The Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant
REAZERERFERAOT ! of which are detailed below:
05 35
Risk Description
B Es) NCIEEE-ACIEES ) IES SN =K
Changes in bond yields An increase in corporate bond yields will decrease liabilities.
BIRE B ABAEFHEBRES SBREERRENERE.
Inflation risk The majority of the obligations are linked to inflation, and higher inflation

will lead to higher liabilities.

PREPR AEBZEAREE The Group’s sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial
BREENEHAEERINEGIES assumption as of the end of the reporting period based
TEHMETHHRHE 2T U on reasonably possible changes of the relevant actuarial
e assumption is as follows:
tEEm, HEGZVE
Increase/
decrease in
rate Impact on obligation
—EC-CE &
2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
X Discount rate 0.5% (80)/89 (276)/372
HMERX Salary growth rate 1.0% 43/(142) 281/(409)
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36. RIAREEEE (@) 36. LONG SERVICE PAYMENT LIABILITIES (continued)

FHRBREDHTER —BRR
HIREBIEMEBRAARKTEM
fEH - BFR L 118 KBJAE
THE MALRKRUENET
EERBEN EtERIARSE
TEEHTIZRERKROBRNE
KoPMEBNAEZRFEERS
MHBERREPEINEREN X
HE (RERBEEENRE
RESHARRBAREMEEES
B o

MREREDNAARBOGER
B4R E CEMBESE-

rEBRARBEEREZMET
BHERAORBI2E(ZTEZ—F
23%F) AEFEZKRMERAMS

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the long service payment obligation to significant
actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the
long service payment obligation calculated with the projected
unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating the liability recognised within the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous
period.

The weighted average duration of the Group’s long service
payment obligations is approximately 32 years (2021: 23
years). The maturity analysis of the Group’s undiscounted

RHEBELITAT benefit payments is as follows:
IR—-F —EERE MEEREF HBERE Eeh
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1year and2years and 5 years 5 years Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEZZ&H+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 2022
BiE Pension payments 75 86 270 829 1,260
RIEZ—&+ZF=1+—H At 31 December 2021
bEg NG Pension payments 27 7 220 2,930 3,184
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37. B 37. SHARE CAPITAL
& E FAET
Number of
shares HK$’000
ETE Authorised:
FREEC.OI1EBTZ Ordinary shares of
B HK$0.01 each
ST — At 1 January 2021,
—B—H-ZZEZ—F 31 December 2021,
+—-_HA=+—H" 1 January 2022 and
T2 "4—H—H 31 December 2022
R—_ZE-__#+"A1
=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
BETRERE Issued and fully paid:
EREEC.O1BTZ Ordinary shares of
ZE s HK$0.01 each
A _E_—F—F—H At 1 January 2021 3,412,566,000 34,126
RIBBM O EHIRER Shares issued under
BITRAD (W15E34) conversion of convertible
loans (note 34) 100,000,000 1,000
RZEZ— At 31 December 2021,
+=B=+—8- 1 January 2022 and
_E_"_F—HA—HR 31 December 2022
+=ZBA=+—8H 3,512,566,000 35,126

AEBZEXAEEERABERAE
EEEAFBEE UKRBEBRE
EEBREDLEASRRETRS
EICIE

rEEREREAREESE
BoAEBEBTEBEEAGEHBULMI
BEEERREREFEEZ
RS EFHBE  RER R
BREAEB AEEHTHER
BXNEBE #ETHR BOR
M- EEMER - EBERBEED
HHEBELRBES-

AEBNGEHERABEEARALX
REEGEEER ZLERUER
FPHEERUAKEHARELRFAETE -BH
BELERTKREMERKES
BERE-KABRELACEMAERD
Lo (BIRERFFBEKRHEAM
) o IR EREER

196

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment
of dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new
debts, redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by adjusted capital. Total debt comprises bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
accumulated losses and other reserves) except for non-
controlling interests.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2022 and
2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
B MR Total debt* 168,409 225,469
B BREAREEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents (17,929) (41,834)
B8R Net debt 150,480 183,635
T 2 AR KA Total equity 155,388 2,787
—E-= T4
2022 2021
BERHKAEBREARLER Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 97% 6,589%
* BEAEENRITRERAEME * Includes the Group’s bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities
T HEEaEREMIZERRKRER and amount due to the controlling shareholder.
HE o
NS O BEHEHKCREE The debt-to-adjusted capital ratio decrease from 6,589% to

EAXLEXHEG589%FTEE
97%  TERBNRFRNELE R
H e

REBMPIIBERERSE(I)AHE
BB LR HBAZLAR
BIT25% M ; K(i)BITR & 2
HWRERFRBRRIERARTEER
FrMT Ry & T AR AE o

rEREBEEERNAERERLRE
BHITRIEARITRENEAR
DREENRES ZREBTAE
EREBEREEEN—ENE25%
HNRBE-R_ZET__+_A1
T+ —H ABRFEREERDTY
36% (ZE_—HF 136%) °

—ECFEER

97% during 2022 primarily from profit incurred for the year.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are:
(i) in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has
to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to
meet financial covenants and to maintain certain shareholding
by the ultimate controlling parties attached to the interest-
bearing borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars weekly
on substantial share interests showing the non-public float
and it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2022, 36% (2021:
36%) of the shares were in public hands.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

38. ZABIHMBERARREEED 38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
381X ARMBRAR

38.1 Statement of financial position of the Company

&g —_=FE_—
3 2022 2021
iok=3 FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
RIFBAB ZIE Investments in subsidiaries 14,015 57,224
FEREE Right-of-use assets 47,760 -
FE IS [ /B B) =R I Due from a subsidiary 342,007 -
403,782 57,224
MHBEE Current assets
e M TEARE Deposits and prepayments 4,106 37
FE ULt 8 A B) I8 Due from subsidiaries 672 5,412
RITRIREE R Bank and cash balances 36 5,466
4,814 10,915
mENAaE Current liabilities
FE(TPHI B AT ZIE Due to subsidiaries 218,347 325,528
FE A 422 B R B8 R I Due to the controlling shareholder 30,118 -
HAFE IR Other payables and accrued
fEsH & A charges 4,091 3,807
B 7 I 1R Financial guarantee - 140,043
HMEm Other borrowings 17,801 -
HEaR Lease liabilities 21,207 -
291,564 469,378
mEBaEFE Net current liabilities (286,750) (458,463)
MEERMEAME Total assets less current
liabilities 117,032 (401,239)
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
H Other borrowings 19,666 23,149
HE&E Lease liabilities 64,903 -
84,569 23,149
BE (818 B Net assets/(liabilities) 32,463 (424,388)
BERKE#E Capital and reserve
Bz 2 Share capital 37 35,126 35,126
i Reserves 38.2 (2,663) (459,514)
Wi (B A5 ) Total equity/(Capital deficiency) 32,463 (424,388)

WZE_=%=H=+— Approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023
HEESEgHERBAUT and are signed on its behalf by:
AETREEE
R 2 X HER
Chen Jianwen Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
EE EFE
Director Director
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38. ZNEIMBRARRFEES

(&

382K ATEIEEFEEH

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (continued)

38.2 Reserves movement of the Company

BxHEE DR EE

n

BONJOUR

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

R & B AR M i 2t @t
Share Capital Share
premium redemption warrants  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
RZZ--#-B—H At 1 January 2021 242,729 1,181 - (455,879) (211,969)
EMTERER Conversion of convertible loans 18,000 - - - 18,000
EREERK Loss and total comprehensive
SHEMSRE expense for the year - - - (265,545) (265,545)
WZZ2Z-F+ZB=+—HKk  At31 December 2021 and
ZE-Z£—A—H at 1 January 2022 260,729 1,181 - (721,424) (459,514)
EE L Issuance of share warrants - - 22,037 - 22,037
EREFR Profit and total comprehensive
2ENEEE income for the year - - - 434,814 434,814
RZEZZE At 31 December 2022
+ZB=+-H 260,729 1,181 22,037 (286,610) (2,663)
B TFFR 199
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

39. RESERVES

39.1 Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

39.2 Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents the
nominal amount of share capital repurchased
through the Stock Exchange and cancelled by the
Company. The issued share capital was reduced by
the nominal value thereof and transfer to the capital
redemption reserve is made upon cancellation of the
repurchased shares.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of
the Group reorganisation in 2003 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the
aggregate share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
under the reorganisation scheme, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
thereof.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

39. RESERVES (continued)

39.2 Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial assets at FVTOCI reserve

The financial assets at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of
financial assets at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4.10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Convertible loans reserve

The convertible loans reserve represents the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible
loans issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible loans in note 4.17 to the consolidated
financial statements. The convertible loans were fully
redeemed by the Group upon the completion of the
Disposal (as defined and detailed in note 40(i)).

Share warrants reserve

Upon completion of the Disposal (as defined
and detailed in note 40(i)), the Company issued
581,578,947 unlisted warrants conferring rights to
subscribe for 581,578,947 shares to be issued by
the Company upon exercise (the “Warrant Shares”)
at the exercise price of HK$0.19 per Warrant Share
with an aggregate face value of HK$110,500,000
to the Subscriber. The share warrants reserve
represents the difference between the proceeds and
the fair value of the share warrants in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share
warrants in note 4.22 to the consolidated financial
statements. During the year ended 31 December
2022, no warrants have been exercised.
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R_E__F=ZA=Z+N
B> RXQABTIL—HEEWH
#(TEEW=:)) BIL K
NBBREERESRE
BEHEEBRNZBRE
MR EA900,000,000%
T HBETEE RS NK

MR fFEE (THEFE)) o i

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i) Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control

On 28 March 2022, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed
to sell and the Fund agreed to purchase the entire
equity interest in the Disposal Group at an aggregate
consideration of HK$900,000,000, subject to the terms
and conditions of the Sale and Purchase Agreement (the
“Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 29 June

EFEEER _Z__F-X 2022.
BZ+hABZ=mKe
BtE Consideration received
FET
HK$’000
RERIREEEBYHUEIR Consideration received in cash and
B cash equivalents 431,554
REEABNKRE (MisE22) Investment in a joint venture (note 22) 351,412
FAE (T2 M) B9 Rental deposit for the Lease (as defined in
MHEZs note (i) 4,500
BR[O ES (F5Ed) Redemption of convertible bonds (note (i)) 112,534
BRE Total consideration 900,000
KEEFIBH L EEFESE Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Disposal
REESH Group over which control was lost
n-—Ee=-—
~NAZ+AhH
As at
29 June
2022
FET
HK$’000
L IEN =Y e Property, plant and equipment 496,298
FIERREE Deferred tax liabilities (1,413)
BEHEEEFE Net assets disposed of 494,885

202

Annual Report 2022



MEmRME (8)
BEr - _HF+_H=Z+—HIFE

40. HEMWB AR (&)

Notes to

n

BONJOUR

the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i) HEXEEZFENHEQ (i) Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control
g (&) (continued)
HE W (18 Gain on disposal (continued)
WZEZZ
~NBZ+hH
As at
29 June
2022
FET
HK$’000
wAE Total Consideration 900,000
BEHEEEFE Net assets disposed of (494,885)
17 wﬁwf&"“ (B %) Issuance of the Warrants (note i) (22,037)
MEZ (M%) Effect of the Lease (note i) (41,149)
& W 7 Gain on disposal 341,929
HEWR@mFAGEET K The gain on disposal is included in the face of
HEfezmhlamke consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
L= Notes:
(i) HEFEEM (T5ERAI) ()  Upon completion of the disposal (“Completion”), (i) Apex
% (i)Apex Centric#Z s Centric redeemed all the outstanding convertible bonds
%+ %110,500,000%8 7T previously issued to Karfond at its principal amount of
EREFREREAMAEN HK$110,500,000 together with accrued and unpaid
2,084,000 c 8D T 5% interest of approximately HK$2,034,000; and (ii) the
BI M KX IE TR A & Company issued 581,578,947 unlisted warrants (the
THENNTH|EES ; & “Warrants”) conferring rights to subscribe for 581,578,947
(IWVARBIERIEETT shares to be issued by the Company upon exercise
MEEA110,500,000 at the exercise price of HK$0.19 per Warrant Share
BTtH581,578,9471% with an aggregate face value of HK$110,500,000 to
RXEMRRES I TZ Karfond. The fair value of the warrant liability amounted
BERDEEERMHO.A 9 to HK$22,037,000 using Binomial Tree Pricing model
BT EBITERR for which involved unobservable inputs. The key inputs
BAAB K/ FETH into the valuation model were as follows at initial
581,578,947/ R 15 (M50 measurement:
EREBR D) BIREF o ”’
H“TEDEE\%B’\J’AEF@?%
22,037,000% 75> Jh #
AIXBEBRERE OF &
THBEREHAHLT) o1
1% 5t 8 R TETET'E;”B'\J
AR ABEOT
7B 0.19% 7T
Exercise price HK$0.19
Al E A R _ERBZFNABEZZARENBAH
Exermsable period From 29 June 2022 to 9 April 2026
B B as =X =
Dividend yleld Nil
el 57.192%
Volatility 57.192%
R 2.718%
Risk-free rate 2.718%

. —
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

F+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(i) Disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control

(continued)

Gain on disposal (continued)

Notes:

(i) Upon Completion, the Company entered into a tenancy
agreement, whereby the Company leased the Property
for a term of four years commencing on the date of
the Completion (the “Lease”). The annual rent payable
by the Group are approximately HK$27,000,000,
HK$27,810,000, HK$28,644,000 and HK$29,504,000
for the first, second, third and fourth year of lease. The
amount of right-of-use assets retained by the Group,
lease liabilities assumed by the Group and rental paid
in advance under the Lease was HK$53,354,000,
HK$96,753,000 and HK$2,250,000, respectively.

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries

FHET
HK$’000
BRERREEEEYFHKE Consideration received in cash and cash
HRE GtAGREHRE equivalents (included under investing activities
MERNEEZHIET) in consolidated statement of cash flows) 431,554
BRBIRITER Gt ALZEIESE  Repayments of bank borrowings (included
MERINEE & under operating and financing activities in
REEBIET) consolidated statement of cash flows) (371,000)
60,554
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(ii) Deemed disposal of subsidiaries with loss of control

WZE__F£+_8 K In December 2022, certain subsidiaries of the Group
EENETHE R MAMBKE allotted ordinary shares to entities controlled by Mr.
ek EF B E RS AL & Chen Jianwen. Upon the shares allotments, the Group'’s
TEBEBR - BRMHECER & equity interests in these subsidiaries reduced from 100%
EERZENBLR2IANEK to 30%. Accordingly, the Group’s investments in these
BEAR100% B LDE30% o subsidiaries were accounted for as associates of the
b xXEBRZEWBAS Group by using equity method after the deemed disposal.
NEERELHEBRRRB R
mAARY A KERMWH
AT
FET
HK$’'000
R Bo S M AR (E Aggregate consideration from share allotments -
kLR ENNEEREE Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control
B 57 7 was lost
TET
HK$’000
M BB Rk B (EE17) Property, plant and equipment (note 17) 3,408
FEREEE (Mf:E18) Right-of-use assets (note 18) 6,668
FE IR & 57 AR =R Trade receivables 225
FERMIE sT& R EMEUWEERR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,824
R1T RIRE A ER Bank and cash balances 477
FEAT & 5 BRR Trade payables (24)
HMENMRIE e WiZE K Other payable, deposits received and accrued
eI & charges (13,664)
HE&ME (M5E41.3) Lease liabilities (note 41.3) (7,016)
BHEABEFE Net liabilities disposed of (8,102)
HE W Gain on disposal
FET
HK$’'000
(A= Consideration -
BEHEABB TR Net liabilities disposed of 8,102
H & W= Gain on disposals 8,102

PIEL &N B2 E ELH
B L FEE

BHERITRIREEER

The gain on disposal is included in the face of
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Net cash outflow arising on deemed disposal of
subsidiaries

Bank and cash balances disposed of (477)

—ECFEER
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4. REHERERMEE 41. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
A AREBEERES -REHE 41.1 Acquisition of non-controlling interests - 51
EEBFRAA Chaohun Group Limited
w2 —%+ — A8 On 23 November 2021, the Group acquired the remaining
ZHZH AEEERER 49% interest in a subsidiary from the independent third
B49BTEHBILS = 77K party, Chao Groups Limited, at a cash consideration
EHEEERBSRR B WE of HK$49. The effect of the acquisition on the equity
—fE MY /8 A P Bk T 49 %M attributable to the owners of the Company during the year
B-HE_Z-_—F+_"H8 ended 31 December 2021 is summarised as follows:
=+t—HLEFE BWELXR
BlEAEAEBEHRENEZE
BE#L a0
g —F
2021
FET
HK$’000
B EIFERERREE Carrying amount of non-controlling interests
acquired (2,902)
B IFERER B Consideration paid to non-controlling interests —
(2,902)
= {1,000 T *  Less than HK$1,000
412 —HEEB AT — LiEH 41.2 Dissolution of a subsidiary - L8 EFEHHEARAT
PEFEBERAT
HE_ZT - — = During the year ended 31 December 2021, a wholly-
=+ —HIEEE  AEE2 owned subsidiary of the Group, L& #FEFHESE
ERNBAT LEBHPEF BR/AT], was dissolved during the year, and a past
BEAEREAT RN ERNBE translation gain of HK$470,000 was reclassified to this
BE470,00088 T2 ERI year’s consolidated profit or loss. Loss arising on the
HREMDEERNEE ZEF dissolution of this subsidiary, including the translation
ST ZWE R BB loss, amounting to HK$470,000 is included in other
ELX2BE (BEEREBR) operating expenses.
& H#470,0008 7T B &
AHMEZEE o
RHRHNBEEEELREBEREN The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities at its
BREEWT date of dissolution, were as follows:
B
2021
AT
HK$’000
BEEEERE Net assets dissolved of -
PE 02 4 18 AR B B Release of translation reserve 470
R —EIN B AR 2 B 18 Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary (470)

R — R B AR RIRERE Net cash outflow arising on dissolution of
x| B a subsidiary
FrfR B RVIRTT IR T 45 6R Bank and cash balances dissolved of -

206 Annual Report 2022



MBRRWE (B)

BE - _HF+"_HA=+—HIFE

n

BONJOUR

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

41. BEHERERME (&) 41. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
M IMEEFBELEZABHIER 41.3 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
TRELAAEEBRE L The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
EfzaGEe8% 8FERE arising from financing activities, including both cash
RIFREEF -MEFEE and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
S Z7aEA2EREREE activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
BFKRKBEREHF N K cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
EEEFEcHRERERDE statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
EREEH2RWERE - activities.
BRTEE i
i’ R BERSfE -B-C
CECC L HEEE +ZR
-f-B  RéhE I REAE BeE%  HReEE 28ff  =t+-H
Transfer to
liabilities
directly
At COovID-19 attributable At
1 January Early relatedrent  Non-cash to assets held 31 December
2022 Cash flows Inception  termination concessions items for sale 2022
AT FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIREMER Bank and other borrowings
(H#32) hote 32) 197488 (157,077) - - - 2,252 - 41,763
EAERRRTE Amount due to the controling
(Hz27) shareholder (1ofe 27 - 30000 - - - 118 - 20,118
REBBHH3)  Leaseliabiites frore 3 7981 (349%) 110499 - - (7,016) - 96,58
Eh Total 205469 (162013 110,499 - - (4,646) - 168409
BETER I3
S FEEHR RERERE “E--%
ZEC-F FEIEE HEEE +2B
—A-H Beng Hin RERLE figds FReEB Z8E =1+-H
Transfer to
liabilities
directly
At COovID-19 attributable to At
1 January Early  related rent Non-cash assets held for 31 December
2021 Cash flows Inception termination  concessions items sale 2021
FET FEr FET Fér FET FEr FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIREMER Bank and other borrowings
(Wi#32) (note 32) 408,380 (18,894) - - - 3,088 (195,086) 197,488
ERREEN WH32) Trade finance loans (ote 32) 38,772 (38,772) - - - - - -
TBAER (WF34)  Convertivle loans frote 34) - 127,457 - - - (37.271) (90,186) -
RE&E (W33 Lease liabilities (nofe 33) 188,632 (79,923) 35,106 (115,368) (465) - - 27,981
CE Total 635,780 (101%) 3105 (115369 W65 (34183 (85279 225469
B TFFR 207
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

FEHERERME (&) 41. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

MATHEZRERNEE 41.4 Total cash outflow for leases
FAGRERERERNEA Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash
FEESREEBEUT flows for leases comprise the following:

2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$°000
KEHSRHEEARN  Within operating cash flows 13,535 26,182
BMBEERESAMEEARN  Within financing cash flows 34,936 79,923
48,471 106,105

EOEN 42. LITIGATIONS

R_EB__HFR-IE”-_—F+Z
B=+—H HXEBESHEHT
EEHEHSREBUNER
MEEETETHHFARRE-
EEEBEMT AR AEYEE
& (MFEE31) ~ H M fE 5+ B8 2 (Ffd
231) U R EMAIREE S MIE
(Mfst26) MRS & R E B4
Mt RAEDEE BEFXATEHA
REERBANOMME -

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group has been
involved in numerous ongoing litigations and claims concerning
accrued rent of its retail shops and business disputes. The
management has made sufficient provision for the accrued
rent and business disputes as included in accrued leasehold
improvements (note 31), other accrued expenses (note 31) and
amounts due to former related parties (note 26), and believes
that a favorable settlement could be reached with the plaintiffs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

43. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

44.

The Group as lessee

n

BONJOUR

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding lease commitments
relating short-term leases for shops in Hong Kong and Macau
are approximately HK$1,306,000 (2021: HK$2,039,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements,

the Group had the following

/\ THETUTRS transactions with its related parties during the year:
—g=-= —Emo
2022 2021
FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERHERRRGERFNIE Y Interest expense on amount due to
FMEHEZ the controlling shareholder 118 -
mEEABHEE Sales to related companies - 110
& B — 5 A B8 B /A 5] Rental income from a former related
Z & WA company - 1,080

by ER EERHEMTEEE
BREZFHMWT :

(0)

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

2022 2021
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
TEEEREBAE Key management personnel
& - compensation:
B Fees 604 604
HA#H & 2B K Basic salaries, allowances and
EMH = benefits in kind 7,602 16,036
BAEBHIFTEIMER  Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 74 261
8,280 16,901
B TFFR 209
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+{_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

2022 are as follows:

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

EERE/
o BRI TEEBEREEME BETRAHE ERBRER FEAL R 1
Particulars of
authorised share
Place of Principal activities and capital/issued Attributable
Name incorporation  place of operation share capital Type of legal entity equity interests
EiARE:
Interest held directly:
BREERAT ERERHE REEZER 50,000 EREEIZT BRAH 100% (ZEZ—%:
(FiEAT=RERERAH)) ZETE BB /30008 100%)
SREEIZTZBET
LEk
Man Tong Trade Limited British Virgin Investment holding 50,000 authorised Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
(formerly known as Islands ordinary shares of US$1
“Bonjour Group Limited”) each/3,000 issued
ordinary shares of US$1
each
RiEFERE
Interests held indirectly:
BERBRAE (RiEA A TEALERSERS 30000082 ERE  BRAH 100% (ZEZ—£ .

=Lk (o el
BRAF) (TBERE)

Hop Fung Lung Limited (‘HFL")
(formerly known as
“Bonjour Cosmetic
Wholesale Center Limited”)

EFERERAR

Sheen Honour International
Limited

2RERERAT

Full Gain Developments
Limited

210

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

RREUHE

British Virgin
Islands

ERREERHER

Wholesaling and
retailing of beauty, health-
care and lifestyle products
in Hong Kong

TEBLERS RER
EERHER

Wholesaling of beauty,
health-care and lifestyle
products in Hong Kong

ERMTEXD BER
EERHER

Retailing of beauty, health-
care and lifestyle products
in Macau

RS R 1,000 7T
2EBR

Non-voting deferred
shares of HK$300,000
and ordinary shares of
HK$1,000

100,000 702 B

Ordinary shares of
HK$100,000

50,0000 & REEIET
ZHETEER/ 1K
SREEIZETZ
BETERR

50,000 authorised
ordinary shares of
USS$1 each/1 issued
ordinary share of US$1

Limited liability company

BRRT

Limited liability company

Limited liability company

Annual Report 2022

100%)

100% (2021: 100%)

100% (ZE-—£
100%)
100% (2021: 100%)

100% (ZEZ—#:
100%)

100% (2021: 100%)



45.

M

AY

BONJOUR
BRI (&) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
BE_E__HF+_H=+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2022
FEMBAR (& 45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EERE/
E2y BRI TEEBEREEME BETREHE ERBRER FEfL R 1
Particulars of
authorised share
Place of Principal activities and capital/issued Attributable
Name incorporation  place of operation share capital Type of legal entity equity interests
EBERAR EBREYHE  RERER 50,000 8REEIZET BRAR 100% (ZZZ—f
EEBER/ 1R 100%)
HEIETZBET
Lk
Active Earn Limited British Virgin Investment holding 50,000 authorised Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
Islands ordinary shares of
US$1 each/1 issued
ordinary share of US$1
ERBRERERAT &% ETHEEES 1008 T2 BB BRAR 100% (ZZZ—f !
100%)
Bonjour Global Development  Hong Kong E-commerce business Ordinary shares of Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
Limited HK$100
EREETRERAT &% REER 100E T2 BER BRAFE 100% (ZEZ—%:
100%)
Bonjour Lifestyle Company Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary shares of Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
Limited HK$100
SNBERERMEERAT &F TEBHEES ER 10082 BB BRAS 100% (ZFZ—fF !
EERERRNER 100%)
Bonjour Global Supply Limited  Hong Kong Wholesaling of beauty, health- Ordinary shares of Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
care and lifestyle and HK$100
technology products
in Hong Kong
BRRMAIEERAR A AEEMBER BER  100BTZE®R BRAT 100% (ZEZ—£ .
LEREERURNRER 100%)
Hong Kong Innovation and Hong Kong Wholesaling of beauty, health- Ordinary shares of Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)
Entrepreneurship Limited care and lifestyle products ~ HK$100
in Hong Kong
ERERAT &% REBRENE ATz BBk BRAT 100% (ZEZ—£ .
100%)
Wealthy Train Limited Hong Kong Property holding in Ordinary share of HK$1  Limited liability company ~ 100% (2021: 100%)

—ECFEER

Hong Kong

211
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022

46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Winding up of HFL

On 9 January 2023, a winding-up order was made by the High
Court against HFL at the hearing of the Petition pursuant to
the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Official
Receiver of Hong Kong has been appointed as the provisional
liquidator of HFL. As a result of the liquidation and appointment
of liquidators, the Group lost control over HFL and HFL
ceased to be subsidiary of the Company. For further details
of the winding-up, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 9 January 2023 and 17 January 2023.
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